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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
SRR S

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZE H=E
—E-N\E B
TZA=+—H [yeEnal=
IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Revenue & 297,989 287,557
(Loss)/profit before taxation B AT (B 1B) 5 F (246,447) 95,260
(Loss)/profit for the year FRNER),HH (257,224) 101,697
Basis (loss)/earnings per share (HK cent) BRENER),BF W) (2.91) 1.26
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BZE H=E
—E2-N\F —EF—tF
TZA=+—H =kl
IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET A& T
Total assets BEE 3,480,089 3,783,649
Total equity = BE 3,129,976 3,467,316
Debt ratio @ BIALL EO 10.06% 8.36%
Gearing ratio @ BEEBELEX® (WELS 6.17%
Net asset value per share @ (HK$) EREEFE? (BT 0.36 0.39
Remarks: B &
(1) Debt ratio: Total liabilities divided by total assets [©) HDRE LEaERINREE
(2) Gearing ratio: Interest bearing borrowings divided by total equity (2) EEBBLR FTEERBUERAE
(3) Net asset value per share: Net assets divided by number of issued shares (3) BREEFE BEFEBUDEITRMOE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREHE

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart
Chairman & Executive Director

HiRE L

FERPTES
Dear Shareholders, BNRE:
On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of New Times ZARARZRKXIEFERELBER AR (XRAT ]
Energy Corporation Limited (the “Company” or “New Times [#ERERDLENBAR (HEIREH))

Energy”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | hereby
present the annual results and audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

2018 Highlights

After a number of years of oil exploration activities in Argentina, |
am pleased to report an oil discovery was made by the Group in the
Chirete Concession as first announced on 12 December 2018. This is
an outstanding result, and reinforces the Group's successful drilling
campaign in Chirete, with 2 out of 2 exploratory wells culminating in
oil discoveries. The latest achievement underlines the Group’s decision
in April 2015 to farm-in to the block, and to diversify its exploration
risk in Argentina.

Presently, the Group is conducting extended well test and logging
analysis of its recent oil discovery, to evaluate its commercial viability.
Preliminary test data to date is promising, initial indications are that
the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well contains light crude oil with an
American Petroleum Index (“API”) index of approximately 37, with
virtually zero water content and an indicative maximum oil flow rate
to date of approximately 2,295 barrels of production per day from a
choke size of 10mm diameter.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Upon the completion of the extended well test, the Group will be
able to establish the final and optimum rate of production achievable,
and the technical characteristics of the oil. A development plan for
the commercial production of crude oil in the Chirete Concession is
expected to be finalised towards Q4 2019.

The oil discovery at the Chirete Concession capped off a momentous
2018 and allowed the Group to quickly put behind the disappointment
of losing the Palmar Largo Concessions, following the unexpected
rejection by the provincial regulatory authorities of its 10 year
extension application to continue operating the oilfield. The Group
relinquished the Palmar Largo Concessions, and ceased oil production
activities on 30 November 2018, after having only received 9 days’
notice from the province to vacate the facilities and the block.

Despite the highlight of an oil discovery in the year, the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 reports a consolidated net loss
after tax of HK$257.22 million. This was primarily attributable to the
mark-to-market write down of our investments in Beijing Gas Blue Sky
Holdings Limited and Foothill Exploration Inc., as well as provisions for
certain promissory note and other receivables.

Due to the Group's accounting policy of recognising exploration and
evaluation assets at cost, the consolidated results of the Group does
not financially reflect the positive value which may have arisen as a
consequence of the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 oil discovery.

ERE®RE

RIEFAHATRE  AEEKLHEEAME
BRiffTER# YEERENABEES -
R Chirete 5P R A XL RBEEN B R
HE FHER _E-NEFEONFEELE
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TERbEFormosaBE PEEHBIERER
Palmar Largo'fF 37 # [2 45 & b HH 69 104 48 53
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LA R Bt B T 1 WO H R 1R R B fib FE W RI8
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MR AEENSTERSRERDEK AN
EEEFNGH MAEBMNEAEETER
BLHLG.St.LB.x-2001#) R Fr TE Chirete I 5T HE [
BN OB RELENEEMEEE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREHE

Other Developments in 2018

The HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well was the Group’s second drilling
campaign using its own rig. Both the rig and the crew performed
exemplary. There was minimal non-productive time attributable to
either health and safety incidents or mechanical failure. This is a
testament to the professionalism and dedication of the Group’s drilling
and rig services division. It is the every intention of the Group to
continue to utilise its own rig for the Morillo Deep exploratory drill
in the Tartagal Oriental & Morillo Concessions targeted for Q2 2020.
The Morillo Deep exploration well is located approximately 17 km from
the latest successful drilling of HLG.St.LB.x-2001.

Following the Group’s re-entry into the business of commodities
trading in August 2017, the Group continued to successfully engage
and close out a number of commodities trades involving non-ferrous
metals during the year. This is in line with the Group’s strategic
objective to diversify its revenue base and source of profit generation.

Looking Ahead

New Times Energy continues to proactively manage, structure, and
position its business to best serve the interests of its shareholders. The
Group is committed to maximising shareholder value by exploring and
developing oil and gas prospects in a safe, environmentally, socially
and ethically responsible manner.

The Group is well aware of the importance to continually reassess
and diversify its current business and geographical portfolio to better
position itself for the future. Thanks to the financial support of its
investors, the Group is well funded to seek and capture suitable
investment opportunities in the energy sector, wherever that may be
in the world.
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT

Appreciation

With the possible commercialisation of oil production in the Chirete
Concession in 2019, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincerest gratitude to the Board, the management team, and all
staff members of New Times Energy group for their hard work and
dedication in getting the business to where it is today. | am also much
obliged to our shareholders, investors, business partners, bankers,
customers and suppliers for all their continued support. Last but not
least, | would like to pay tribute to our former independent non-
executive Director, Mr. Peter Wong, who passed away on 11 March
2019. The Board and | convey our heartfelt condolences to his
family, and we sincerely thank him for his invaluable and insightful
contributions to the Company over the past years.

Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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E &)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWmR DN

GENERAL REVIEW

While the Group is celebrating the likelihood of a significant oil
discovery in the Chirete Concession (pending the final results from the
extended well test), the Group hereby informs that for the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group incurred a consolidated net loss after
tax of HK$257.22 million.

The consolidated net loss after tax was primarily attributable to:

o net fair value loss recognised on the Group’s investment holding
in certain equity securities listed in Hong Kong;

° an impairment loss on a promissory note;

o impairment loss
receivables; and

recognised on certain trade and other

net foreign exchange loss.

Due to the Group’s accounting policy of recognising exploration and
evaluation assets at cost, the consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 does not reflect the positive financial
value (if any) which may be created as a result of the Group’s recent
oil discovery in the Chirete Concession.

On 21 November 2018, the Formosa provincial regulatory authorities
(the "“Formosa Authorities”) unexpectedly rejected the Group’s
application for a 10 years extension in the Palmar Largo Concessions
(the “PL Concessions”). This was after 2 years of false hope and
repeated verbal assurances from the Formosa Authorities that the
extension would be granted. On 30 November 2018, the Group
subsequently terminated and ceased oil production activities, and
relinquished its 38.15% participating interest in the PL Concessions,
having been given only 9 days’' notice to vacate.

The PL Concessions was a mature, marginal oilfield with declining
production rates. Combined with the effect of the low oil prices
offered by Refinor, the only major refinery in Northern Argentina,
the Group’s oil sales revenue in 2018 suffered a further year on year
decline.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s net earnings from PL Concessions also worsened due
to higher operating costs, as a result of unavoidable slickline unit
interventions, and essential maintenance of aged production facilities.
This was in a year where Argentina experienced an annual inflation
rate of 47.6%, the highest on record since 1991.

During Q4 2018, the Group drilled the exploratory well, HLG.St.LB.
x-2001 located at Los Blancos in the Chirete Concession, in which
the Group is a farmee with a 50% participating interest in the oil
concession. The well is located approximately 2.8km point to point
south of the HLG.St.LB.x-1002 exploratory well drilled in October
2015. The Group attained the target drill depth of 2,705 meters
on 29 November 2018, where significant oil and gas shows were
intersected from the depth of 2,670 meters onwards.

BEEREBNWR DN

HREEHETHVENMGRIEBRREEL
HERGIELEANEE  KERAIE IR
FRlSE— 2L BEMEENIT%
BIRZEIRAI T B1991F AR & S 40 4% -

RZZE-NFENFE AEEBEFMLR
Chirete 5 #F # [& Los Blancos #J HLG.St.LB.
x2001#) R H - AEE AEAS0% S EER
MU - R ANE S —AF+ABRK
B HLG.St.LB.x-100280 & # LA 492.8 2 & o
ZERIER-_Z—N\FE+—A=-+hLHBK
hiEF BIZEFREE2,705K - I H2,670K
FERBERTERNAOBERRAARKITR °

The Group is presently conducting extended well test and logging
analysis of the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well, in order to evaluate
its commercial viability. Preliminary test data is promising. Initial
indication to date is that the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well
contains light crude oil with an American Petroleum Index (“API")
index of approximately 37, with a significant oil flow rate (Refer to

N5 B3R 1F B HLG.St.LB.x-2001 &) & H #E 1T 1T
BRI MOBH AT - AR A E R E AT -
T AABESATE - E5NU L DRE
TNHLG.StIBx-2001 M EH S ELE Rl » K
EEAHES(AP) B8N AT R AGS
BRRECGE—PHBERE2HIEEAChirete
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWmR DN

section entitled Chirete Concession for further details) and virtually
zero water content. Upon the completion of the extended well test,
the Group will be able to establish the final rate of production
achievable.

In respect of the Tartagal Oriental and Morillo Concessions (the “T&M
Concessions”), the Group owns a 69.25% participating interest. As a
result of the recent oil discovery in the Chirete Concession, the Group
has identified a sizeable prospect, the Morillo Deep Prospect (the
“Morillo Deep”), approximately 17 km from the HLG.St.LB.x-2001
exploratory well.

Planning of the next exploratory well at Morillo Deep has begun
with the preliminary environmental impact assessment studies of the
proposed access road and location with a view to commencing the civil
engineering works in the second half of 2019. The Group is targeting
a drill spud date in Q2 2020.

The Group’s current exploration permit in the T&M Concessions is
due to expire on 13 September 2019. The Group will be filing its
application for a 3 years extension to the Salta provincial regulatory
authorities (the “Salta Authorities”) in May 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s oil and gas participation in Argentina during 2018 was
solely in the Northwest Basin located in the provinces of Salta and
Formosa.

Following the Formosa Authorities’ unexpected rejection of a 10 years
extension to continue exploitation and production activities in the
PL Concessions, the Group's involvement in the province of Formosa
formally ended on 30 November 2018.

In addition to the Group’s oil and gas exploration and production
activities, the Group was engaged in the business of commodities
trading.

Northwest Basin, Argentina

The Northwest Basin is one of the largest gas producing basins in
Argentina. This basin is geologically and structurally complex because
of the superposition of four main basins and tectonic influences,
including a Late Jurassic to Early Cretaceous-aged rift extension and
Tertiary-aged Andean compression. The Group is of the view that the
complex geological structures create opportunities for the discovery
of conventional light oil and natural gas during exploration activities.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held the following concessions
in the Northwest Basin situated in Northern Argentina:

Participating

Prospective

BEEREBNWR DN
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Chirete
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWmR DN

Exploration, Development and Production activities

Tartagal Oriental and Morillo Concessions (the “T&M
Concessions”)

The T&M Concessions comprising of the Tartagal Oriental block
and the Morillo block, located in the Province of Salta in Northern
Argentina, are the Group’s core exploration assets. The Group holds a
69.25% participating interest in the concessions and is the Operator.
The concessions cover a total surface area of 10,583 km? and have an
estimated Net Prospective Resources of 130.0 MMBOE for the Group.

Morillo Deep Exploration well

Following the completion of the recent HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory
drill in the Chirete Concession, the Group’s attention has shift towards
the preparations of its next planned exploratory well at Morillo Deep
in the T&M Concessions located approximately 17 km from the wellsite
of the Group’s recent oil discovery. The target completion date for the
access road and drill location preparation is scheduled for Q4 2019
with a spud date of Q2 2020.

Morillo Deep is one out of a number of prospects that had previously
been identified by the Group’s in-house geological and geophysical
team, which had been cross verified for their suitability and potentiality
by independent third party geological and geophysical experts.
Environmental impact assessment studies for the proposed access
road and drill location at Morillo Deep has already begun in earnest.
Upon its completion, the Group shall submit the necessary reports
to the relevant bodies within the Salta Authorities for their review
and granting of permits to enable the civil engineering works to
commence.

With the successful deployment of the Group’s own drilling rig on
the previous two exploratory drills in El Pacara, T&M Concessions and
Los Blancos, Chirete Concession, the Group’s intention is to continue
this arrangement in the Morillo Deep campaign. To date, the Group's
drilling rig has performed exemplarily. There has been minimal non-
productive time (“NPT") attributable to health and safety incidents
or mechanical failure. This is a testament to the professionalism and
dedication of the Group’s drilling and rig services division.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exploration permit extension

As disclosed in the 2018 Interim Report, the Group successfully
secured a 24 months extension on its exploration permit in the T&M
Concessions until 13 September 2019 from the Salta Authorities. The
extension application took approximately 12 months duration from
date of the Group’s application submission to the date the formal
decree ratifying the extension was issued by the Salta Authorities
on 23 March 2018. This represents a delay of 6 months from the
exploration permit expiration date to the date the decree granting the
extension was issued.

As at 2018 vyear end, the Group had an official outstanding
commitment of 3,547 Work Units on the T&M Concessions to
be fulfilled. The number of outstanding Work Units is a disputed
matter between the Group and the Salta Authorities. The number
of Work Units recognised by the Salta Authorities was below the
Group's expectation, based on the unclaimed qualifying expenditure
application submitted by the Group. It is the Group’s intention to
appeal the Salta Authorities’ recent decision.

Furthermore, the Group will be seeking a 3 years extension of its
exploration permit until 13 September 2022 from the Salta Authorities
in May 2019. This is for the purposes of realistically completing the
two remaining exploratory wells commitment in the T&M Concessions.
Detailed drilling plans, schedules and analysis will be submitted as part
of the Group’s latest extension application.

Chirete Concession

The Chirete Concession covers a surface area of approximately 897
km? in the Province of Salta in Northern Argentina, and the Group’s
estimated Net Prospective Resources is 4.3 MMBOE. The Chirete
Concession is an oil concession in which the Group has farmed into
a 50% nparticipating interest, with Pampa Energia S.A. being the
owner of the other 50%. The Group is responsible for the day to day
operational activities.

HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploration well
The Group drilled the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well as scheduled
in Q4 2018. The well is located approximately 2.8km point to
point south on the same geological structure as the HLG.St.LB.
x-1002 exploratory well drilled in October 2015, where indications of
hydrocarbon was previously encountered.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group utilising its own drilling rig attained the target drill
depth of 2,705 meters for the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well
on 29 November 2018, where significant oil and gas shows were
intersected from the depth of 2,670 meters onwards.

Presently, the Group is conducting extended well test and logging
analysis of the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well, in order to evaluate
the commercial viability of the oil discovery for future development
and production. Additionally, the Group is expecting part of the
concession’s estimated prospective resources to be upgraded to
reserves before the end of 2019.

The Group is optimistic and encouraged by the extended test data to
date, which indicate light crude oil with an estimated API index of 37
with virtually zero water content and free of other contaminants. The
crude oil flow rates under different choke size during the extended
well test to date are summarised in the table below:

AEBR=-ZZE—N\F+—A=+thBEFERE
5 18 HE B TH 2 B HLG.St.LB.x-2001 Hi IR B 12
B RE2,705K - 9 82,670KEERB
BRTERABMRRAARG R -

N5 B3R 1F HHLG.St.LB.x-2001 &) & H #E 1T 1T
OB ROBI AT - ARE A E R R R &
ERRERITMW - o NEETE RS
BHEENISEARSEREN-Z—N
FTERAAPAHE -

AEEHESNEFRARABIRBEBRREE
ZAHA BT E R S ETAPHE B A37E
SRKENMNFTAWEEMTRY - TR
RES BRI A EE R TERM

N
//\LZ‘;\'

Average Barrels of Production
per Day (“BOPD")

HYAHREE
Choke Size S8 W R~ € =D E=1=)]
4mm 4% K 533
6mm 6= K 1,276
8mm 8= K 1,800
10mm 102 K 2,295

As of 18 March 2019, the cumulative production of crude oil from
the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 well was approximately 82,000 barrels.

B HLG.St.LB.x-2001 Wellhead
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Upon the completion of the extended well test, the Group will be
able to definitively determine the rate of production and technical
characteristics of the oil. A development plan for the production of
crude oil is expected to be finalised towards Q4 2019.

Exploration permit extension

The Chirete permit for the Third Exploratory Period expired on
18 November 2018. In order to continue and complete the commercial
viability studies of the recent oil discovery at HLG.St.LB.x-2001
exploratory well, the Group duly submitted to the Salta Authorities,
an application for a 12 months extension as permitted under the
Hydrocarbons Law of Argentina.

On 22 February 2019, the Group successfully received the decree from
the Salta Authorities confirming the approval of the extension for a
further 12 month term until 18 November 2019. As a condition for
the granting of the extension, the Group is required to submit on
a fortnightly basis, the oil production volumes attained during the
extended test phase of the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well.

Subject to the progress of the extended test, the Group will
consider whether it requires more time to continue its commercial
viability studies, or proceed straight with the application to the Salta
Authorities for an exploitation and production permit of between 20
to 25 years to operate the oilfield.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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B An aerial view of the Palmar Largo crude oil production facility

Palmar Largo Concessions (the “PL Concessions”)

The PL Concessions comprise of three blocks, namely the Palmar Largo
block located in the Province of Formosa which contains the producing
fields, together with the Balbuena Este block and the EI Chorro block
located in the Province of Salta. The concessions had a 25 years term
which expired on 23 December 2017.

During the eleven month period to 30 November 2018, the Group
owned a 38.15% interest in the PL Concessions and was the Operator
of the production facilities in the Palmar Largo block.

Palmar Largo ¥ 7 # E ([PLIFFHEE )
PLEFHERIE=FEER : AR EEEE N
Palmar Largol® i (#E B & mH ) KA R ER
£ 4 #Balbuena Este[@® 3% 2 El Chorro[@ 1% ©
ZEERNFATRALF  WERZZT—
+E+-—RA-+=EE® °

REBEZE_Z—\F+—-A=+tHL+—@HA
HE - AEERPLSTEEEE38.15% 2 H
M %% - I A Palmar Largol& 38 I 4 B &% it Y
HiER -

B Aerial view of Palmar Largo battery tanks B Oil battery tanks at Palmar Largo facility
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operations update

The Group conducted a number of slickline unit interventions on its
older wells with mixed success during the eleven month period to
30 November 2018. The purpose of the slickline unit interventions
were in an attempt to preserve the production rates of a mature,
marginal and declining oilfield. Essential planned maintenance was also
performed in order to ensure continued safe working conditions.

No workover intervention was undertaken, or contemplated in 2018,
due to the Group’s on-going negotiations with the Formosa Authorities
regarding its application for a 10 years extension, which concluded
with the sudden and unexpected rejection by the Formosa Authorities
on 21 November 2018, and the repossession of the Palmar Largo block
on the midnight of 30 November 2018.

Due to only 9 days notice served by the Formosa Authorities informing
of its decision to repossess the Palmar Largo Block on 30 November
2018, the Group had no option but to relinquish the oil production
facilities before it could practicably withdraw all movable, non-essential
to production assets, inventory, and unsold oil stock which legally
belonged to the Union of Temporary Enterprise (the “UTE”) in which
is the Group is a 38.15% participating interest owner.

The Group is currently in discussions with both the new concession
owner and operator, as well as the Formosa Authorities for a prompt
and amicable resolution to this matter, including the unfettered access
by the Group to physically recover the UTE properties. In the event
the matter becomes unnecessarily protracted, the Group together with
the UTE will have no option, but to consider taking legal action in
order to retrieve the UTE properties illegally and collectively seized by
the new incumbents of the Palmar Largo block.

During the eleven months to 30 November 2018, and prior the
relinquishment of the Palmar Largo block, the average daily
production achieved for the Group’s 38.15% participating interest was
approximately 250 BOPD (2017: 338 BOPD). The Group's share of oil
production for the same period equated close to 83 MBBL (2017: 123
MBBL for the year).

Due to a combination of declining production rates in the Palmar
Largo block and the continuing low oil prices in Northern Argentina,
the oil sales of the Group’s 38.15% participating interest in the PL
Concessions contributed to a revenue of approximately HK$32.96
million for the eleven month period (2017: approximately HK$43.47
million for the year).

BEEREBNWR DN

EBERMER
RBEE-ZF-N\F+—-A=tRHLE+—M@EA
HE AEEHREN BT ETESRE &R
fEIRE  EP MBS o EITHMARE
FHZENS#EFZZLRALERTE
MAEEER - ARBETETARHEEE
NIRRT 2/ TIERE -

HREEEEERHEBNLELTERY
0FEREENAE W\ FUEE
THREETEEERR - &K RERER
RZZE—N\F+—A=-+—AHTERIIE
BEMBHEZFTR_Z—\F+—A=+
H 4 1& # & Palmar Largo[& % °

HMREEEERENNENBNBHNEAE
BER-_ZF—-N\F+—A=1+HE%EPamar
LargoB VR TE - AEBEFIMERE - Rie
MEAMEERE  BEEMARIBEHEFE
NENEEEE  F8 KEZE EERUnion
of Temporary Enterprise ([UTED)(N @ A&
38 15% 2 HBEFNEAAN)NRE L AHE
o

REBRIFHEMSTHERESAREEFLU
RgEEERETEN - BUARR RN
AR LB E  BASEAE TR TERE
UTEBTE - EBEH T B EMFELE - REE
RUTER R EEE T ZEREBUERITE AL
5] (5 Palmar Largo & ¥ ¥ 42 F A X B IEE N
Y UTERT E -

REBEEZZE-—N\F+—-A=+BHLE+—EA
A+ 7R ZEPalmar Largol& 8 2 Bl » ANEE
B3815% 2 HiEHEMAYESHASH250
WMAHR(CZ—tF:E5H338WAMH) - A&
E R EIR DR LB R A BEE #3183,000
WAMm(ZZT—+F: F1R123,0001F A H)

A 7 Palmar Largo [ #8 /) A4 & & 7~ 7 T P& 0
FORZ IR RELERFELAN  FAEE
W PLA 57 [ #938.15% £ B2 4 25 /9 J8 5 8
€5+ — @ A HIRE & 2R Uk 2 4932,960,0007%8
T(ZE—+F : FRKI43,470,0005 ) °

Annual Report 2018 ¢ —ZT — )\ FE E

19



20

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWmR DN

B Crude oil dispatch during Extended Well Test at HLG.St.LB.x-2001

Oil price

Following the lifting of the import ban of foreign oil into Argentina,
and the move to a free market oil economy by the incumbent
government in 2017; the premium that Argentina oil price once
commanded over international price has been eroded. In Northern
Argentina, where the Group produces and sells its crude oil, the
change in government policy has had a more detrimental effect on
the oil price. This primarily is due to the fact that there is only one
major oil refinery in the region; Refinor.

The impact has not only hurt the Group’s own revenues, but also
fellow oil producers in the region. Consequently, the Group has
lobbied its concerns to the provincial government, and warned of the
potential irreversible damage to the region’s oil and gas industry and
its attractiveness, as a result of the major refinery’s unfair practices.

During the vyear, the Group engaged the Argentinean anti-trust
agency to investigate this matter. Furthermore, the Group may initiate
legal proceedings against Refinor for retrospective compensation of
historical shortfall in revenues as a result of below the market value
oil prices paid.

For the 2018 year, the average selling price the Group received was
US$54.05 (2017: US$48.63) per barrel.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exploitation and production permit extension

The Palmar Largo block is situated in the Province of Formosa, where
the Group was the Operator of the UTE with a 38.15% participating
interest. The Group’s exploitation and production permit in the block
had expired since 23 December 2017.

On 30 November 2018, the Group and the UTE relinquished the
Palmar Largo block to the Formosa Authorities, and accordingly
terminated and ceased productions operations. As a consequence of
the termination, the Group recognised net loss on disposal of non-
current assets of Palmar Largo Concession of approximately HK$7.186
million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Drilling Rig

In Q4 2018, the Group successfully deployed its drilling rig for the
HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well in the Chirete Concession. The
Group is pleased to report that there was minimal NPT attributable
to health and safety incidents or mechanical failure of the rig during
this latest campaign.

The HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well was the Group's second drilling
campaign using its own rig and equipment staffed by local crew.

The Group is optimistic that it can build on the success of the HLG.
St.EP.x-2001 and HLG.St.LB.x-2001 drilling campaigns, when it deploys
its rig to drill the Morillo Deep exploratory well in T&M Concessions
in Q2 2020, subject to the timely receipt of drill location and access
road permits.

Argentina Economy

During 2018, the Argentine Peso devalued by approximately 100%
against the United States Dollar, whilst inflation in the country was at
47.6%, the highest on record since 1991. The Argentina government
have been working with the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) in
an attempt to stabilise the Argentina Peso.

With the upcoming General Elections in October 2019, the Group is of
the view that the outlook of Argentina economically can only improve.
However, the Group is closely monitoring political developments in
order to assess the country’s possible economic future direction and

its implications to commerce.
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Commodities Trading

During the year, the Group successfully engaged and closed out a
number of commodities trades involving non-ferrous metals. This is
in line with the Group’s continuing strategic objective to diversify its
revenue base and source of profit generation.

The Group was previously engaged in commodities trading before
2008, where invaluable experience and business partners were gained.
The Group plans to continue activities in this business segment in the
upcoming year.

USE OF PROCEEDS

As at 1 January 2018, the Group had total unused net proceeds of
HK$921.59 million. This comprised of HK$251.30 million balance from
the Subscription Shares, and HK$670.29 million balance from the Open
Offer.

The Group conducted no additional fund raising activities during
the year, and utilised HK$35.14 million in respect of its Argentina
operations, HK$15.63 million for overhead expenses of the Group's
Hong Kong office, and HK$10.39 million for the servicing of debt and
interest payments.

On 27 August 2018, the Board resolved to change the use of the
Group's remaining unutilised net proceeds from the Open Offer
by reallocating HK$100 million from the HK$600 million originally
designated for the purposes of investment/acquisition of suitable
business opportunities, to general working capital requirements of the
Group, in particular, the servicing of debt and interest payments, and
payment of overhead expenses of the Group’s Hong Kong office.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total unused net proceeds
amounted to HK$860.43 million. This comprised of HK$216.16 million
balance from the Subscription Shares, and HK$644.27 million balance
from the Open Offer. The Group’s intended use for the remainder
monies shall continue to be for the same purposes as previously
disclosed i.e. general working capital requirements of the Group, of
which HK$144.27 million balance is available for payment of overhead
expenses of the Group’s Hong Kong office, HK$216.16 million balance
for operational requirements in Argentina, and HK$500.00 million for
possible investment/acquisition of suitable business opportunities.

For more details, kindly refer to the section entitled Capital Structure,

Liquidity and Financial Resources, and Change in Use of Proceeds
further below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND DEVELOPMENTS

The objective of the Group is to maximise profitability and increase
cash flows for the purpose of funding its exploration and development
activities, whilst at the same time ensuring its obligations to health,
safety and the environment are not compromised.

With the recent oil discovery in the Chirete Concession, the Group is
pleased that it can quickly put behind the disappointment of recent
events at PL Concessions. The Group is presently continuing with its
extended test and logging analysis of the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory
well, in order to evaluate its commercial viability. The Group is
optimistic and encouraged by the extended test results to date, which
indicate light crude oil with an estimated APl index of 37. Final flow
rate of crude oil for production will be determined after the completion
of all on-going tests.

Looking ahead, the Group is excited by the prospect of bringing
the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 exploratory well into commercial production.
Additionally, there is the exploratory drill at Morillo Deep in the T&M
Concessions planned for Q2 2020 to look forward to, as well as the
possibility of further revenue generation from its drilling & rig services
division. The Group is also studying the HLG.St.LB.x-1002 well, with a
view to possibly putting it into production in the second half of 2019.

With adequate cash reserve, the Group is also continuing to seek value
adding and complimentary investment opportunities in the energy and
related sectors in other regions of the world, in order to broaden and
diversify its risk and revenue stream.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$297.99 million, which represents an increase of
approximately 3.63% as compared to approximately HK$287.56
million for the corresponding period in 2017. The increase in revenue
was mainly attributable to the revenue generated from commodities
trading. The revenue derived from commodities trading for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$265.03 million. This
represents an increase of approximately 8.58% as compared to the
HK$244.09 million revenue generated for the corresponding period
in 2017. Additionally, revenue derived from the sale of oil products
under the Group's oil exploration and production business for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$32.96 million. This
represents a decrease of approximately 24.18% as compared to the
HK$43.47 million revenue generated for the corresponding period in
2017. The Group reported a gross profit of approximately HK$11.13
million (2017: HK$6.91 million). The increase in gross profit was mainly
contributed by the Group’s oil exploration and production business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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General and administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 was approximately HK$53.22 million, which
represents a decrease of approximately 15.96% as compared to
approximately HK$63.33 million for the corresponding period in 2017,

The Group recognised an impairment loss on promissory note
receivable, and trade and other receivables of approximately HK$38.85
million (2017: Nil) and approximately HK$33.93 million (2017: Nil)
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group recognised an impairment loss
on available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$19.43 million;
whilst there was no such impairment loss recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recognised a
reversal of impairment loss on exploration and evaluation assets in
respect of the Union of Temporary Enterprise in Tartagal Oriental and
Morillo Concessions of approximately HK$248.04 million; whilst there
was no such reversal of impairment loss for the corresponding period
in 2018.

The Group recognised a net investment loss in respect of financial
instruments of approximately HK$100.32 million (2017 HK$37.49
million) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group recognised exploration expenses in relation to a dry hole
of approximately HK$0.37 million (2017: HK$35.54 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a gain
of approximately HK$3.30 million on the partial disposal of interest
in a joint venture of the Group (the “Partial Disposal”). The Partial
Disposal was completed in January 2017 resulting in the Group’s
interest in the joint venture being decreased from 42.10% to 29.92%.

Finance costs of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$15.69 million, which represents a decrease of
approximately 18.66% as compared to approximately HK$19.29 million
for the corresponding period in 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Share of losses of joint ventures of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 were approximately HK$4.45 million, which
represents an increase of approximately 7.23% as compared to
approximately HK$4.15 million for the corresponding period in 2017.

Income tax charge of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$10.78 million; whilst it was an income tax
credit of approximately HK$6.44 million for the corresponding period
in 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a loss for
the year of approximately HK$257.22 million; whilst it was a profit of
approximately HK$101.70 million for the corresponding period in 2017.

Basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK2.91 cents; whilst it was basic earnings per share of
approximately HK1.26 cents for the corresponding period in 2017.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

In respect of the aggregate net proceeds of approximately HK$557.23
million (“2016 Subscription Shares Proceeds”) raised from the
subscription of shares in July 2016 and November 2016, amongst
which approximately HK$305.93 million had been utilised up to
31 December 2017 towards its intended use as stated in the circular
of the Company dated 28 June 2016 and the announcement of
the Company dated 28 October 2016. As at 31 December 2017,
the unutilised balance of the 2016 Subscription Shares Proceeds
was approximately HK$251.3 million. The actual use of the 2016
Subscription Shares Proceeds during the year ended 31 December
2018 was, as to approximately HK$35.14 million, for Argentina
operational purposes as intended. As at 31 December 2018, the
unutilised balance of the 2016 Subscription Shares Proceeds was
approximately HK$216.16 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The following table summarises the use of net proceeds for the 2016
Subscription Shares Proceeds during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Unutilised amount of net proceeds during
net proceeds as at
31 December 2017

TRELHEE_ZE—\F+_A=1+—HL
FEZ2_E—XNERBRMHIMBREZAE
RIEFREAR -

Utilised amount of

Unutilised amount of
net proceeds as at
31 December 2018

the year ended
31 December 2018

R=-Z2—-+t#F BE-Z-N\#F R=ZZB-N\F
+t=ZA=+-—8H +t=ZA=+-—8H +T=ZA=+-—8H
ZHBREFRE |LEEZFRBIE ZHBREFE
Intended use BERRZE HARBHESHE FHECHASE HARBAEHE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBTT BEBTT BEBTT
Argentina operational MR L E R
purposes 251.30 (35.14) 216.16

In respect of the net proceeds of approximately HK$736.40 million
("Open Offer Proceeds”) raised from the open offer in April 2017,
amongst which approximately HK$66.11 million had been utilised
up to 31 December 2017 towards its intended use as stated in the
circular of the Company dated 28 February 2017 and the offering
memorandum dated 27 March 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the
unutilised balance of the Open Offer Proceeds was approximately
HK$670.29 million. The actual use of the Open Offer Proceeds during
the year ended 31 December 2018 was, as to approximately HK$26.02
million, for general working capital requirements including the
repayment of loan and payment of overhead expenses as intended. As
at 31 December 2018, the unutilised balance of Open Offer Proceeds
was approximately HK$644.27 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table summarises the use of net proceeds for the Open
Offer Proceeds during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Unutilised
amount of net
proceeds as at

BEEREBNWR DN

TEEEBEE—_E—N\E+-_A=+—A1t
FEZARBEMERELMEREFE
i -

Utilised amount

of net proceeds Unutilised
during the  amount of net
year ended  proceeds as at

31 December Change in use of 31 December 31 December

2017 proceeds 2018 2018
R-Z—t# BE-%2-N\% R-ZZ-N\%
t=A=t-H +-A=+-B +=A=t+-H
2B RERE FEME LFEZRBRE ZHEREFE
Intended use RERRZ HABAEH AE#E FHECDASHEH CE kA
HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
General working capital ~ —REEEEFX
requirements 11.00 100.00 (26.02) 84.98
Argentina operational FREZERDN
purposes 59.29 - - 59.29
Investment for oil and gas H{ERAAA
portfolio 600.00 (100.00) - 500.00
670.29 - (26.02) 644.27

In relation to the change in use of proceeds as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 August 2018, the Board
resolved to change the use of net proceeds of HK$600 million
originally designated for investment for oil and gas portfolio as follows:

(i) HK$100.00 million for general working capital requirements
(including approximately HK$30.00 million for the general and
administrative expenses and approximately HK$70.00 million
for the repayment of interest and debts upon due), which is
expected to be utilised within the next twelve months from the
date of the announcement of the Company dated 27 August
2018; and

(i) HK$500.00 million for investment for oil and gas portfolio, when
suitable opportunities arise.

Details of the change in use of proceeds are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 August 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group maintained a treasury policy (as reviewed or modified from
time to time when deemed necessary) for the investment of surplus
cash. Surplus cash is mainly maintained in the form of term deposits
with the licensed banks. The management of the Group closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the Group has
sufficient financial resources to meet its funding requirements from
time to time.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately HK$907.82 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,217.66
million) and the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$928.48 million (31 December 2017: HK$843.95 million).

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December 2018 were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United States Dollar and
Argentine Peso.

As at 31 December 2018, total equity of the Group was approximately
HK$3,129.98 million (31 December 2017: HK$3,467.32 million). Net
asset value per share equated to approximately HK$0.36 (31 December
2017: HK$0.39). Debt ratio, calculated as total liabilities divided by
total assets, was approximately 10.06% (31 December 2017: 8.36%).

The Group financed its operations generally from a combination of
working capital, borrowings and proceeds from the issuance of new
shares of the Company.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, total borrowings of the Group was
approximately HK$210.79 million (31 December 2017 HK$213.78
million), which comprised of debt securities in issue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2018, the debt profile of the Group is detailed
below:

Debt Profile by Maturity

EEEN®R TN

m NEFE+ZA=+—B XEENE

=z —
HEFFMINT

Debt Profile by Interest Rate Structure

R BB 2EBHAES RARERE D 2 EBES
. 25%
27% o 1%
100% 100%
68% 74%
1R E2F 3E5F [E| E R 2
Debt Profile by Currencies Debt Profile by Types of Borrowings
RERE D 2 BEHAE REGERES 2 BEHES
100% 100% 100% 100%

Hong Kong dollar
BT

Debt Profile by Security Nature
RERUESE S 2EBES

100%

Unsecured

Other borrowings
Hitufd &

100%

RIER

Financial covenants

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’'s other borrowings of
approximately HK$54.40 million (31 December 2017. HK$54.40
million) are subject to the fulfiiment of financial covenants relating
to the Company’s assets/liabilities ratio and the Group’s consolidated
adjusted net tangible assets, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to be in
breach of these financial covenants, the Group’s other borrowings
would become payable on demand. As at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017, none of the financial covenants relating to other
borrowings were breached.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2018, gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of
interest bearing borrowings divided by total equity, was approximately
6.73% (31 December 2017: 6.17%).

Charge on Assets
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any charge on its
assets (31 December 2017: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2017: Nil).

Capital Commitments
Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties including
business risks, operational risks and financial risks.

The Group’s business of commodities trading is exposed to
development risk, as well as supply chain risk. The Group mitigates
these risk factors by developing its customer base in order to achieve
better operating performance on its commodities trades, and also by
expanding its supplier base to achieve a stable supply of commodities.

The Group's business activities in exploration, development, production
and sale of crude oil are susceptible to geological, exploration and
development risks. The Group strives to establish and maintain
comprehensive technical and operational teams. Through detailed
planning, analysis and discussion amongst the teams, and with support
from experienced consultants and experts, the Group is able to
manage and mitigate the risks arising from changes in the business
environment to a reasonably acceptable level.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e 7K B2 R A R AR

EEAELE
R-ZB-NE+-A=1+—8 UtEEER
NS B ETENEEARBRL LY A673%
TE—+F+-A=+—H:617%) °

EERA

RZE-NE+A=+—H FREETE
ERNEEEAR(CE—LF+_A=1T—8:
&) o

ZREE
RZE-NF+_A=+RH AEETEE
MEARLRBBE(CE-—LF+-_A=1+—
H:fE) -

BAREE
AEBR-_ZE—N\F+_A=Z+—HWENR
EEFBIANGEATBIRERM T3S -

TERBRTEEMN
AEBEWMBIRR - BERE  FBRATR
ZHR—EHRERETEEN - BREEBR
@ RERREYBHER

AEENE S ETHERERRR KM E R
Ry o REBEBEBEREZFERAEER
BHTEHERRENZERR  VERE
AEHEBHERERRENERMHE K
MmimZERREE -

AEBEEHR HE LERHEERKS
ENEBARBSZNE - HRIFARRRF
- AEEYNELMEFRZHEORMK
KEEK - ZRABFEABNHRE - DWW
i ARKEREENEMEMERN T
AEBRABLEBREZSIBHWARLY
R EMEAUAZHABHEENA -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the normal course of business, the Group is exposed to credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, price risk arising from
prices fluctuation of crude oil and commodities, and equity price
risk arising from its investment in equity securities. Details of the
financial risk management of the Group are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition to the abovementioned risks and uncertainties, there may
be other risks and uncertainties which the Group has not identified,
or is aware of, or considers it to be of minimal impact to the Group
presently, which however has the potential to become significant in
the future.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar, United States Dollar and Argentine Peso. Most of these
assets and liabilities are in the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
foreign exchange risk is primarily those from the Group’s exploration
and production activities in Argentina and investments in foreign
companies. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group will monitor
the foreign exchange exposures on an on-going basis and will consider
hedging instruments should the need arise.

Employees

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 47 (2017: 57)
permanent employees in Hong Kong and Argentina. Total employee
remuneration (including directors’ remuneration and benefits) for
the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$20.64 million
(2017: HK$27.59 million). The Group provides its employees with
competitive remuneration packages relative to their job performance,
qualifications, experience, and prevailing market conditions in the
respective geographical locations and businesses in which the Group
operates.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers, social communities and
governments to meet its objectives and long-term goals. Save as
disclosed in the section headed “Business Review”, there was no
material or significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers,
customers and/or other stakeholders during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associated companies, and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavors to comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction. Details of the environmental policies and
performance of the Group are set out in “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” section of this annual report.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held other investment in equity
securities and other financial assets amounting to approximately
HK$18.69 million and HK$80.47 million respectively.

(i)  Other investment in equity securities
As at 31 December 2018, the Group's other investment in equity
securities comprised of unlisted equity investments in NordAq
Energy Inc. ("NordAq”) and Foothills Exploration Inc. (“Foothills
Exploration”) amounting to approximately HK$17.88 million
and HK$0.81 million respectively.

NordAgq is an oil and gas company based in Anchorage, Alaska
and is mainly engaged in exploration, appraisal and development
of hydrocarbon reserves in the State of Alaska, the United States
of America. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recognised a loss of approximately HK$13.36 million on the
change in fair value of the equity investment in NordAq in the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income.

Foothills Exploration is an oil and gas exploration and production
company engaged in the acquisition and development of oil and
natural gas properties in the United States of America. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recognised a loss of
approximately HK$4.56 million on the change in fair value of
the equity investment in Foothills Exploration in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.
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(ii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other financial assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s other financial assets
comprised of listed equity securities at fair value amounting
to approximately HK$80.47 million. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group disposed all of unlisted
investment funds which were held and classified as other
financial assets as at 31 December 2017. Additionally, the
Group’s unlisted equity-linked securities, which were held
and classified as other financial assets as at 31 December
2017, were early redeemed by the issuer. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group recognised a net investment loss
of approximately HK$1.81 million in respect of these disposed
investments in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2018, listed equity securities at fair value
represented shares in Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 6828) (“Blue Sky"”). The principal activity of
Blue Sky is investment holding and Blue Sky’s subsidiaries are
principally engaged in sales and distribution of natural gas and
other related products. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group recognised a net investment loss of approximately
HK$100.49 million in respect of the shares in Blue Sky in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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INFORMATION ON NEW TIMES ENERGY'S OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND RESOURCES
MERERZHRFERERZER

NORTHWEST BASIN, ARGENTINA

Tartagal Oriental and Morillo Concessions (the “T&M

MRZEFHER M

Tartagal Oriental & Morillo4& 5 fE &
(TEeMEBFEE])
RTIRMEFFTREE 2 ZERBRERDOT :

At 31 December 2018 At 31 December 2017
REZB-—NETZA=1+—0 Pieatat: ezt =

Concessions”)
The prospective oil and gas resources in the T&M Concessions are as
follows:
(o]]]
(in MMBBL)
vy
Prospective Resources BERER (BEB®)
Category Gross (100%) B Rl # 5 (100%)
Low Estimate REMa
Best Estimate REME
High Estimate B = [ 5
Notes:

M

The technical report was prepared and updated by Netherland, Sewell &
Associates, Inc. (“NSAI”), an international independent qualified technical adviser,
as of 1 January 2018 in accordance with the definitions and guidelines set
forth in the 2007 Petroleum Resources Management System (PRMS) approved
by the Society of Petroleum Engineers. As at 31 December 2018, there were
no material changes in our prospective resources since the effective date of the
aforementioned NSAI report and as disclosed in the table above.

The prospective resources shown above have been estimated using probabilistic
methods and are dependent on a petroleum discovery being made. Unrisked
prospective resources are estimated ranges of recoverable oil and gas volumes
assuming their discovery and development and are based on estimated ranges
of undiscovered in-place volumes. Geologic risking of prospective resources
addresses the probability of success for the discovery of a significant quantity
of potentially moveable petroleum; this risk analysis is conducted independent
of estimations of petroleum volumes and without regard to the chance of
development. Principal geologic risk elements of the petroleum system including
(1) trap and seal characteristics; (2) reservoir presence and quality; (3) source
rock capacity, quality, and maturity; and (4) timing, migration, and preservation
of petroleum in relation to trap and seal formation. Risk assessment is a highly
subjective process dependent upon the experience and judgment of the evaluators
and is subject to revision with further data acquisition or interpretation. There
was no material change on the assumptions adopted in the updated report in
compare with the previous report.
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INFORMATION ON NEW TIMES ENERGY'S OIL AND GAS RESERVES AND RESOURCES
MERERZHERFERERZEHR

Chirete Concession
The prospective oil and gas resources in the Chirete Concession are
as follows:

Chirete &
RChirete FHFHERZESHRERNO T

At 31 December

At 31 December

2018 2017

R=ZF—NF R-ZZT—tF

+=A=+—-0 |Ep:Ead=

(o]]| Oil

(in MMBBL) (in MMBBL)

A ap:

Prospective Resources =ER (BE&E®) (B&Mm)
Category Gross (100%) 38 Bl # 5 (100%)

Low Estimate SARAEET 2.2

Best Estimate & EEET 8.6

High Estimate B = b ET 25.2

Notes:

M

In July 2016, New Times Energy became a 50% participating partner in the
Chirete Concession having met all the conditions precedent as stipulated in the
farm-in agreement entered into with Pampa Energia S.A. (formerly Petrobras
Argentina S.A.) in April 2015.

The technical report was prepared by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc.
("NSAI"), an international independent qualified technical adviser, as of 1 January
2018 in accordance with the definitions and guidelines set forth in the 2007
Petroleum Resources Management System (PRMS) approved by the Society of
Petroleum Engineers.

Due to the existence of insignificant quantities of prospective gas resources, no
estimate of this gas was made in NSAI's technical report.

As announced on 12 December 2018, an oil discovery was made at the HLG.St.LB.
x-2001 exploratory well in Los Biancos. Extended well test and logging analysis
are presently ongoing. Upon its completion, an update to the above table in
accordance with the definitions and guidelines of the PRMS can be expected.
This entails the possible reclassification of the current prospective resources in
the Chirete Concession to contingent resources or reserves.

The prospective resources shown above have been estimated using probabilistic
methods and are dependent on a petroleum discovery being made. Unrisked
prospective resources are estimated ranges of recoverable oil and gas volumes
assuming their discovery and development and are based on estimated ranges
of undiscovered in-place volumes. Geologic risking of prospective resources
addresses the probability of success for the discovery of a significant quantity
of potentially moveable petroleum; this risk analysis is conducted independent
of estimations of petroleum volumes and without regard to the chance of
development. Principal geologic risk elements of the petroleum system including
(1) trap and seal characteristics; (2) reservoir presence and quality; (3) source
rock capacity, quality, and maturity; and (4) timing, migration, and preservation
of petroleum in relation to trap and seal formation. Risk assessment is a highly
subjective process dependent upon the experience and judgment of the evaluators
and is subject to revision with further data acquisition or interpretation. There
was no material change on the assumptions adopted in the updated report in
compare with the previous report.
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INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Kam Chiu, Stewart, aged 64, was appointed as an
executive Director in February 2008 and the Chairman in May 2009.
Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor's degree in Civil and Environmental
Engineering from the University of Wisconsin-Madison, the United
States of America (“USA"); a Master’s degree in Civil Engineering from
the University of California, Berkeley, USA; and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Being a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Mr.
Cheng is a professional engineer with extensive experience in property
development and construction management. Mr. Cheng is a member
of the Shunde District, Foshan City Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference since November 2006.

Mr. Cheng joined Hip Hing Construction Company Limited in 1984 as
a project manager and was subsequently appointed as director. From
1993 to 1997, Mr. Cheng was transferred to New World Development
(China) Limited as a director and an assistant general manager,
overseeing property development in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"). He was a director of NWS Service Management Limited from
1997 to 2006, and was mainly responsible for the construction and
the electrical and mechanical engineering businesses and pursuing
business opportunities in the PRC. Mr. Cheng is the managing director
of Cheung Hung Development (Holdings) Limited, principally engaging
in property development in both Hong Kong and the PRC. He was
an executive director of International Entertainment Corporation from
January 2008 to June 2017, which shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. TANG, John Wing Yan, aged 66, was appointed as an
executive Director in June 2017. Mr. Tang joined the Group as general
manager in August 2015. He brings with him over 20 years of senior
management experience and has held top executive positions with
various international companies prior to joining the Group.

Formally trained as a structural engineer, Mr. Tang was a Chartered
Engineer in the United Kingdom (“UK”) as well as a Registered
Professional Engineer in USA and Canada. Author and co-author
of peer-reviewed publications in several technical journals and
conferences, he is also the holder of U.S. Patent US6329589 pertaining
to wireless transmission of solar power for exterior curtain wall in
buildings.
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INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering, Magna Cum
Laude, from the University of Massachusetts, USA; a Master's degree
in Engineering from the University of California, Berkeley, USA; and
a Graduate-Level Diploma in Financial Engineering from Stanford
University, USA.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Chi Hin, Jacob, aged 36, is currently a senior vice president
of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“CTFE”) with responsibilities
in making strategic and private equity investments globally. CTFE
is an indirect subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited which
is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Lee joined CTFE
in March 2013 and has over 10 years of professional experience
in corporate finance, investment, international capital markets and
asset management. He previously worked at the investment banking
department of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited and Deutsche Bank AG in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee holds a Master
of Science degree in Accounting and Finance from The London School
of Economics and Political Science to the University of London in
London, United Kingdom and a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from the University of Michigan in Ann Arbor, United States
of America. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder.

Mr. Lee is currently a non-executive director of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited which shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Chi Yuen, aged 52, was re-designated as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2012. He acted as an executive
Director and the Chairman from May to October 2006 and a non-
executive Director from October 2006 to May 2012. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor’s degree with honours in Business Administration and a
Master of Science degree with distinction in Corporate Governance
and Directorship. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He is a practicing certified public accountant and has extensive
experience in financial management, corporate development, corporate
finance and corporate governance.
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INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan is currently an executive director of Great Wall Belt & Road
Holdings Limited (formerly known as e-Kong Group Limited), Noble
Century Investment Holdings Limited and Royal Century Resources
Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director of Asia
Energy Logistics Group Limited, China Baoli Technologies Holdings
Limited, Media Asia Group Holdings Limited and Leyou Technologies
Holdings Limited, which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chan was an independent non-executive director of Jun Yang Financial
Holdings Limited (currently known as Power Financial Group Limited)
from January 2015 to October 2017 and U-RIGHT International
Holdings Limited (currently known as Fullsun International Holdings
Group Co., Limited) from November 2010 to December 2017 and
Affluent Partners Holdings Limited from December 2016 to September
2018.

Mr. YUNG Chun Fai, Dickie, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2013. Mr. Yung holds
a Master’'s degree in Business Administration from the University of
East Asia, Macau. He is a member of the Institute of Management
and a fellow of the Chartered Management Institute. Mr. Yung
has been engaged in finance and banking businesses for over 27
years. He was the chief executive officer of Landbridge Holdings
Limited, the deputy chief executive officer of Industrial & Commercial
Bank of China (Macau) Limited and an executive director, deputy
general manager and alternate chief executive officer of Industrial &
Commercial International Capital Limited (currently known as ICBC
International Holdings Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Industrial
& Commercial Bank of China Limited.

Mr. CHIU Wai On, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Chiu is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
UK. He possesses extensive professional experience in accounting and
auditing services. Mr. Chiu is currently an independent non-executive
director of DeTai New Energy Group Limited, whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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INFORMATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Financial Controller

Mr. MAK, Peter Kwok Ming, aged 42, joined the Group in October
2015 as a Project Manager. Mr. Mak holds a M.A. Honours degree
in Business Organisation from Heriot-Watt University, Edinburgh, UK.
He is a qualified Chartered Accountant of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), with over 20 vyears
professional accounting and auditing experience. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Mak gained over 6 years relevant oil and gas industry
experience in his previous roles as audit manager with KPMG and
financial controller with Schlumberger, where his last posting was with
WesternGeco in Penang, Malaysia.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT
ESSHE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of New Times
Energy Corporation Limited (the “Company”) submits herewith their
report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

An overview and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the
above sections, no important event affecting the Group has occurred
since the end of the Year. Certain financial key performance indicators
can be found in the section headed “Financial Highlights”.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

An account of the Group’s relationship with its key stakeholders and
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
are included in the sections headed “Corporate Governance Report”
and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the Year, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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In order to enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate
the shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed
investment decisions relating to the Company, the Board adopted a
dividend policy on 26 March 2019 (“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether to declare
any dividend in the future and the amount of dividend to be declared,
the Company shall consider a number of factors, including but not
limited to:

a. the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

b. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

C. the liquidity positions of the Group;

d.  the future cash requirements and availability of the Group,
including its expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

e. any restrictions on payments of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

f. the general market conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal and external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

g.  any other factor that the Board may consider appropriate.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution
proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the Board’s discretion. The Board will
review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company repurchased
106,602,000 shares on the Stock Exchange for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$13.92 million including expenses.
The repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled. The repurchase
was effected because the Board considered that the repurchase
enhanced the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per
share which benefit the Company and its shareholders as a whole and
that it presented a good opportunity for the Company to repurchase
Shares.
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Details of the shares repurchased are as follows:

No. of shares

Highest price

BoROOFBLT:

Lowest price Aggregate

repurchased paid per share paid per share Consideration
R K5 FRE 5

Month of repurchase #EE A # B E 7 EE BE=E®% BRIEER BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000

B IT 7T FAT

September 2018 —E2-NFEhA 39,210,000 0.1320 0.0966 4,624
October 2018 —E2-NE+A 33,110,000 0.1420 0.1269 4,585
November 2018 —E-N\F+—H 34,282,000 0.1349 0.1328 4,711
Total it 106,602,000 13,920

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any member of B EXFIHEEI  REE-_ZT—N\F+=

the Group purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

The Company was not involved in any material litigation or arbitration
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The Directors are also
not aware of any material litigation or claims that are pending or
threatened against the Group during the year ended 31 December
2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
30 May 2019 to Wednesday, 5 June 2019 (both days inclusive),
for the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
Wednesday, 5 June 2019. During this period, no transfers of shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 29 May 2019.

FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 223 of this annual
report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of other borrowings of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2018 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURE

There were no issue of bonds or debentures of the Company during
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company, under the Company’s bye-laws (the
"Bye-laws"”) or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason
of their holding of the Company’s securities. If the Shareholders
are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding,
disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in relation to the
Company'’s securities, they are advised to consult their professional
advisers.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 30(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no retained profits
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie.
Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company’s contributed surplus of HK$740,880,000 is currently not
available for distribution. The Company’s share premium account of
HK$4,868,181,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Details of the above are set out in note 30(e) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for 100% and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 88.94% of the Group’s total revenue for
the Year. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 91.68% and the largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 80.24% of the Group's total
purchases from continuing operations for the Year.

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers.

TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING
OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED

Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain amounts of the transactions as set out in note 32(b)(i) and (ii)
to the consolidated financial statements fall within Rule 14A.76(1) of
the Listing Rules and each constitutes a de minimis transaction which
were exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed above, the remaining related party transactions
for the Year as set out in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements under the heading of “Material related party transactions”
did not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were/
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Kun (resigned on 9 February 2018)

Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit (resigned on 13 April 2018)
Mr. Lee Chi Hin, Jacob (appointed on 1 April 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter (deceased on 11 March 2019)
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie

Mr. Chiu Wai On

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 36 to 38 of
this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Chi Hin, Jacob (“Mr. Lee"”) has been appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 April 2019. In accordance with
bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Lee shall hold office only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “"AGM")
and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the AGM.
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In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, each of Mr. Chan
Chi Yuen and Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie shall retire by rotation at
the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as an
independent non-executive Director.

Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 May 2011,
the Shareholders approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) in place of the old share option scheme
adopted on 30 August 2002 (the “Old Scheme”). No further share
options may be granted under the Old Scheme upon its termination
and share options granted and unexercised prior to such termination
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
provisions of the Old Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme is adopted under the relevant requirements
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and its purpose is to provide
incentives or rewards to the eligible participants thereunder for their
contribution or would be contributions to the Group and/or enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group. Eligible participants
include any Director (including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Director), employee (whether full time or part time),
any supplier of goods or services to the Group, any customer of the
Group, any agent or consultant that provides research, development,
technological support or other services to the Group, any shareholder
or any member of the Group or any holder of any securities issued by
the Group. The Share Option Scheme, unless otherwise terminated or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the date of coming
into effect.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of the limit and such limit may be refreshed by
the Shareholders in general meeting. In addition, the total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all share options granted and to be granted (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme to each
eligible participants (other than an independent non-executive Director
or a substantial Shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates) in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
the latest grant of share options must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue at such date. Any further grant of share options under the
Share Option Scheme in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of the Company.

Under the Share Option Schemes, any grant of share options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder of the Company,
or any of their respective associates are subject to approval by the
independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any share options
granted to an independent non-executive Director or a substantial
Shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all share options already granted or to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme (including share options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, such grant of share options by the Board must be
approved by Shareholders in general meeting of the Company.

The period within which share options may be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share options and that the Board may at its
discretion determine the minimum period for which the share options
have to be held before the exercise of the subscription right attaching
thereto.

The exercise price of the share options under the Share Option Scheme
is determinable by the Board in its absolute discretion, but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant of such share options; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of such share options; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.
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The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option Scheme
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer upon
payment of a consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.

During the Year, no share options were granted nor cancelled under
the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2018, the Company
had no other outstanding share options.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 467 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of
the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as otherwise disclosed, none of the Directors of the Company
nor a connected entity of the Directors had any beneficial interests,
whether direct or indirect, in any significant transactions, arrangements
or contracts to which the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time during the
Year.

None of the Directors had any service contract, which is not
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” and “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during the period
under review was the Company or the Company’s subsidiary or holding
company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, as recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the ”“SFO") in respect of
information required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange by the Directors and/or chief executive of the Company
pursuant to the SFO or to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (or any other applicable code), there were
no interests, whether long or short positions, held or deemed to be
interested by any of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
nor had there been any rights to subscribe for any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
held or deemed to be interested by any of them as at 31 December
2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors and their respective associates was considered to have any
interest in any businesses that competes with or is likely to compete
with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration and five individuals with
highest emoluments are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes are set out in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons/corporations had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO and in accordance with information received
by the Company.

Long position of substantial Shareholders’ interests in
issued ordinary shares of the Company

FTERRzER

RZZE—NEFE+-A=+—8 A TALS
FEERARRNBRDKEER DR EERE
BHEREHEEHEXVERE 2R3 S0 E R
ERARAARBIHEENLALRRBRERESFL
BEGMEBKRATHFEELHEFE
NEIFMEEZERNNERIAR o

TERRRAQAFACBITEBERZER

Approximate

Number percentage

of issued of the total
ordinary issued share

Name of Shareholders Capacity/ Nature of interests shares held capital

HEBT
e 8T IR A B

BRRES 5 e ZEREE #YEIHL
(note (vii))
(Pt & (vii))
Max Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficially owned 5,737,129,098 65.50%
("Max Sun”) (note (i)
EHRCEXAERARUTBHFD(MEG ExESR
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Interests in a controlled corporation 5,737,129,098 65.50%
("CTFNL") (note (ii))
ARXREREABRAA R AEE R
(TAXRBREADEEG)
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interests in a controlled corporation 5,761,900,848 65.78%
("CTFHL") (note (iii))
AXREGER)BR AT EEAERER
(T K% 1)K ki)
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Interests in a controlled corporation 5,761,900,848 65.78%
("CTFC") (note (iv))
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited TEEAERER
(TCTFC) (Kt 5E(iv))
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Approximate

Number percentage

of issued of the total
ordinary issued share

Name of Shareholders Capacity/ Nature of interests shares held capital
e &7
FiFEe T % 7= 48 28
REEE B REEHlg ZEREE HHEIH
(note (vii))
(B 5% (vii)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Interests in a controlled corporation 5,761,900,848 65.78%
Limited ("CYTFH") (note (v))
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) REEE#ER
Limited (TCYTFH]) (B 3£ (v))
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1) Interests in a controlled corporation 5,761,900,848 65.78%
Limited ("CYTFH-II") (note (vi))
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1) LB
Limited ([CYTFH-111) (Bt 5 (vi))
Elberta Holdings Limited Beneficially owned 794,850,000 9.07%
EmiER
Notes: Bt & -
As at 31 December 2018: RZZE—-NF+=ZA=+—8:

(i) The entire issued share capital of Max Sun was legally and beneficially owned by
CTFNL.

(i) CTFNL held 100% direct interest in Max Sun and was accordingly deemed to
have an interest in the shares held by Max Sun.

(iii) CTFHL held 99.70% direct interest in CTFNL and was accordingly deemed to have
an interest in the shares of CTFNL.

(iv) CTFC held 81.03% direct interest in CTFHL and was accordingly deemed to have
an interest in the shares of CTFHL.

(v) CYTFH held 48.98% direct interest in CTFC and was accordingly deemed to have
an interest in the shares of CTFC.

(vi) CYTFH-II held 46.65% direct interest in CTFC and was accordingly deemed to
have an interest in the shares of CTFC.

(vii)  The approximate percentage of interests held was calculated on the basis of
8,758,880,988 ordinary shares of the Company in issue.

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other interest recorded in the
register that is required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2018.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information of Directors are as follows:

- The annual remuneration of Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart,
the Chairman and executive Director, has been adjusted to
HK$2,160,000;

- The annual remuneration of Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan, the
executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
has been adjusted to HK$2,400,000; and

- Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, an independent non-executive Director, has
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Affluent
Partners Holdings Limited with effect from 13 September 2018.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 54 to 68 of this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by Messrs. KPMG.

Messrs. KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG
as independent auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION

Corporate Governance Code

The Group strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs of its businesses
and the best interests of its stakeholders as the Board believes that
effective governance is essential to the maintenance of the Group's
competitiveness and to its healthy growth. The Company has adopted
and applied the principles of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules. The Company periodically reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure its continuous compliance with the CG
Code. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in compliance
with the applicable code provisions of the CG Code for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and, where appropriate, the applicable
recommended best practices of the CG Code, save and except for the
following deviations:

Code Provision A.4.1

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
During the period under review, all non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific
term. They were, however, subject to the requirements of retirement
and re-election at least once every three years at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) and code provision A.4.2 of
the CG Code. As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
were taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices were no less exacting than those in the code provisions of
the CG Code. Furthermore, Mr. Lee Chi Hin, Jacob has been appointed
as a non-executive Director for a term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2019.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings. During the period under
review, an independent non-executive Director was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company as he had other business
engagements.
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Code Provision C.1.2

Under code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, management should
provide all members of the board with monthly updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties under
Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules. During the period
under review, the management of the Company did not provide
monthly updates to all members of the Board as required by the
code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, as all the executive Directors
were involved in the daily operations of the Group and were fully
aware of the performance, position and prospects of the Company,
and the management of the Company had provided to all Directors
(including, non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors) quarterly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient details prior to the regular board meetings. In addition,
the management of the Company had provided all members of the
Board, in a timely manner, updates on any material changes to the
performance, position and prospects of the Company and sufficient
background or explanatory information for matters brought before the
Board.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All members of the Board as at 26 March 2019 have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart and Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan; one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Lee Chi Hin, Jacob; and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, Mr.
Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr. Chiu Wai On.

Number of
Directors
EFEAH

6 Executive

5 Director

WITES
4
3
2
1
0

Gender Designation Ethnicity
1471 Fe R NS

The Directors have brought a balance of valuable and diversified
business and professional expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board for the efficient and effective management
of the Company’s business.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Information of Directors” in this annual report
which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications.

Relationship amongst Directors
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart is the uncle of Mr. Cheng Ming Kit
(who resigned from the Board on 13 April 2018).

Save as aforesaid, the Board members do not have any financial,

business, family or other material and/or relevant relationships with
each other.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which sets
out the approach to diversify the Board. The Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional and industrial experience, skills, knowledge,
length of service, and any other factors that the Board might consider
relevant and applicable. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has set the measurable objectives based
on gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience and skills and knowledge for the implementation of Board
diversity of the Company.

The Nomination Committee and the Board will review the Policy,
on regular basis, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may
be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Having reviewed the Policy and taken into account the measurable
objectives, the Nomination Committee and the Board considered that
the Board’s composition has complied with the requirements of the
Policy during the Year.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and collectively responsible for promoting success of the Company
by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board also
formulates objectives, overall corporate strategies and business
plans, and oversees the financial and management performance of
the Group. Day-to-day functions and authorities are delegated to
the management, which include the implementation of objectives,
strategies and plans adopted by the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. There are established procedures
for the Directors upon reasonable request, to seek independent advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Corporate governance functions

It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s
circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are in place to
achieve the Company’s corporate governance objectives.

The duties of the Board performing corporate governance functions
under the CG Code include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (in any) applicable to employees and
Directors of the Company; and

5. to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance.

Number of Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year for the
reviewing and approval of the Company’s financial and operating
performance, as well as the consideration and approval of the overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Apart from the regular
board meetings, the Board met on other occasions where necessary.
Throughout the Year, Directors also participate in the consideration
and approval of routine and operational matters of the Company by
way of circulating resolutions.

During the Year, the Board held four regular meetings. To facilitate
maximum attendance of the Directors and to provide opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for the Board meetings, notices of
regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days
before the regular meetings while reasonable notice is generally given
for other meetings. Meeting agenda together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are normally given to all Directors
no less than 3 days prior to each Board meeting to enable them to
make informed decisions.
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Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Company’s general meetings
and the regular Board meetings held during the Year are set out

below:

TRERME

ARBRAFERBITZIBMRAGRERES
EERIEFTHREBAFBHINM T

Meetings attended/held

EBLEEEBTRE
Annual
Board General
Meeting Meeting
EEg MRRBEE
Name of Director EENS = e
(Note) (Note)
(B 5E) (Mt 5E)

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart B0 5 8 ot £ 7/7 1/1
Mr. Zhang Kun SRS N/A N/A

(resigned on 9 February 2018) (R=ZF—-NFZHNHFF) i A i A
Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan Bfox B AE 717 11
Non-executive Director EHITES
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit B AR A S A N/A N/A

(resigned on 13 April 2018) (R=ZF—-NFWHH+=HEE) T~ A T3 A
Independent non-executive Directors BYkHITES
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter T G %k A&

(deceased on 11 March 2019) (R=ZFE—NF=A+—HEEH) 6/7 0/1
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BREETE 77 171
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SRE L& 77 11
Mr. Chiu Wai On BEZEYE 717 1/1

The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings a

Director was entitled to attend during his tenure as a Director during the year

of 2018.

To further maximise the contribution from non-management Directors,
a separate meeting between the Chairman and independent non-
executive Directors was held in December 2018 to address business

and related issues of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") are held
by Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart and Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly established and

defined.
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The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and is accountable
to the Board ultimately. The Chairman takes the lead to encourage
Directors to make active contribution to the Board’s affairs and ensure
that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.

The CEO represents the management of the Company and is
accountable to the Board. His main responsibilities include overseeing
the implementation of the Group’s strategies, objectives and policies,
and monitoring day-to-day management of the Group's businesses
and operations as well as the operating and financial results of the
Group's businesses.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The number of independent
non-executive Directors on the Board was four and meets the one-
third requirements under the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the current independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Chi Yuen, Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr. Chiu Wai On, of their
independence pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company considers all of them to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The Board retains the functions for the selection and approval of
candidates to become Board members. Under the Bye-laws, all
Directors who are appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. In
addition, one-third of the Directors, who have been longest on the
Board since their last election, must retire from office by rotation but
then be eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting of the
Company. As such, every Director is subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

INDUCTION, INFORMATION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointment to the Board, Director(s) will receive an induction
package covering the general understanding of the Group and its
businesses and operations. Meetings will also be arranged with
the Company’s external legal adviser on directors’ legal role and
responsibilities.
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All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. Timely updates on the
Group's financial performance, businesses and developments are also
provided to the Directors. They also have full and timely access to
information on the Group and independent professional advice at all
times whenever deemed necessary.

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional development
(the “CPD") to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
During the Year, the Company encouraged all Directors to attend
training courses, seminars or conferences which were relevant to their
respective duties and responsibilities at the Company’s expenses, and
provided relevant materials and updates for their reading. According
to the records available to the Company, the Directors participated in
the following CPD programmes during the Year:

TRERME

PMEESEHREEZEEMBHEN  ER
ROl 2EREE  EXNSERFERH
AEBPHBRR  XHRBEROKHBE
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Type of Trainings
1% 3 38 B
Attending or
watching webcast

training programme Reading
courses, seminars  materials or
or conferences updates
HERBEBRAK
BEEHEEIRE - HEZERN
Directors - EHERER BHEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart (Chairman) BRI L E(FE) v v
Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan Bfox BT A
(Chief Executive Officer) (7T A4 %) v v
Independent non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter F G %k A
(deceased on 11 March 2019) (R-—F—SF
= A+ —HBEH) v
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PRERLE v v
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SiRE L& v 4
Mr. Chiu Wai On BREZEE v v
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BOARD COMMITTEES

There are currently 4 committees of the Board (each the
“Committee”) to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Committees are established with defined written terms
of reference setting out their respective authorities and duties,
which are available on the Company’s website. The Committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chan Chi
Yuen, an independent non-executive Director, with the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, one non-executive Director,
Mr. Lee Chi Hin, Jacob, and two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr. Chiu Wai On as members.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and the senior management of the Company.
Details of the authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee convened one meeting
to, inter alias, review the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. Members and
their attendance are as follows:

EEXZ8E
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VHEBEEEAT CBESRE  HISEE®
ZEERBSE (AINARTHLER) - Z8
CESTERERNBITRSZBSE Tk
AEERT JREZBRAERBIEEE
B BRAARQEHKE -

FMEES
FNZEeRRHBYUFATETREE
EEREETEIE KEREFSIRBHRBE
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NEd FHFMEZESRBEIBE ZF
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RAFEE  FMHEZE@AR - Re@mNU(H
PEEBE)BEATEERARAGRERE
FF NS - RERBFERXEWT:

Meetings

attended/held

Name of Director EENA BERUEBTRE

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (Chairman) bR IR L (EE) 11

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart 5 7 %8 ¢ A 11
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter F Gl % A

(deceased on 11 March 2019) (RZE—NF=H+—HEEM) 1/1

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SIRELE 1/1

Mr. Chiu Wai On BEREE 171

The remuneration of the members of senior management of the
Company by band for the Year is set out below:

RAT S RERANEBRARFERH B E N
T

Number of persons

Range of Remuneration E | AE
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,0017% 7t 21,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,0007% 7t £1,500,000/% 7T 1
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chan Chi Yuen,
an independent non-executive Director, with the Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart, one non-executive Director,
Mr. Lee Chi Hin, Jacob and two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie and Mr. Chiu Wai On as members.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, amongst other things,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
considering the re-appointment of Directors, reviewing the Board's
diversity policy and relevant implementation of the diversity policy,
and making recommendations to the Board in respect of the aforesaid
matters. Details of the authority and duties of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

By such policy, the selection of candidates are based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates brings to the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee convened one meeting
to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board.
Members and their attendance are as follows:

TEE

$Et|:

REEESE
RAZEEHERBBUFATESTRTE
TERETERE KEREFSIRBIHBBE
£ RBFBTEFEEHAERMBIEBYL
ERTEEHREEERBEREE -

REZESGAEE(ATBE)HFNEEXNRE
EFEKEZRERAL ZREREE %
REZEREZTIEREEZTIEBRERZ
HHEERARL LA EERNESSFELER
2E o FHRAREeREMBAZFE
ARARRBIEER] -

EZBERET BEAEZEZE -ZRJNZ TR

BRAEE  BREFSERMER - F& XL
RBEES HELR B ABARR

BFEH BREAEZENREMARESFSE
RENERMAERTE

RAFE REZBEGAF —XREH  UE
MEZe2RBE RER EAREKEZT
£ REREEZHFERBMT :

Meetings

attended/held

Name of Director EEnA EELEEEBTRE

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (Chairman) BRERLE(ERE) 1/1

Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart 5 7 %8 5t A 11
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter F SR 5 A

(deceased on 11 March 2019) (R-ZFE— N F=HA+—HEEH) 0/1

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SRELE 1/1

Mr. Chiu Wai On HMEZFTE 11
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chiu Wai On, and
Mr. Lee Chi Hin, Jacob, Mr. Chan Chi Yuen and Mr. Yung Chun Fai,
Dickie. All of them possess the relevant qualifications, experiences and
skills to contribute to the financial, governance, internal controls and
risk management of the Company.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
consolidated financial statements and reports and considering any
significant or unusual financial items; overseeing the relationship
between the Company and the external auditor; and reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial controls and
risk management and internal control systems. Details of the authority
and duties of the Audit Committee are on the Company’s website.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings, inter alia,
to review the 2017 annual results and the 2018 interim results of the
Group and to review the Group’s internal control system including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. In
addition, the Audit Committee met the external auditor once without
the presence of the management to discuss any areas of concerns.
Members and their attendance are as follows:

EREES
ERZESREHBELEERETER K
£ REHABHEBER KRk 8
ARRZHE - Ea AREELERER
BERER

ERZEGCIZRBEREHEAMK
BERMBRELBRZTAERAITRY B S
HERARAEINBZBEZBE: Mg
AARR M EE - T IR K AR B 1
CRERHAREN - FRAERZESRER
BEZHE AIRARABUEER -

RAFE  BERZESARMAEHE  U(H
FEBE)EMNASBE T —+FrFEEE
R-_T-N\FZHhH%XE EHAKEZR
MEZHE BEAKESA LY BER
BeecBRARE BIZERMAER - It
S BREEERIINEZHBMERTEAR
RENBRATET—REE - JwmAESE
EHIEE - KB RWEFZHFEREMT

Meetings

attended/held

Name of Director EEHS BEHE BITRY

Mr. Chiu Wai On (Chairman) BERZRE(FE) 2/2
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter F Gl % A

(deceased on 11 March 2019) (R-—E—NF=F+—HEH) 1/2

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen EEREE 2/2

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie SIRBEE 2/2

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 30 August 2017 and is
currently chaired by the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu,
Stewart with the CEO, Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan as member. The
executive Directors involved in operations of the Group and are fully
aware of the performance, position, and prospects of the Company.

The main duties of the Executive Committee include overseeing the
general management and day-to-day operations of the Company,
monitoring the execution of the Company’s business strategy as
approved by the Board, approving any changes to the scope of
authority delegated to the senior management and any other matters
specifically delegated to it by the Board.
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J/L\"ﬁqséxﬁd:

During the Year, the Executive Committee held sixteen meetings. WAFE  PITZESHAM T NS K
Members and their attendance are as follows: EREEXREOT:
Meetings
attended/held
Name of Director EEREER HEEBITRE
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart (Chairman) B8R 8 2 A () 16/16
Mr. Zhang Kun ok 22 S A N/A
(ceased as a member on 9 February 2018) (RZZFB—NF-_ANATHRKE) i@
Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan ok Bk & 16/16

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and other applicable regulatory requirements,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
understandable annual and interim reports, inside information
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Directors such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval.

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow projections prepared by management based on estimations
of future revenue from sales of crude oil, future production costs,
committed and planned capital expenditure and the availability of
financing, which cover a period of twelve months from the reporting
period end date. They are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due and committed future capital expenditure within the next
twelve months from the end of the current reporting period.

BEREFX

B 7% BE ¥R
EERRAEERUEGEUBRE AT - A
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B HmEN VBN - LAFLERE B R
%ZTEE‘EE/\HX:KF&%EE%W BrE K
SRR o

EFEeRARBLETRAREMEERE
EREEIEME BEWRAIERNFREP
HHE ABBEEAEREMKESEE -

EEECREFREMBNEEREMN U
FEEEERABARAPHERRELAE
A U RREEFGHE -

EREGEVMBRRZABERAUEER
EFRCENEEBRBEHRKIHER M2
3o RREEMAK AERFEHERAIER
ARBEFHNGEMAERNRSRIERN
E%Hﬂ?ﬁﬂai&iﬁﬂiﬁ”‘ﬁiﬁ—%—ﬂﬂ ° 1K
ERRAEEREARALEEESRNINB
RRERNEMBEE ARBRRERAREST
ARTZEANEARI M -
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Save as disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires, they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events of conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor, Messrs KPMG
("KPMG"), are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages
86 to 93 to this annual report.

Auditor’s remuneration

The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature and service
charges of the non-audit services performed by KPMG and considered
that such services have no adverse effect on the independence of their
audit works.

A summary of audit and non-audit services provided by KPMG for the
Year and their corresponding remuneration is as follows:

BRAREMBRERMABAEEEI BES
ER—UAEERRAAAN 2B LMHEE
BETERL NANEBEMAEHARFZ
FEKERIBREAER ZABEES
ATHBARE -

SNEZEBMEFSHEAMEHA(EER])
ZHREEFHRANFRFEGAEEFEIBA B
TIZHENRE

¥ B AT B =
ENZECERNEEFHETIHELR
BZHEERRGEKE RAEVEEZTIEZ
BYMYEEXEAETE -

RAFE - 2FEEH 2FZRIFEZRS
MEBAREEREBMEMOT

Amount
Nature of services i R = ME
HK$'000
FAE T
Audit service for the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ-_ZT—\F+_A=+—HILFE
2 EBZR 2,550
Others (including review of interim results, review H(BEEMHHES S F%
of preliminary announcement of annual results, BT RE BBBAREMIFERZ
tax consultancy and other non-audit services) AR 75) 687
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL BEREERANIPE =
CONTROLS
The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the risk ZEZeMEEFHEERAERRREELNA

management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
its effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and
sound risk management and internal control systems to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and the assets of
the Group. The Audit Committee has been delegated by the Board to
review the risk management and internal control systems.
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Procedures have been designed to (i) safeguard assets from
inappropriate use; (i) maintain proper accounting records; (iii) ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations; and (iv)
manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. To safeguard
confidentiality, information access is managed on a need-to-know
basis. Use of computers, especially access to the internet and e-mail
systems, is similarly regulated with a view towards security.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
provide a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that material
misstatement of the financial statements are prevented, potential
interruption of the Group’s management system is detected, and
risks existing in the course of arriving at the Group’s objectives are
properly managed. It can only manage, rather than eliminate, all risks
of material misstatement, errors, loss or fraud.

The Group maintains its internal audit function through its outsourcing
to an independent advisory firm. During the Year, the Group engaged
an independent advisory firm to conduct reviews over the Group's
internal control systems in order to assist the Board in reviewing its
effectiveness. The reviews, normally performed once a year, covered
all material controls, in the areas of finance, operations, compliance
and risk management, with a focus on the core business of the
Group (i.e. the upstream business in Argentina). Relevant report
from the independent advisory firm was presented to and reviewed
by the Audit Committee and the Board. Based on the results of
internal audit reviews for the Year and the assessment of the Audit
Committee thereon, no significant irregularities or deficiency in the risk
management and internal control systems were drawn to the attention
of the Audit Committee, but appropriate recommendations for further
enhancing the internal control systems have been taken. The Board
therefore considers that the Company has maintained appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Lam Hon Hing resigned as the Company Secretary
of the Company on 30 June 2018. Ms. Lam, Katrina Lai Kuen was
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on the same
date.

The Company Secretary directly reports to the Board. Minutes of all
meetings of the Board and the Committees, recording sufficient details
of matters considered and decisions reached, are kept by the Company
Secretary, and are open for inspection by the Directors upon request.

For the Year, Ms. Lam, Katrina Lai Kuen confirmed that she has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Communications with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications
with the Company’s Shareholders and investors, and maintains
ongoing dialogues with them through various channels. The formal
communication channels between the Company and the Shareholders
are announcements, circulars and interim and annual reports. All
Shareholders” communications are available on the Company’s website.
During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents. An up-to-date consolidated version of the Bye-laws is also
available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings of
the Company which provide a useful forum for the Shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The Board members and management
of the Company are available to answer Shareholders’ questions
and explain the procedures for demanding and conducting a poll, if
necessary.

Shareholders’ rights

Under the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the
paid-up capital of the Company at the date of deposit of written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, can at all times
request a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
addressing specific issues of the Company within 21 days from the
date of deposit of such requisition to the Company’s head office
address in Hong Kong.

The Group recognises Shareholders’ rights in exercising control
proportionate to their equity ownership. The Company has been
conducting voting at the general meetings by way of poll, which is
conducted and scrutinised by the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong. Procedures for conducting a poll are explained by the
Chairman of the Board in the general meetings prior to the taking of
the poll. Poll results are announced and posted on the websites of
both the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Shareholders’ enquiries and proposals

Shareholders may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, in person or by post. Contact details are set out in the
“Information for Stakeholders” section to this annual report.

Enquiries and proposals by Shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary at the Hong Kong

head office address of the Company.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e 7K B2 R A R AR

R R

HERRzZBE

EFEERAARABRREREEEETF
RERFBAUNLKBEUGBZEEZE -1
HFoBARTHEFEREDAQRAERR
ZBAZIEXNBEBRE - FAEBRRBAS
ARARBBUEEH - RAFE - ARFAE
EXHHBEEZES -  AAFKIHOAFAMA L
BRAC LHREARAEEERG REEM
BRAB M@ -

BRREGB2ERRAS REREMHRA
EXeXBBRAZERNRTE - ARAE
ZEKENEEEEMERRZER I
RBEEFEEBEERLETERBRERR
=3

% SR R

BREAFRMAR REZEEBRTEESHK
RAWEZARFAE T DR ARNRB R BK
ZI0%BEARZBR - JIEBEZ2ZBEREARR
AEBEMER MU 2 HEF21HR - BER
EREZSARMREHIAREG  UERARQ
AR EEHE -

AEERFBRRITERELRERA EERE
N ARRNERAE LZE
ERRNETRR  AAARR Z2EFBRD B
FPEREREOBRETRGYH - EFES T FENETT
RARAT - MBERAEGLBBETREZRE
FFo RRERDINARBREABR S KM
BEFMERRBIZBUERMHINES -

BRREARESR
BRTREEIHRERIRAUBE S
MAAT S EBRABEERS RS EEE
BERATEN o B&SHBRAE B
HAER 5 o

BREEFEEIZEANREATUNER
FABFEARBZEB@RER ML - X
HARMERE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R -HERERHKS

THE SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD OF THIS
REPORT

The Group hereby presents its 2018 ESG report, highlighting its
Environmental, Social, and Governance (the “ESG") performance, with
disclosure made by reference to the ESG Reporting Guide as described
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group is principally engaged in the exploration, development,
and operation of oil and gas projects. In accordance with reporting
principle and materiality assessment of the Group’'s ESG aspects, it
was identified that the subsidiary, High Luck Group Limited (“HLGL")
was a key business for disclosure in this reporting year, by virtue of
its carbon footprint in relation to that of the Group. This ESG report
covers the Environmental and Social performance of the HLGL business
operations in Argentina for the year ended 31 December 2018, unless
otherwise stated.

Additionally, the Group is involved the business of commodities
trading, via its subsidiary, Grand Rich Trading Limited. For 2018 ESG
reporting purposes, this was excluded from the ESG reporting scope
on the grounds that the business of commodities trading had limited
consequential environmental and social impacts.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

During the year, the Group engaged in regular meetings and events to
communicate with various stakeholders to obtain information, relevant
comments, and feedback from the participants to understand their
expectation in the development of the Group’s business portfolio and
sustainability.

In order to identify the most significant aspects of the Group for ESG
reporting purposes, key stakeholders including investors, shareholders
and employees have been involved to identify the areas of attention,
to facilitate the Group in setting the overall direction of this report.
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The Group is planning to further involve and engage its stakeholders
in an effort to further improve the usefulness of its reporting. Our
concession partners are also periodically engaged in UTE operational
committee meetings for their latest views.

In general, stakeholders may locate ESG information through the
following channels:

o Annual general meeting and notices

o Annual reports, interim report, consolidated financial statements
and announcements

o Corporate website

° Investors briefings

o Notice and Circulars

o Bilateral contracts and supplier agreements
o Code of conduct

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its Environmental,
Social and Governance initiatives via email at info@nt-energy.com.

THE GROUP’S MISSION AND VISION ON
SUSTAINABILITY

Mission

As an oil and gas exploration and production company, the Group
operates under the ethos of ‘Health & Safety First’ by adopting best
practices to ensure the health and safety of its employees, contractors,
customers and communities. The Group strives to continuously improve
its health & safety management practices with the goal of achieving
an injury-free workplace.

The Group is committed to ensuring all its plant and equipment
are operationally safe and free of hazards. Furthermore, the Group
is committed to ensuring its employees are properly trained in safe
working practices and that they have a clear understanding of their
responsibilities for taking positive steps to improve health and safety.
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Vision

The Group is committed to its Corporate Social Responsibility, Health
and Safety, Environmental Protection, Human Resources and Labour
Practices, and Community Involvement and Sustainable Value Creation
policies when conducting business activities wherever it operates in.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1.  Environmental Impact and Legal Compliance
As an oil and gas exploration and production company,
the Group is well-aware of the impacts and potential
risks that the its field operations pose to the environment
and the surrounding ecosystem. The Group adopts
an Environmental Management System (EMS) in its
management of the environmental risks arising from its
operations. The Group strictly complies with all relevant
environmental laws and regulations in each jurisdictions in
which the Group operates in.

(i) Type of Emissions
During the year, the Group’s main emission sources
were from diesel fuel, electricity, water, and paper
consumption. With regards to emissions, our
business is strictly regulated under the national laws
and regulations of Argentina.

2. Greenhouse Gas Emission
There were 925.2 tonnes (2017: 999.1 tonnes) of carbon
dioxide equivalent (tCO,-eq) greenhouse gases (mainly
carbon dioxide, methane, and nitrous oxide) produced
by the Group in the year. The Group’s gross annual
production was 218,694 barrels (bbl) (2017: 295,815 bbl)
of crude oil. The calculated carbon intensity of scope 1,
2, and 3 combined was 0.0042 tCO,-eq/bbl (2017: 0.0034
tCO,-eq/bbl). Our HLGL operation in Argentina accounted
for most of the Group’s carbon emissions during the year.
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Due to Scope 3 emissions from paper consumption and wastewater
treatment being determined as less than 0.5% of total greenhouse
gas emission from the 2016 reporting, these items have been excluded
for reporting purposes since then, by virtue of their insignificance.

Scope of Greenhouse

P P 46 3R R R R BE 7K B 3 #O 80 B 3BE U E
BRI _ZE-R"EREPEERBINA
EM0.5% At %FHEREELMAER
EORFBRERSZI

Gas Emissions Emission Sources Emission Total Emission
BREREHEREE BB ARR HERE AR HNRE
(in tonnes of CO,eq) (in percentage)
(CO,eq M 21) (Bm k)
2017 2017
—T—+tF —T—+tF
Scope 1
g E1
Direct Emission Consumption of Diesel fuel by the
BERPER Group and its Contractors Fleets
(176,300 litres)
REBKEABENSEMEF
(176,300 7t)
Scope 2
gE2
Indirect Emission Consumption of Purchased Electricity 91.25% 92.93%
Al & BE X (1,518,000 kWh)
BT B8 E 1087 (1,518,000 F FLBF)
Scope 3
gE3
Other Indirect Emission Business air travel
H th ) £ BE K 721 75 i 22 IR AT
Total
&t
Notes: B 7

The calculation methodology of CO, emission of diesel fuel in Argentina is based on the
International Standard.

Combined margin emission factor (average) of 0.518 t-CO,/MWh was used for purchased
electricity in Argentina.

Emissions from business air travel were calculated using online tool provided by
International Civil Aviation Organization.
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3. Emission Sources

(i)

(ii)

Fuel Consumption

The Group utilises vans, pickup trucks and cars for
transportation. All motor vehicles operate using
diesel fuel. The Group’s annual consumption of
diesel was 15,520 litres. When selecting vehicles, the
Group considers factors such as safety, reliability,
maintenance cost, fuel efficiency, in addition to the
primary determining factor of cost.

During 2018, the Group’'s own diesel powered
drilling rig was deployed in the exploratory drilling of
the HLG.St.LB.x-2001 well in the Chirete Concession.
A total of 136,000 litres (2017: 132,000 litres) of
diesel was consumed for that campaign and also for
the year.

Air emission including nitrogen oxides (NO)), sulphur
oxides (SO)) and respiratory suspended particles (PM)
from fuel combustion of all vehicles operated by the
Group contributed the following: 11.95 kg of NOx
emission, 0.24 kg of SOx emission and 0.88 kg of
PM.

Electricity Consumption

Electricity consumption by the Group was 1,640,000
Kilowatt-hour (kWh) (2017: 1,778,000 kWh), with an
energy intensity of 7.4991 kWh/bbl (2017: 5.1338
kWh/bbl). To achieve the energy use efficiency
initiative, the Group encourages its staff to
minimize energy consumption where practicable. For
example, the Group encourages the switching off of
unnecessary lighting and electronic appliances when
not required or not in use. Furthermore, the Group
has a procurement policy of purchasing energy
efficient equipment.

3. BEERIR

(i)

(ii)
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(iii)

(iv)

)

Water Consumption

Water consumption by the Group was 23,191 cubic
meters (m?) (2017: 25,299 m?3). The Group supplies its
water from nearby existing wells, and the electricity
consumed to pump the underground water is
converted to GHG emission which is included in
Scope 2.

Paper and Packaging Material Consumption
Paper consumption was insignificant to the Group'’s
operation. No packaging material is used during the
production of crude oil, as this is stored in large
oil tanks until customers purchase, whereupon it is
delivered by oil tanker trucks.

Hazardous Waste Produced

During the process of oil production, hazardous
waste may be generated from possible minor
spillage, replacement of spare parts and lubrication
oil, discarded gloves and other materials. A total
of 4.63 tonnes of hazardous waste was generated
during the reporting year (2017: 4.56 tonnes).
Preventative measures adopted by the Group include
the following:

Scheduled inspection and maintenance of plant
and equipment

o Re-injection of water from oil-water separation
process into fluid disposal wells

o Transportation of contaminated water to
appropriate treating facilities

o Training and education of employees

o Conduct pre-job briefing

o Spillage prevention programs and remedial
action plans

o Close supervision

o Continuous improvement plans
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The hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
separated at origin. For hazardous waste, the
treatment, collection and final disposal is managed
by qualified professional handlers.

(vi) Non-hazardous Waste Produced
During the year, the Argentina operation generated
42.28 tonnes of organic and inorganic waste
(2017: 50.44 tonnes). Inorganic waste includes
plastic and glass, whilst organic waste was mainly
the by-product generated from the site catering
facility. The Group provides directive procedures
for segregation and classification of non-hazardous
waste to aid recycling initiatives. For non-hazardous
waste treatment, the organic waste is buried and
composted, while the inorganic waste is incinerated.

(vii) Industrial Wastewater Produced
The Palmar Largo production facility operates a
wastewater treatment plant, managing an annual
discharge of 10,976 m? of wastewater (2017: 11,239
m?3). Wastewater is chlorinated in its final treatment
and accumulated in a maturation lagoon from where
it evaporates.

At Chirete, a total 9,000 m* of wastewater was
discharged from third-party contracted treatment
plant, restaurant and catering services. These were
collected and deposited in a controlled environment
within Tartagal municipality by certified handlers.

4. Environmental Conservation Initiatives
Sustainability initiatives and green culture permeates
through the whole Group. We strives to operate in an
environmentally friendly manner by adopting practicable
green office practices including:

o Use of recycled paper

o Printers configured to print double sided by default
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Return of used printer and copier ink toner cartridge
to manufacturer for recycling and reuse

Switching-off lights, computers and office equipment
when not in use
Replacement of energy efficient alternatives

Adjustment of air conditioning settings to reduce
power consumption

For replaced furniture and computer equipment, the
Group's practice is to first offer these items to employees
for personal use, before it is disposed or recycled.

B. SOCIAL

1. Employment and Labour Practices

(i)

Employment

The Group fully recognises its employees are a critical
asset of the entity. Therefore, the policy of the Group
is to hire and retain employees with professional
skills that enable the Group to achieve its strategic
objectives. This is based on the following recruitment
principles:

o Respect and trust at all levels, in all
circumstances without exception

o Transparency and honesty in professional
relationship
a. Effective communication

b. Emphasis of transparency

o Willingness to cooperate and help others
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Recruitment and compensation is based on
qualification, experience, skills and performance.
The Group offers competitive compensation and
benefits packages in line with the local market
rates for comparable roles and responsibilities in the
industry. The Company’s hiring practice is to recruit
locally, with the exception of certain key managerial,
technical or professional posts, where it may not be
possible or appropriate to fill locally.

Promotion and Performance Evaluation
Promotion and salary increase, outside of the
Group's discretionary annual inflationary increase,
is subject to a responsibilities and performance
evaluation. An individual’s promotion and
remuneration is closely correlated to their job
responsibilities and performance. The Group
operates a policy of internal promotion, whenever
possible.

The Group ensures that its employees are evaluated
on their job performance through the application
of objective measures. The human resources
department coordinates and verify the performance
of each employee, in relation to mutually agreed
objectives established at the beginning of each
appraisal year. The performance evaluation is carried
out once a year by the employee’s immediate
supervisor.

Dismissal

The Group may at any time, terminate an employee
when his or her behaviour or attitude is not
satisfactory, or does not meet the performance
standards established/necessary for the position. In
all cases, termination procedures will strictly adhere
to minimum requirements established by the Law in
the Labour Code or relevant local laws.

Employee Turnover Rate

During the vyear, there were 4 (2017: 5) staff
turnover to report. These persons left on amicable
terms and for reasons of personal development or
relocation.

BEMFMARE - &8
REMKRAR/EE - KK
4R B 0 F B
BHNEE  TEEARARA
B AL N BB RO E T 50K
FoRRANERLT AR
EREMA - HETREE
EHERANEE BRI
THARBATNEIEE
BERMABREXABR
iz AR SN -

EHREBFIE
AEEEFRRBRKRBE
e VNN = I E = D
BFREMNBERKRRF
BmE - @R EENE I
EmEaRErTEERE
ARERBEVEE X EE
ATERTERARE T
BUR ©

AEENEBE®RRKRR
BREEBM TIERRAEIT
e ANERIH T FFF
EFVREBMNEIRVE
R A E R EERR
BERLER RERE - KR
AETBEEINERE LR
BEET R

HE e

i B TEVFTRRAERE RE -
ARERHEBUMATRSE T
SRR E ORI T A
BRATHETRE  &IER
RREEREETHREER K
5 18R] 7 {E {7 B AR 4% LE (R
fRREME

EIRAE

RER - REAZET(ZF
—tEF:5R)RKZE
BETEM@AEMERESLA
B DA R AT 16 TR B o

Annual Report 2018 ¢ —ZT — )\ FE E

77



Workplace Rights and Competitive
Compensation

HLGL operates in accordance with the Argentine
Labour Contract laws regarding salaries, working
hours, overtime and benefits. In addition, the
company offers medical benefits and life insurance
coverage equivalent to OSDE 210 medical coverage.

Equal Opportunity

The Group is proud to be an equal opportunity
employer and believes in the fair treatment of all
existing and prospective employees, regardless of
their age, gender, marital status, family status,
disability, pregnancy, nationality, ethnicity, sexual
orientation, religion and culture, or any other
discrimination prohibited by applicable law.

Furthermore, the Group does not discriminate
against or deprive of any opportunities in respect
of recruitment, training and development, job
advancement, and compensation and benefits.
The Group’'s Codes of Ethic adopts a strict zero
tolerance approach to any forms of discrimination or
harassment in the workplace.
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Workforce by Age Distribution in 2018
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(i)

As of 31 December 2018, there were 38 (2017: 41)
full-time employees in HLGL, across its Salta and
Palmar Largo locations. 10 (2017: 10) female and 28
(2017: 31) male employees.

RZZE—NF+—A=+—
A+ =& (& M & & Palmar
Largo it [&) B384 = % 18
B 108X MEET (=T —
+F:108)R28EFHE
T(ZZE—+tF:314)

18-25 26-35 36-45 46-55 56 and above

Employee's Age Distribution EEE@ 2 18-255 26-355 36-455; 46-555  S6EmRM L
2018 i Sl 1 13 12 8 4
2017 “EtF 1 13 12 8 7
Female Male

Employee’s Gender Distribution B &5l 5 Z B
2018 —E-)N\F 10 28
2017 —E—+LF 10 31

Workplace and Corporate Communication TIE# B R FBEH

The Group adopts an “open door” policy to
encourage open communication, feedback, and
discussion with its employees. Through this “open
door” policy, the Group aims to create a culture of
mutual trust, respect and understanding, to foster
strong, cooperative working relationships. Routine
emails and regular office-wide meetings are held
to circulate information and provide updates to all
employees.

Health and Safety
Health and Safety (“H&S”) is fundamental to the
Group given nature of the business it is engaged in.

Laws and Regulation Compliance

Critical to all oil and gas operations is rigorous and
robust H&S. The Group endeavours to adopt best
practices in health and safety management and
is strictly in compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations governing H&S, in the jurisdictions it
operates in.

@ii)
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A policy of open communication is actively
encouraged whereby employees can raise and share
any H&S concerns that they may encounter, with
their team and management.

Health and Safety Measures

The Group is committed to providing a safe and
healthy working environment for its employees, and
continuously promotes a strong H&S culture and
mindset. Examples of these measures include:

o Internal employees and external parties and
subject to H&S orientation at the beginning of
their employment or engagement

o All visitors of field operations being subject to
safety briefing of the site

o Dedicated H&S specialists on site responsible
for performing risk assessments, and
developing safe working practices

o On a daily basis, and prior to the
commencement of field operations, H&S
briefings and planning meetings are conducted
with participation by all employees including
management team

o On a weekly basis, employees participate in
H&S review meetings to discuss any important
H&S events

o On a quarterly basis, all field and office staff
receive free health check service

o Dedicated 24 hours’ nurse arrangements
on site to deal with any first aid or medical
emergency
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(iii)

Road Transportation Safety Measures
o Employees are trained and encouraged in the
art of defensive driving

o Company vehicles are installed with GPS
monitoring systems to track journey and any
inappropriate or unsafe driving behaviours

o The Group’s driving policy restrict employees
to only drive during daylight hours, where
possible, and to consider the necessity of any
journey, before embarking

Safety Incident

The Group monitors its H&S performance via a
number of metrics, including injury and fatal incident
rates, injury free work hours, and sick days.

Contractors are also subject to the same stringent
Group H&S standards. Proof of adequate H&S
training and certification are requested before the
Group engages and endorses a contractor to operate
on its exploration or production facilities.

Occupational Health and Safety Data Bi¥ %R & &

Work related fatality AIRTRE
Work injury cases >3 days
Work injury cases <3 days

Lost days due to work injury

Development and Training

The human resources department coordinates
training activities according to the business needs
identified in the staff performance evaluation, or
when the position requires. All training requirements,
follow the conventional training procedure set out
in the Human Resources Policies.
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The Group offers external training courses as well
internal on-the job training and peer coaching.
Example of courses attended by employees during
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RE R HHME IR ERIE
NEBERIF I R FEHE
RBEFEANREBZ M

the reporting year included language skills, business
administration, leadership, conflict management,

REBRRAESTRE BE
B -BETH - BARE

accounting, safety, project management, oil and gas B-gi %2 BEE

engineering related subjects.

A total of 431 hours was spent on external training »n

in the year.

Training Data
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Training Hours, Staffs
Training Hours, Staffs
Training Hours, Middle Management
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—REBT ZHIEH
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Training Hours, Senior Management = A& 72 B 2 1 3l 5 &

Total Training Hours

BEME IR
Average Training Hours Per Employee &% 8 2 F 1% I8

Sum of Training Hours by Employee Category in 2018
R=B— /\F 2R B BRI 5 e B

Staff —AKE T
189

Senior Management
BREEE
16

(vi) Labour Standard
Governed by fair employment practices, the Group
strictly complies with the requirements of local
Labour Laws and regulations, and strictly prohibits
the use of any child and forced labour, or any forms
of illegal labour in the Group operations.
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2.

Operating Practices

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Supply Chain Management

The Group has a standardized procurement
procedure in the selections of its suppliers and
vendors, which includes technical and commercial
evaluation.

During the year, the geographical location of HLGL's
suppliers covered 13 regions within Argentina. 42
suppliers originated from Salta (2017: 42), with
12 suppliers from Formosa (2017: 12). The Group
believes by sourcing locally, it can minimise its carbon
emission in relation to logistic. The Group’s second
largest supplier location was Buenos Aires.

Product Responsibility

Consumer Data Protection

The Group is engaged in the business of crude oil
production and sales, as governed by the terms and
conditions of the agreements with its customers.

Quality Assurance and Complaints

The quality and quantity of crude oil sold is subject
to the IRAM or ASTM international standards. The
Group received no product or service complaints in
the year.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to managing its business
without undue influence, and in an open, honest
and fair manner. All employees are required to
strictly follow the Group’s Code of Ethics to prevent
potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. Employees are regularly reminded about
the Group’s anti-corruption policies and their need
for strict adherence.
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Whistle-blowing procedures on misconduct
and malpractice (including corruption) are also
established in the Group’s Anti-corruption policy.
When a suspected case is received, the Group
undergoes investigation procedures with strict
confidentiality. The Group has established a whistle-
blowing escalation system, whereby the procedure
is to report any suspicious activities and incidences
to the whistle-blower’s immediate supervisor. If
the matter involves the immediate supervisor, then
the whistleblower is advised to report direct to
senior management. Alternatively, the matter may
be confidentiality reported via the Group’s whistle-
blowing and ethics hotline.

C. COMMUNITY

Potentially disruptive social impacts from the Group’s drilling
projects and production facilities on nearby local communities
are mitigated by maintaining open channels of communications,
with affected landowners and local communities, to develop and
maintain a harmonious co-existence.

1. Community Liaison
The Group has a dedicated community liaison officer who
works closely with any affected indigenous people. The
Group maintains regular dialogue to ensure operational
transparency and to understand and resolve any affected
communities’ concerns.

2. Community Advancement

The Group positively contributed to the standard of living
for the local indigenous communities during the year by
a number of initiatives and programs. This included free
goat vaccination, upskilling people by providing training
on electrical maintenance, and donation of materials and
basic essential tools, in order to promote and improve their
self-sustainability.

The Group also the contributed to a number of community
improvement projects, including the construction of
catering facilities at the main school, construction of fences
for farmers, and improvements at local municipality offices
and chapel.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R -HERERHKS

Additionally, in relation to the exploratory drilling at
Chirete Concession, people from local communities were
hired during the access road and drilling site construction.
They were also employed as traffic control signalers during
the rig mobilisation and demobilisation, and as roustabouts
during the drilling campaign.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS TOWARD SUSTAINABILITY
DEVELOPMENT

Going forward, the Group plans to extend its community engagement
activities and find more ways of “giving back”, by exploring how the
Group can also contribute in non-financial ways, such as volunteering,
school talks, and donating of used computer and office equipment.
For environmental initiatives, the Group is continuing to enhance its
recycle program to handle domestic waste.

CONCLUSION

The Group has conducted the ESG reporting in accordance with the
HKEx Environmental, Social, Governmental Reporting Guide (Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules), all the ESG information available for the
reporting year are included in this report. The Group is committed
to continuing the ESG reporting on a regular basis and to improve
on policies and procedures for the management, measurement and
monitoring of ESG related activities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M 1% A R

e

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of New Times Energy Corporation Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Times
Energy Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 94 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

ASSESSMENT OF IMPAIRMENT/REVERSAL
OF IMPAIRMENT OF EXPLORATION AND
EVALUATION ASSETS

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on pages 141 to 142.

The Key Audit Matter

18 M % BAD R

REELSEE

AREZFEERBERMNEXHE - &
BREAPRGEVBRERNBEERRREER
MER - SEFEHRERMNEZBEREAY
BHREAMMAERERETREE - HMATE
HELFEREHEBENESR -

BRRAEEERE RED
B a9 FE 4

1
—o

BEREEAUBRRME12REI141E 2142
BRERHBER -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRERERSRE BN EXNAERZEE
As at 31 December 2018, exploration  Our audit procedures to assess the impairment/reversal of
and evaluation assets, which totalled impairment of exploration and evaluation assets included the

HK$2,337,497,000, principally related to the
Group’s exploration rights and the exploration
and evaluation activities for the Tartagal Oriental 18 :
and Morillo Concessions (“T&M Concessions”) in

following:

BMAGHHRRTIEEERE RELENRFBEATE

Argentina. In March 2018, the Group obtained a e

decree for extending the exploration permits in the
T&M Concessions to 13 September 2019 and the
Group will file an application to the Secretary of
Energy of Province of Salta for a further extension
of the exploration permits before their expiration.
RZE-N\FE+_A=+—H FEHEEEE
Fi 48 $ETartagal Oriental F Morillo 5 5T 4 [& ([T&M
FRATRE R 1) B &) HR #E LA 2 3 PR A0 2T 1 05 B AE B B9
B R I AT {4 & EE 4818 /3 2,337,497,000/8 7T - R —
Z-N\F=R EEEEBETHERFAILTH
ZEE-NFhLAT=REEEESEERAMA
REEAFERDRICIPAFIE A —F LR
BERE -

assessing the design and implementation of key internal
controls over the preparation and review of the impairment
assessment;
HRHENESRENT A ERADEHNRFAREBE
GLACE

evaluating management’s methodology applied in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecast with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards, taking into account business changes during the
year;

2ERTEAHENER  WZEAFEEBONERE
Mo HEREEREUBABRACRERATRAN T EET
S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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The Key Audit Matter
HREXRSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ELRNMEEZEE

The carrying amounts of exploration and evaluation
assets are reviewed annually and adjusted for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. With reference to the valuation reports
issued by an independent appraisal firm, the
recoverable amount was estimated by discounting
expected cash flows to be generated by the
exploration and evaluation assets to their present
value. The preparation of a discounted cash
flow forecast involves the exercise of significant
judgement, particularly in forecasting production
volumes, crude oil prices, production costs, capital
expenditure, remaining life of the oil fields and in
determining an appropriate discount rate.
BEHHBREATIHEENEROEETES I
BREEH B R R AN AT Y B R E R ET
WERE - WMAREEAIWE BN HES
MEF AREBEESRD  K2EHFINER
AIEANGERSE  ATR@EE TSR HR
At EEELEN AR e RENREHERE
mEEHEH - FREFTBRERERATREKRA
B SRR ETEAESE  FMER  EEKA
BARXHE HERSRFSGRARETEENTRE
FE e

As at 31 December 2018, on the basis that the
extension of the exploration permits in the T&M
Concessions could be obtained, no impairment loss
was recognised or reversed for the exploration and
evaluation assets.
RZE—-—N\F+ZA=1+—H " WI&MEFTE =
EIRFTRAIE L R ERHRERTREE
MR B REEIE -

assessing the competence, capability and objectivity of
the independent appraisal firm engaged by the Group
to estimate the recoverable amounts of exploration and
evaluation assets and evaluating whether the methodology
adopted by the independent appraisal firm was consistent
with recognised industry standards;

HEEERFARVAMIGEEALQRS BRGNS
VRHERARMNBERS EXRXEMZEIEETMGE
AR EBLAERRIRKBON T EREBNE ARNITE

e

challenging the key assumptions adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecast, which included forecast production
volumes, forecast crude oil prices, forecast production
costs and forecast capital expenditure by comparison
with market and other externally available information,
historical production information, prospective resources of
the T&M Concessions shown in technical reports issued
by independent qualified technical consultants and internal
exploration and exploitation plans;
FBETISNEMIIBAIRER  BELEEER BT
AERRMBERLANRMBEPEROTIME T ER
TRHERAR A BN R ZE S EETEHLE - HAR
RensBAPRANARBR(BFEESTRA - RA
BRER FEXATEAIREATEER)ETES:

evaluating management assessment on the feasibility of
obtaining further extension of the exploration permits in
the T&M Concessions by obtaining the legal opinion from
an independent Argentinian legal counsel engaged by
the Group and assessing the competence, capability and
objectivity of the independent Argentinian legal counsel;
FRRGEESEZENBYMBREELAZERNEZE
B S EREYRSETAMES BRI E —F T
HART AT L B0 AT 1 - S0 7T ik J8 <7 Pl AR 3 0 122 B P 0 s 1 e
h BEREREHMN:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Key Audit Matter
HREXRSBE

18 M % BAD R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ELRNMEEZEE

We identified assessment of impairment/reversal
of impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
as a key audit matter because of the inherent
uncertainties involved in estimating the recoverable
amounts of exploration and evaluation assets and
because the selection of the various assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecast could
be subject to management bias.

AP 58 A AT ik B IR e 5T & B ORU(E R A B B
E-REBERNERFTE  ARERMGER R
HEEANEERBSHNRNETEEY - UK
EMBEHEeRERITSERARKNEREA

REEXINEEERANTZE -

o assessing specific inputs to the determination of the
discount rate applied in the cash flow forecast with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialists, including
the risk-free rate and country risk premium together with
gearing and cost of debt, and benchmarking such inputs
against similar companies in international markets in which
the Group operates;

s TANKEZFRNBPHTIHRHETRERERAKRA
WERERENF TR ARE  ETERERBRF X -
HEREREENARBELEMEBRA  THESERL
EREBRBRTSTHORAUAFN Ll E ABBETESE
(R

o evaluating the sensitivity of the outcomes of the
impairment assessment by considering possible downside
scenarios against reasonably plausible changes to the key
assumptions, which included lower crude oil prices, a higher
discount rate and delays in the exploration work schedule,
and considering the possibility of management bias in the
selection of the assumptions;

e BRBRBHERBRNABAIITE(L ZEARNTITE
R HPEREFENRBER ESHNBRX PRI
EERENTE  RAGREFEERGREUARZERE
BEEZEBRRRARTEENERR

o comparing the actual results for the current year with
management’s forecasts prepared in the previous year
to assess the historical accuracy of the management’s
forecasting process; and

. RAFENERGEREERE I —FRENTEIETY
b U EBEERARFOHBEERMT: &

o considering the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the impairment assessment with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

. 2ERTEHEANER  ZEEAMBBRERPEER
EFGHRE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZBERE

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Kwok Keung Raymond.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2019

18 M % BAD R

BMEEZZESRBTHENEZRE
HEZH BABEZERSE  BRAMER
A% R 38 Bl YRR AR I Y (E (AT E K ERBA o

BMEREZZESRRER  SiARME
NeBBBELENEREXRERENR L8R
M ERENRESREMERAE R EHM
BYMENMBBENEMER A REER
RIERT - BB &

RHEECZESBANEED  HMARE
MLEFHABPEEVBERRNEZRS
EE - AMBERBEREZETR - RMAEXK
PRSP ELEE  RIFERER
TRHALFARBEELER  SEBHFERD
BAT WREEBHERMREPEE
XRERERNAARREBELENARN
@ BfRETERERSTEEZSTHE -

HERBIZBERENEZHBABAR
B 58 -

o

pili
i

ESREMERM
B K AT AT

BEFR

T B105%
ANFRESE
“E-AF=A=+XH

Annual Report 2018 o — & — )\ FE E i

93



94

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEB®E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA 3% 7T 51| 7R )

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
(note)
(Bt 7%)
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FH T

Revenue & 4 297,989 287,557
Cost of sales 5 & A AR (286,863) (280,651)
Gross profit EF 11,126 6,906
Other income H g A 5 (10,747) 16,250
General and administrative expenses — R EITBRAX (53,224) (63,332)
(Provision)/reversal of (GH12) /BB & ERE

impairment loss of assets &5 18 6(c) (72,771) 228,611
Net investment loss "EEBEFHE 6(d) (100,321) (37,492)
Exploration expenses B R X 12(c) (371) (35,544)
Gain on partial disposal of interest HEH 2L EER

in a joint venture 2 W w 17 3,304
(Loss)/profit from operations K (EE), 8RN (226,308) 118,703
Finance costs B & K AN 6(a) (15,687) (19,293)
Share of losses of joint ventures BiEeEEEBE (4,452) (4,150)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B E), A 6 (246,447) 95,260
Income tax FT 13 %% 7 (10,777) 6,437
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) RF (257,224) 101,697
Attributable to: FEAh

Owners of the Company RRARHEE A (257,218) 101,710

Non-controlling interests =R = (6) (13)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BR) RF (257,224) 101,697
(Loss)/earnings per share BER(ER)&EF 11

Basic (HK cent) HACGEAL) (PX:1)) 1.26

Diluted (HK cent) #5E (B (2.91) 1.26

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under iz : AEEER =T — \F—A—HEXEAHLEH

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See BHREBISHEREBUBREFIR - BRIEDE
note 2(d). BEFN  HHEERAEET - BHF20d)

The notes on pages 101 to 222 form part of these financial &7
statements. Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company <2
are set out in note 30(b). ETRA

RENNBEZEF2228 2 Wi BATEHRE
—%B c BERAENARRBEAE AR EFEE
30(b) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEeEEREMEEKRFER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B E _T—\F+_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T51 7R )

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
(note (i)
(B 5 (i)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M & TER FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BR) RZF (257,224) 101,697
Other comprehensive income for the & H fth =W =
year (after tax and reclassification (BR#EEREE
adjustments): DEAE): 10
ltem that will not be reclassified to HEAAgEEHNH»ERE
profit or loss: Bam2IER:
Other investment in equity securities RARBEGFAEME
at fair value through other EW w2 B Em
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) — BHEMIRE ([AAR
net movement in fair value reserves BEFTAHEMEZEY
(non-recycling) =) - AAEER
HBCRAE ) &)
F (A (17,923) -
ltems that may be reclassified HiEAgETsEEE
subsequently to profit or loss: wm2IHE
Exchange differences on translation BREBINRFEARHK
of financial statements of overseas AEE(RE])HER
and the People’s Republic of China RIMBHRREE L
("PRC”) subsidiaries ERER 409,850 (19,660)
Available-for-sale investments: net AHEEERE : AAE
movement in the fair value reserve B 4 (7T = 40)
(recycling) (note (ii)) 28 % | (T 5E (i) (2,383)
Other comprehensive income FRHEM 2 EKE
for the year 391,927 (22,043)
Total comprehensive income FREEKELRE
for the year 134,703 79,654
Attributable to: PEAL
Owners of the Company ViN/NGIEZ Z =N 134,709 79,667
Non-controlling interests I 15 I 2 () (13)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWBLE
for the year 134,703 79,654
Notes: M 5

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See

note 2(d).

(ii) This amount arose under the accounting policies applicable prior to 1 January
2018. As part of the opening balance adjustments as at 1 January 2018, the
balance of fair value reserve (recycling) has been reclassified to fair value reserve
(non-recycling) and will not be reclassified to profit or loss in any future periods.

See note 2(d)(i).

The notes on pages 101 to 222 form part of these financial

statements.

(i) AEEER-_Z—/\F—A-—HEREREEH
BREFSHERBEBUBEREFIN - REDRE
BEDN - HHLEMATEED - RHFE2d) °

(i) ZEHERER-ZE-N\F—A—HAMNER S
EL - EAR B \F—A—HFENHEHR LA
BEN—%5  ARBEERE(TERNEHRES
JIERABECAEKR) RN REGRE T EE
FIEFEm o BT FE20d)0) ©

HRFBI0MBEEF2228 2 ARG RE
22—
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R R

As at 31 December 2018 HE-Z—N\F+_A=1+—HILtFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31 7R )

Note
B 5
Non-current assets kRBEE
Exploration and evaluation assets B & M s (E & E 12
Property, plant and equipment M- MEERB 13
Intangible assets EmILAE 14
Goodwill GBS 15
Interest in joint ventures REEDFE IR 17
Other investment in equity HMREEESFNRE
securities 20
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 20
Prepayments, deposits and other  JEfIFUIE « 4 &
receivables H th & U 518 22
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE E 28(b)
Total non-current assets EMBEERE
Current assets REBEE
Inventories EE 21
Trade and other receivables FEUR B 5 BR 3 N H A FE Uk
IR 22
Promissory note receivable JE WA R 1B 19
Current tax recoverable A] Y [E] BN HA 77 18 28(a)
Other financial assets HEthamEE 23
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFSEED 24
Total current assets REBEELE
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables &1~ B 5 B 3k e H At & <
FRIE 25
Other borrowings HifeE 26
Provision A 29
Total current liabilities mEBERRE
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current HWEERRBAES

liabilities

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e 7K B8R A R A A

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
TER

2,337,497
32,811

2,417,291

66
80,468
928,476

1,062,798

93,057
56,792
5,131

154,980

907,818

3,325,109

2017
—E—LF
(note)

(Bt 3E)
HK$'000
FTHTT

2,303,481
49,301
16,296

234
18,104

36,617

40,286
11,149

2,475,468

17,144

74,659
42,687
133
329,610
843,948

1,308,181

88,142
2,380

90,522

1,217,659

3,693,127




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R R

As at 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\FE+=-_A=+—HILtFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T51 7R )

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
(note)
GES
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTET FH& T
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Other borrowings Hihtg & 26 154,000 211,400
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 28(b) 31,436 -
Provisions & 29 9,697 14,411
Total non-current liabilities kRBEEREE 195,133 225,811
NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,129,976 3,467,316
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#E
Share capital [N 30(c) 87,589 88,655
Reserves it 1 3,042,180 3,427,346
Total equity attributable to ARG EEAELERZRE
owners of the Company =] 3,129,769 3,516,001
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 207 (48,685)
TOTAL EQUITY EEEE 3,129,976 3,467,316

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

26 March 2019.

Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart

R

Director

EF

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See

note 2(d).

The notes on pages 101 to 222 form part of these financial

statements.

g 22 R2019F38268 it A& K % & 7

% -

Tang, John Wing Yan
oK B
Director

EF

MaE: AEEER-_Z—/\F—A—HERERTBH
BREFSKREBUBIREFEN - RIFEE
BESX - HEEHNTEES - R E2d) -

#

FNBINEEFE 228 ZMERAMBIME
Z—8n

B/

o

ok
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31 7R )

Attributable to owners of the Company

L PN 1
Fair value Fair value Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange reserve reserve Contributed ~ Warrants Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  (recycling) (non-recycling) surplus  reserve losses Total interests equity
MEERE LMEERE ARER
Bx  BROEE ExREE NERE  (FEW  (FIEW EK4ER R EHER & FEREE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TEL TEL TEL TEL T  TEn TEr  TiEn TEx  TER
Balance at 1 January 2017 W-B-t%-F-H
33 59,103 4,174,190 9,591 (396,033) 8393 - 740,880 1,801 (1,897,988) 2,699,937 (48,672) 2,651,265
Changes in equity for 2017:  =B-tFEHNEH:
Profit/(loss) for the year ERERl/ (BE) = = = = = = = = 101,710 101,710 (13) 101,697
Other comprehensive income Eh2EME - - - (19,660) (2,383) - - - - (22,083 - (22,083)
Total comprehensive income  2EKWHEAE - - - (19,660) (2,383) - - - 101,710 79,667 (13) 79,654
Shares issued under open offer  BEAREERTRH
(note 30(c)(ii)) (K 3£30(c)(i) 29,552 706,845 - - - - - - - 736,397 - 736,397
Lapse of warrants issued BEITAREE XK
(note 30(d)lvi) (B 330(d) i) = = = = = = = (1,801) 1,801 = = =
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=Z-t%+=f
(note) =t-AN&H
(W) 88,655 4,881,035 9591 (415,693) 6,010 - 740,880 - (1,794,477) 3,516,001 (48,685) 3,467,316
Impact on initial application ERERERHBRE
of HKFRS 9 (note 2(d)) £I%NTE
((GE2(0) = = = = (6,010) (86,587) = = 84,821 (1,776) = (7.776)
Adjusted balance at R=B-\§-A-H
1 January 2018 HEBEER 4,881,035 (415,693) (86,587) 740,880 - (1,709,656) 3,508,225 (48,685) 3,459,540
Changes in equity for 2018: —B-\FRHNZH:
Loss for the year FRER = = - (257.218)  (257,218) (6) (257,224
Other comprehensive income LY 409,850 (17,923) = 391,927 391,927
Total comprehensive income ~ 2E K #4E 409,850 (17,923) - (257,218) 134,709 134,703
Impact of hyperinflation EhEEPRNYE
(note 2(c)) (Hi20) - (499,245)  (499,245) 48,898  (450,347)
Purchase of own shares BEAFHRH
(note 30(c)if) (I ££30(c)(i) (1,066) (12,854 - (13,90 (13,920)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=Z-\£+=F
=t-R&H 87,589 4,868,181 9,591 (5,843) (104,510) 740,880 - (2,466,119) 3,129,769 3,129,976
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under iz : AEEER T - \F—A—BEXEABEY
the transitions methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See BMEFSHKEREBVBERMEFEIR - BREDR
note 2(d). BEFRN  BEERTEETY - BHFE2d) °
The notes on pages 101 to 222 form part of these financial BN EI101B EHE2228 2 Wit AR I5IRE
statements. Z—# 5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B E _T—\F+_A=+—HIEFE

Note
B o
Operating activities REERK
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrELAT (B 1R) s F
Adjustments for: ERIEREEBRTIA
e A G
Depreciation e
Amortisation of intangible assets %2 & = # 45
Provision/(reversal) of impairment &1 /(B #) & & A&
loss of assets & 8
Exploration expenses &5 F 2
Interest income A B WA
Interest expense MEHAEZ
Net foreign exchange loss HNE B R FE

Gain on partial disposal of
interest in a joint venture
Hyperinflation monetary

HER—BEELEZ
#B D R af 2 WL 2
BUHBERREE LR

adjustments =
Net loss on disposal of Bz & Palmar Largo 5 #F 1
non-current assets of Palmar BZERDEENS
Largo concession BFE
Share of loss of joint ventures — EH& & EEE
Operating cash flows before LEEEHFILERS
changes in working capital mneE
Changes in working capital: LEESED:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 17 & & 4 (3 hn)
Decrease/(increase) in other HthemEERLD
financial assets (3 hn)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and EREZERR K EAMAME
other receivables WK I8 (38 hn),/ R
Increase in trade and other BB 5 BR R K& H A fE
payables TR IE LG N
Cash generated from/(used in) &E&EKFE (FFHA)
operations RBe
Interest paid AT F &
Interest received 2 A &
Income tax refund/(paid) RE(BR)FER
Net cash generated from/ mEEKRE /(A
(used in) operating activities ReFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T51 7R )

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —EF—tF
(note)
(Kt =E)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FH& T
(246,447) 95,260
4,585 4,881
1,156 2,905
72,771 (228,611)
371 35,544
(16,608) (15,362)
15,687 19,293
46,399 4,840
(3,304)
4,150
(114,457) (80,404)
3,078 (1,803)
pAVA LT (57,329)
(16,175) 8,750
28,352 44,178
117,954 (86,608)
(15,675) (25,848)
12,689 8,461
52 (11)
115,020 (104,006)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERETRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA 3% 7T 51| 7R )

2018
—E-N\F
Note HK$'000
B o TER
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for purchase of BEHRRTEEE
exploration and evaluation X T2 K18
assets (38,405)
Payment for purchase of property, BEWH¥  BEKX
plant and equipment ST 2 BIR (2,441)
Proceeds from redemption of EREMEREE 2
other financial assets FT 15 5k 18 41,986
Payment for purchase of other E%Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ’éffz
financial assets KIE (10,000)
Net cash used in investing REZTBFMARSFE
activities (8,860)
Repayment of other borrowings BEAEMEERE 24(b) (3.000)
Payment for purchase of own BEAHK ﬁi'ZﬁZ IE
shares (13,920)
Proceeds from issue of new shares, 277 ¥ % {5 Ffr 15 Z A
net of transaction costs (FBR R Z K A)

Net cash (used in)/generated BMEETE (FrA),
from financing activities FFEEEFE (16,920)

Net increase in cash and cash BERBEESEYWIEMNF

equivalents Gl 89,240
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZRER

1 January REEEY 843,948
Effect of foreign exchange rate E RS E &

changes (4,712)

Cash and cash equivalents at R+ZA=+t—HZERER
31 December ReZEY 24(a) 928,476

2017

—E—+tF

(note)
(B 3E)
HK$'000
FAT

(34,633)

(9,076)

(30,000)

(73,709)

(111,843)

736,397

624,554

446,839
398,633

(1,524)

843,948

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under  Fist: A&EEER -_ZE—\F—A—BBXEAEAY

the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See BMEFISHEREBTEREFINR - RECR

note 2(d). BEFR BHEERTEEY - BHE20)
The notes on pages 101 to 222 form part of these financial HRFI0IEEFE2228 2 ARGTBERE
statements. Z— & e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 3 & &5 BB N + FiE & BB TLIIR)

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

New Times Energy Corporation Limited (“the Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
registered office and principal place of business are Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and Room
1402, 14/F., New World Tower |, 16—18 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong respectively. The Company is listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company is an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 16.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred as the “Group”) are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(d)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

EREH

FRRERERAFRTRAFD AR
BREFMK L 2BERAR - At
P E R N I B 5 27 7 Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda R B HEEfFREH16E
185% # t A K E — H114481402F - K
RANBBBERSAR AR ([H
REFDERET - AR A BT EER
DA ARAIMBARMEZEBKF
EE M EE16 o

EXEHE

(@) EHREBH
ZEVERREBREMEBERE
BYBBREER (B REEBY
B EER  BEBSBEFRA
e (BB LML) BMZET
HEBERNESYIREEL
B ER(HE S EL ]
k2B BT ERM S5
RANR BB R THER 2 R E
MRB o ANEATS MR IR INE TR B
ERGFES FMBRAT ETR
BNz #EBEEIE - ARA &
EffBE AR (AEAEIAEE]F
FARERSHTRREEDOT -

ERRFMAGDHEME TRA
SEER S HEERERSEA
HIER RO REERTER
B 75 5 Y o B TE2(d) K 51 )
RER L BAKEE A AT
SHHIEAR B ENRER
A BERERARRZER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group's interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

= other investment in equity securities (see note 2(h));
and

= derivative financial instruments (see note 2(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e 7K B8R A R A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 3.

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the
financial statements, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management based on estimations of future revenue from
sales of crude oil and other products, future production
costs, committed and planned capital expenditure and
the availability of financing, which cover a period of
twelve months from the reporting period end date. They
are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due and committed future capital
expenditure within the next twelve months from the end
of the current reporting period and that there are no
material uncertainties in this respect which individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.

Adoption of hyperinflation accounting in
Argentina

In May 2018, the Argentine peso underwent a severe
devaluation resulting in the three-year cumulative inflation
of Argentina to exceed 100%, thereby triggering the
requirement to transition to hyperinflation accounting
as prescribed by HKAS 29, Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies. HKAS 29 requires to report
the results of the Group’s operations in Argentina as if
these were highly inflationary as of 1 January 2018.

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

FrE 2 BB LB TLIIR)

2 ERETHEEm#E)

(b)

(c)

MBBERREREEE)

EHREEERERY VBRI E
RERFEZBBMBHREER
PRYEHIET - ARG T EERSR
ZEBHRIR KM E3IF @

EEEMBEBRRZAERUEE
B ARAREZEEHEEER
BRERRHE R M A EMRZ
Wak ~ RREEMRA « AGE KA
FEAH R AREFHO MG
i Am B AN SR B 2 OR R -
BMERHEAREMRE DR+
—flR - BERRAKEKHER
RHLEESNIHKENEY
BELE  URBAHREAREST
AR+ —EANERERH
Attt S I EE AN EEEE
ERHAERBHREEFELE
EENBREKXIEE -

REARERNBZHEBEERIK
gtk

RZZ-N\FHA FMREER
KEBRERE BHMRE=F
B100% ) Rt BER AR - Bt
SIBRILBB B G ERIF 295
BN SR AR BRI FRE
ABREEEMBERKREZX
MEFR - BEGFTERIFE295E R
ER-ZF-N\F-A—HAK
ERMRENEEXRERKER
BEERMBEWRMERS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Adoption of hyperinflation accounting in
Argentina (Continued)

Under HKAS 29, the non-monetary assets and liabilities
stated at historical cost, the equity and the income
statement of subsidiaries operating in hyperinflationary
economies are restated for changes in the general
purchasing power of the local currency applying a general
price index, and monetary items that are already stated
at the measuring unit at the end of the reporting period
are not restated. These re-measured accounts are used for
conversion into Hong Kong dollar at the period closing
exchange rate.

Consequently, the Group has applied hyperinflation
accounting for its Argentine subsidiaries for the first time
in these consolidated financial statements applying the
HKAS 29 rules as follows:

= Hyperinflation accounting was applied as of
1 January 2018;

- Non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at
historical cost (e.g. exploration and evaluation assets,
property plant and equipment, and etc.) and equity
of the Argentine subsidiaries were restated using an
inflation index. The hyperinflation impacts resulting
from changes in the general purchasing power until
31 December 2017 were reported in accumulated
losses and the impacts of changes in the general
purchasing power from 1 January 2018 are reported
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on “Hyperinflation monetary adjustments” for gain
or loss on net monetary position in other income
(see note 5);
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 3 & &5 BB N + FiE & BB TLIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBERETBE#®
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of hyperinflation accounting in (0 RRAREEMBHBERE

The consolidated statement of profit or loss is
adjusted at the end of each reporting period
using the change in the general price index and
is converted at the closing exchange rate of each
period (rather than the year to date average rate for
non-hyperinflationary economies);

To measure the impact of inflation on the Group's
financial position and results, the Group has elected
to use the Wholesale Price Index (Indice de Precios
Mayoristas) for periods up to 31 December 2016,
and the Retail Price Index (Indice de Precios al
Consumidor) thereafter. These price indices have
been recommended by the Government Board of
the Argentine Federation of Professional Councils of
Economic Sciences.

In accordance with HKAS 21, The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates, when amounts are
translated into the currency of non-hyperinflationary
economy, the comparative amounts are not adjusted
for subsequent changes in the price level or
exchange rates. Therefore, the comparative amounts
of Argentine operations in these consolidated
financial statements were not restated.

Argentlna (Continued) A #E)

GRRBRENEERE
B3R DA — A H % 10 1B 46
B2 8 B R R R & H
g T B e S (S S AR
SR b 3B R A 60 4 M E
S FEHFIE)

B ERERESASENHG
T AR T 28 48 FT 35 B B 57
&2 AEEREE=T—
/\E'E—i——ﬂ:—f— E/H\:HFEﬁE;
% FHE 3% (B B 8 H(ndice
de Precios Mayoristas) * A

MRERERZSESEE
# 81 (Indice de Precios al
Consumidor) » ZE EE1E
AL /R P AR 5 B B B A
BEExEEefRNE
BEEg@EE -

RIEBBEEELFE 215
ﬁ/‘EﬂfﬁIZ HE ) A
CHEBRENEEBIR
i%ﬁ“ﬁ’]f’f’ﬁg Y e B
EERMBERERKESRL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By % ¥R 2R MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

(ii)

(iii)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accou

(i)

nting period.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Ffinancial instruments:
recognition and measurement. 1t sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy
or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements. The Group has
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening equity at 1 January
2018. Therefore, comparative information continues
to be reported under HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 & &t B8 5]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on accumulated losses and
reserves and the related tax impact at 1 January

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

FrE 2 BB LB TLIIR)

2 EREFHER®

d) BFHEEHHE)

() EBEBHBHEEREIN
EEITEE)
TEBEBEEETBYE
WEEBFIFHR =T —
NE—A—BE2BEBEBER

2018. RENTEREBERIEY
g o
HK$'000
FHET
Accumulated losses Z2BER
Transferred to fair value reserve HEZHEARAEMERZSFRE
(non-recycling) relating to impairment of  FRE R ASEERE CH A =U)
other investment in equity securities now — FIE A R EEF A E At 2 U
measured at FVOCI MatE 92,597
Recognition of additional expected credit AT A HEMENEHEEHFSEZ
losses on: ®R:
— trade and other receivables —- W E F BRI H fth fE UK IE (16)
— promissory note receivable - EWE R R (7,760)
Net decrease in accumulated losses at RZZE-N\F-—HA—BEBREED
1 January 2018 FEE 84,821
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5 B &t BASN » FTE € B A L5 R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEREFHEHR@®
(Continued)
(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (d) ST BEEEE)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) (i) BEHBEHREERZFEIY
S@MTAE)
HK$'000
FHET
Fair value reserve (recycling) ARBEMFEE(ATE W)
Transferred to fair value reserve HEZHEARAEMERZSFRE
(non-recycling) relating to other AR EERE AR YY) R
investment in equity securities now RZE-NF—HA—RBEAAE
measured at FVOC!| at 1 January 2018 Eif AEME2ERZT= (6,010)
Fair value reserve (non-recycling) AREBEEMEE(TAEK)
Transferred from accumulated losses HEBERERRRANEBE
relating to impairment of other FTAE A 2 Y =5 = 8
investment in equity securities now HA IR T S5 R E /R ER
measured at FVOCI REEE (92,597)
Transferred from fair value reserve EEEAREREANEBAE
(recycling) relating to other investment in st A H 2 KRS 24
equity securities now measured at FVOCI  E th B 7K 75 55 4% & #9 J5 (E 1Y
N BERE (R =) 6,010
Net decrease in fair value reserve RZZE—NFE—A—BAREBER
(non-recycling) at 1 January 2018 & (AT B ) B % & 18 (86,587)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 B &t BB 4N + FT A & 515 B LI R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and

financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at FVOCI and at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL"). These
supersede HKAS 39’'s categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The classification of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. Under HKFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a
financial asset in the scope of the standard
are not separated from the host. Instead, the
hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.

2 EREFHER®

d) BFHEEHHE)

() EBEBHBHEEREIN
EEITEE)
NASTRRESH ML
REEmE—SHBRA
BRI

a. =ZHEERZTHMERE
HY 7 28
FEEMBHREENF
IR EMEED B
=ZRER IR EHK
A FEBEMEEEK
@R AREETIRR

B EEFARR

5B (TR R R EBEF

ABHRIEDFE -

ZEDBBRREE

SEHERIFE3RH AR

B DR RBREEE

HrE ERRER

FE - AHEESE

BENRRRAAEBET

ABRIKRFAEN

TRMEE - -SREE

DHRDEREESR

BEMNEBEARE

BHRERERH -

REBBMBHRELE

Al ER AL

MOTEEE  EEA

—HRFELEN S

MEELTEBILRN

TR-MER-EET

EUN—EBEIED

i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 B &2 BB SN » AT B € B A B L HIR)

2

(Continued)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EAREFHE®
(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (d) EBtBEE8E)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) (i) BEHBEHREERZFEIY
EEITEE)
Classification of financial assets and a. THEERLTHEERE
financial liabilities (Continued) B9 5 8 (&)
The following table shows the original TRETRERASS
measurement categories for each class of FHERIZE395E & B A
the Group’s financial assets under HKAS 39 SENESREEMNR
and reconciles the carrying amounts of those Kt 2N BRBESE
financial assets determined in accordance with R R FE395% A
HKAS 39 to those determined in accordance EiNZEemEE
with HKFRS 9. AR E A B B IS 3R
AR SO FT BB AT
FEREE 2 ¥ 5K o
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount at amount at
31 December 1 January
2017  Reclassification Remeasurement 2018
R-E—+t%& R-B-N\F
+=A=+-8 -5-A
EHGHER EEMEREE
395 Bl 5595
M EREE ENE BitE IR EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHAT FAT
Financial assets carried at RBHERAIRN SR
amortised cost BE
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeZED 843,948 = = 843,948
Trade and other receivables FE I B 5 BR 3R R At fE Mk
%8 16,319 - (16) 16,303
Promissory note receivable & W R R 42,687 = (7,760) 34,927
902,954 - (7,776) 895,178
Financial assets measured at EAABEFAEMZE
FVOCI (non-recyclable) Wz (FAEK) 5B
CREE
Other investment in equity HtEEEHRE
securities (note (7)) (GiEA0) = 36,617 = 36,617
Financial assets carried at BRARBEGABRRIE
FVPL HeMmEE
Other financial assets (note (i) Hi&@EE
(D) 329,610 = = 329,610
Financial assets classified as 8 15 & 8 & 5 2 8| 5395
available-for-sale under PEATBHENSR
HKAS 39 (note (i) & E (M) 36,617 (36,617) - =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 B &t BB 4N + FT A & 515 B LI R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREBFR®E

(Continued)

(d) EFBEESHBE)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

a. Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

Under HKAS 39, equity securities not held for
trading were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. These equity securities are classified as
at FVPL under HKFRS 9, unless they are eligible
for and designated at FVOCI by the Group.

() EBEBHBHEEREIN
EEITEE)
a. ZHEERTHEE
B9 5 8 (&)

(i) RIEEE G E
A 563958 © T HF{E
BEEMNESEESZE
DEREAHHESH
AE- 25 R

At 1 January 2018, the Group designated its BHERBETEY
investment in NordAq Energy Inc. (“NordAq”) and % $k & % Bl 95
investment in Foothills Exploration Inc. (“Foothills BRAABEGFAR
Exploration”) at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the m BRIFEBREAEE
investments are not held for trading. EBERAAEBE

A H th 2 T M %3 5

Other financial assets including listed equity

e R=ZT—N\F
—A—B - BRZ
ERETAIFKIEER
B AEEETEH
7 NordAgq Energy
Inc. (NordAql) R
Foothills Exploration.
([Foothills
Exploration]) &) &
BRAABETA
H 2 E = 5 R
(RATmY) e

(ii) HtheMEEBRRE

securities and unlisted investment funds, which DEREAALBE
were classified as financial assets at FVPL, and NENEREEZ
unlisted equity-linked securities, which were ETRAEF R
designated as FVPL under HKAS 39. These assets EHREES B
continue to be measured at FVPL under HKFRS 9. RIBEE B GEE
Al 5395% 35 & A 1%
ARBEGFAEZE
Ol o =

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying amounts
for all financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have
not been impacted by the initial application of
HKFRS 9.

Hx o REFEHY
B EERAFIW
ZEEERBERD
AEEFARSER

o

el

HHAEERAEN
st EER & FE
Ao RZT—\F—
A—B FiEs@
BENEEETR
HREREBUB
HEERFEIRMT
&=,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

a. Classification of financial assets and

financial liabilities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii) (Continued)

Except for the unlisted equity-linked securities
described in note (ii) above, the Group did not
designate or de-designate any financial asset or

financial liability at FVPL at 1 January 2018.

b. Credit losses
HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (ECL)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with
a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss”

accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the

following items:

= financial assets measured at amortised
trade and other
and promissory note

cost (including
receivables
receivable);

For further details on the Group’s accounting
policy for accounting for credit losses, see note

2(n)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 & &t B8 5]

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

b.

Credit losses (Continued)

The following table reconciles the closing
loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 as at 31 December 2017 with
the opening loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 January
2018.

FrE 2 BB LB TLIIR)

2 EREFHER®

d) BIFHEESHE)
(i) BEHBEHFEERFEIN
e@TAE)

b.

FEERE)
TRAREBEEREEGS
R FEIFER T —
tF+=-A=+—H
FIT BB RT RO F R B 18 1%
R RSB MK ]|
EREBNEIRNR T —
NE—A—BMEF

WEVEERENS
HK$'000
FHET
Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 1RIE&E B € 5105395k
under HKAS 39 RZB—+F+=-A=+—H
i 5 18 1 4 3,810
Additional credit loss recognised at  FEIMEEBHEERZZE—N\F
1 January 2018 on: —A—BRUATEEBERRL
— Trade and other receivables - EIE 5 AR 3 % B b fE R IE 16
— Promissory note receivable - FE WU E R 7,760
Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 RIEE B UBmELERFEIR
under HKFRS 9 R-ZE-N\F—A—BNEEEE 11,586
Transition c AE
Changes in accounting policies resulting from BB HmEERS
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied 955k BY £ 4% FT 38 B ey
retrospectively, except as described below: EAREZEHEE

= Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised
in accumulated losses and reserves
as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
the information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under HKAS 39
and thus may not be comparable with
the current period.

B - TSR
a3 BR o1 -

ERLEBHRANE
A EET - BAZE
B E ERIE9
REHM TR EER
HEZER-F—)N\
F-A—BREHE
BRERETRER -
e —FE—tEF 27|
MEHEBREBEEE
BRFERFE39% 2],
B A 1t AT gE S OX AR
HIREITH & -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

C.

Transition (Continued)

The following assessments have been
made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at 1 January
2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group):

the determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held;
and

the designation of certain investments in
equity instruments not held for trading
to be classified as at FVOCI (non-
recycling).

If, at the date of initial application, the
assessment of whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition would have involved
undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL
has been recognised for that financial
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue and some costs from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS
18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS
11, Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any
material impact on the financial position and the
financial results of the Group.

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an
entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency.

FrE 2 BB LB TLIIR)

2 ERETHEEm#E)

(d SHHREEHE)

@ii)

(iii)
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BB Y RS R E155%
AEERARSE RO KER
FAEHl=RETFTRAM
BY—E2EMNEZRE - F
78 B 7 R A ZE R 155 B
EB ST ER F185K - W
m HEREREBHEHEE®
MIRHEREHYE UK
BMARBBGIERIE115E -
BEALY  EFV BB
BENWEE ©

&8 W 15 R & 2 Bl 81557
NERBINEEREE
BEAA BREATHY
BREBEAAKREEFA
MH W kIR RS -
T BERIREEMNE-

&S B 75 s R SB1557
F) 3R 40 3 4R 3 X 5% [ O B
BRERMBEEEERE

S 40
AFE-

BB (BB BEHREZEZ
BEE)BEE229  JEX
ERANKE

tRERE ARG RR®
REBKE-—BRXHNE
ZE - A SRA (REED)
RBENBH  REFTX
HHAEHRIES  ZBERS
KB —RERBAIIERSL
WEL S XA HAE -

Annual Report 2018 o — & — )\ FE E i

115



116

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

(iii) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration (Continued)

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of
the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of the
transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC)
22 does not have any material impact on the
financial position and the financial result of the
Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e Bk 8254 R A 7

2

A BHAAETIIR)

BEAXEHRES

(d SHHREEHE)

(e)

B (B EHRE
EE)REF2Y
ZREMHEE)
ZeBEE I RZA188R
T 3R 2K B 18 5t S AT sk W ER
REREEEEEESS
BRI B E o i 3R ZIERE
REBEBEWE LI K
WHERIE » Sl
BRIBEBHRZAEENILS
&%J B (B 7%
EREBZES)REF2L2NR
B BE A N 4 ) R & B /9 B
SRR R TS B E KT
EEPN-Z-

REZ
SEX

(iii)

MEBARREEZERES
MEBAR SBRASEZH 2B
B-E2AREAYHAEZHFL2EE
BAENAZER®R BERENE
ﬁﬁﬂfmm%ﬁiém%ﬁﬁ
B A ARSEEHIZER - &1
HAKREETEHEAZHIER R
EEEEREMN(AAKEREM
BRTRA) -

R B AR 2 &R E QLI A
ZBE BEEEGELKEZARS

LHREHABRAMBERE - KE
NARIBZEHRERS U RE
BARARARZELEZETMRE
& RAT AR B 3R am F) T 0 AR 3
REMBRREEHYE - &£ H
NABIBRSEEZ ABRER
mERERWEHR 2T AY
o EERRYEREER B
S7 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2(qg) or (r) depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(h))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture (see note 2(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(n)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal Group that is
classified as held for sale).

Joint arrangement and associates

The Group is a party of joint arrangement when it exercises
joint control over arrangement by acting collectively with
other parties and decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangement.

In relation to interest in joint operations, the Group
recognises: (i) its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly, (i) liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly, (i) revenue from the sale of its share of
the output arising from the joint operation, (iv) its share
of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operations, and (v) its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Joint arrangement and associates (Continued)

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate or joint venture that forms part of the
Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 2(n)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By % ¥R 2R MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

A BHAAETIIR)

2

(f) Joint arrangement and associates (Continued)
When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has

incurred legal

or constructive obligations or

made

payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with any other long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case

they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is

not remeasured.
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases,

Instead, the investment continues to be

when the Group ceases to have

significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition

of a financial asset (see note 2(h)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquire;
over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated
at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs,
except for those investments measured at FVPL for which
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss.
For an explanation of how the Group determines fair value
of financial instruments, see note 31(g). These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 A BB SN » Fi B & B9 LA L HIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

= amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see note 2(w)(iv)).

- FVOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment
is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in profit or
loss of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

= FVPL, if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value
of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 3 & &5 BB N + FiE & BB TLIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEARSFHBEX®
(Continued)
(h) Other investments in debt and equity securities (h) HttEBERABSFRE
(Continued) (&)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A) BE=ZE—NF—F—H#EE
(Continued) FHBE (&)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to accumulated losses. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(w)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at FVPL.
Any attributable transaction costs were recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value was remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group had the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
were classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-
to-maturity securities were stated at amortised cost
(for impairment see note 2(n)(i) — policy applicable
prior to 1 January 2018).

Investments which did not fall into any of the
above categories were classified as available-for-sale
financial assets. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value was remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve (recycling). As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(n)). Dividend income
from equity investments and interest
from debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method were recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 2(w)
(iii) and (iv), respectively. Foreign exchange gains
and losses arising from debt securities were also
recognised in profit or loss. When the investments
were derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain
or loss recognised in equity was reclassified to profit
or loss.

income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 3 & &5 BB N + FiE & BB TLIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(1)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value.
At the end of each reporting periods, the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(n)),
no depreciation and/or amortisation is charged during
the exploration and evaluation phase. Exploration and
evaluation costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis.
Costs directly associated with an exploration well, and
exploration and property leasehold acquisition costs, are
capitalised until the determination of reserves is evaluated.
If it is determined that commercial discovery has not been
achieved, these costs are recognised in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of
exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the
search for natural resources as well as the determination
of the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
previously recognised exploration and evaluation assets
are reclassified as either intangible assets or property,
plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for
impairment, and any impairment loss recognised, before
reclassification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(n)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
items of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 4-5 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Depreciation of oil production assets is calculated on unit
of production method based upon the estimated proved
and probable oil reserves to write off the cost of each
asset, less any estimated residual value.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e 7K B8R A R A A

2

A BHAAETIIR)

BEAXEHRES

(k)

Y HERZEZKANREZR
AT ERIBERBEEZYIER(RK
#E2(n) °

BITRENYE  BEREKHEZ
RABEMBRAN BEEAT
RNMETOEBRE - BERE
BRATEZ RO NREET R R
tEE &M (K E2y)

ME BERRBHOREXLE
FRELMKRARER  BEXEAH
ERMERAFEARBRAEBEL
MOWEE ANREXLEE
RBEARTHER -

WENERERYE  BERRK
f 2 AN {4 5 AT 62 A 4F A i EE TR
B A AR 5t Rl R B E (A &t

=

HEYHEEE 4-54F

25 5-104F

R EBRPDE 3-54
B

RE 3-54

OREEEEZETENLE
BELEGHEOREERTER
M FEFEMETREE KA
RREMAEERGREENE -

W% BMERREREREBDZ
AfEAFEHTR  HERARE
MozBEEBEESR  MH
MOBPFHABENE - BEAE
REMEENGEEMA) &S
FERM -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

U]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives.

Amortisation of rights on oil sharing and oil exploration
rights are calculated on unit of production method based
upon the estimated proved and probable oil reserves to
write off the cost of each asset, less any estimated residual
value.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the
useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed
annually to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment
for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with
finite lives as set out above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific

asset

or assets for an agreed period of time in return for

a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement

takes

(i)

(ii)

the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(k). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2(n). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 3 & &5 BB N + FiE & BB TLIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFEHFR®

(Continued)

(m) HEEE®)
(i) ZBEHEXXH

(m) Leased assets (Continued)
(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
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n) EENGEBRRREE

Credit losses from financial instruments (i) KREZBTAWEEER
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A) BE=ZF—/NF—H—
H 7 B B %
The Group recognises a loss allowance REBEREHREER

for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the
following items:

B(BEHEEERD
RIATHEBER A
B

- financial assets measured at amortised - REHXAG
cost (including trade and other ENETREE
receivables and promissory note (BIEEKES
receivable). AR R & A fth fE

I 3k T8 K FE U
A ER) ©

Financial assets measured at fair value, EARBEFENS

including equity securities measured at FVPL, MEE  BERAA

equity securities designated at FVOCI (non- BEEFAERD

recycling) and derivative financial assets, are
not subject to the ECL assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- trade and other receivables and
promissory note receivable: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 3 & &5 BB N + FiE & BB TLIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEARSFHBEX®
(Continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets n EENGESFSEARRBEGE
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () XREZBTAWEEEE
(Continued) (4&)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A) B=ZE—NF—F—
(Continued) H B JF B B % (4E)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued) EHEEEBEE=
(%)
In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into EtEEEBEEERE
account reasonable and supportable B AEBEEZEREGE
information that is available without undue MEREMES ST

NUEBEZHAKE R
BEEHNENR =281

cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts

of future economic conditions. BESEH - RN
Ko R PR 4 A 5 78R
LE&E -

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases: T E A — ] A

=

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are — 1218 A & 78 Hf
expected to result from possible default EEEIE : BT
events within the 12 months after the ExREHEE12
reporting date; and &l A ARl g 2 A&

B & %) = 4 ﬁﬁ
B ZEE &

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are —  EE£oEH
expected to result from all possible WEBEEE
default events over the expected lives B RS
of the items to which the ECL model BEHEEE
applies. BREAWIER

EBEHEDA
B A FT A Al B
BEZENE
HimBE 2 E
B

Loss allowances for trade receivables are FEWE 5 R R 2 KB

always measured at an amount equal to BE RS AR AE

lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets wmERZEREEES

are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at

the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 B &t BB 4N + FT A & 515 B LI R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

= failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

= an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(w)(iv) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 & &t B8 5]

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

= the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(B)

(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment
losses on financial assets not classified as at
FVPL (e.g. trade and other receivables and
available-for-sale investments). Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment loss
was recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment included:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 B &t BB 4N + FT A & 515 B LI R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERESTBER#®
(Continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets n) EENGCGEFSERBEE)
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) KRELZHITAWEEEE
(Continued) (4&)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 B) R=-ZF—-—/NF—H
(Continued) — H B i# 5 B B &
(%)

—- it becoming probable that the debtor - EBAFREE
will enter bankruptcy or other financial 3k #E 1T A fth Bf
reorganisation; HER:

-  significant changes in the technological, - BE--mH-
market, economic or legal environment BB ERIR
that have an adverse effect on the BEHEERARE
debtor; and B BB A

EH R 2
&

= a significant or prolonged decline in the = fg xR T EZE
fair value of an investment in an equity ZAREERK
instrument below its cost. BT &% EJ/ER

H K A 3k & 8

ERERK A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment
loss was determined and
follows:

recognised as

For trade and other receivables and
other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, impairment loss was
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the
effect of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where
these financial assets shared similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and had not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based
on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 3 & &5 BB N + FiE & BB TLIIR)

Annual Report 2018 e

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERETFBER#®
(Continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets n) EENGEFEBRBEGE)
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) KRELBIEWEEES
(Continued) (#&)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 B) R=-ZF—/NF—H
(Continued) — H B i# 5 B B &

If in a subsequent period the amount of fisl o 18 5 B R
an impairment loss decreased and the TR
decrease could be linked objectively to B#ZBLEE
an event occurring after the impairment H B2 2R R (B
loss was recognised, the impairment loss BEEELEZ
was reversed through profit or loss. A =H5H - A
reversal of an impairment loss was only HE E B R e
recognised to the extent that it did not R B E e &
result in the asset’s carrying amount BEEEREEDR
exceeding that which would have been BECCEEME
determined had no impairment loss been NS EEE
recognised in prior years. BAEFE I E
e 2 E A R 1A
BEMmMEDE

TE LB o
When the recovery of a trade and other fisf %2 §H Bk 7R
receivables or other financial assets ABREE W E
carried at amortised cost was considered 2B R & E b
doubtful but not remote, associated FE U 70 I8 B 2R
impairment losses were recorded R B RERM
using an allowance account. When W I gEE -
the Group was satisfied that recovery FUHBART -
was remote, the amount considered EEREERE
irrecoverable was written off against A BB R A
the gross carrying amount of those N N E ]
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries R AEAYE -
of amounts previously charged to the A% & 7 7] Ik
allowance account were reversed against BEr&BEE
the allowance account. Other changes in REKE SR
the allowance account and subsequent KR H At fE UK
recoveries of amounts previously written FXOIE HOHEE o
off directly were recognised in profit or = U dEEN:
loss. AEEHEER 2%
B BB HE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

2

(Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

For available-for-sale investments, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
in the fair value reserve (recycling)
was reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that
was recognised in profit or loss was
the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities were not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
was recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 3 & &5 BB N + FiE & BB TLIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed annually and adjusted
for impairment loss whenever one of the following
events or changes in circumstances indicates that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable:

= the period for which the entity has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during
the period or will expire in the near future,
and is not expected to be renewed.

= substantive expenditure on further exploration
for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area is neither budgeted nor planned.

- exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not led to
the discovery of commercially viable quantities
of mineral resources and the entity has decided
to discontinue such activities in the specific
area.

= sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely
to proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation assets is unlikely
to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(n)
(iii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(n)(iii).

Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
= intangible assets;
= goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

(iv)

(Continued)

= Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see notes 2(n)(i), (ii) and

(iii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, in the process of production
for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production process or in the rendering
of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

2(n)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(ij) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, and the provision of services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the goods which was
taken to be the point in time when the customer
obtain control of the goods.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales
of goods was recognised when the goods were
delivered to the customers’ premises, which was
taken to be the point in time when the customer
had accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By % ¥R 2R MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Rendering of services

The Group recognises revenue over time as the
services are provided. Where a contract has two or
more performance obligations, the Group allocates
the transaction price to each service in proportion
to those stand-alone selling prices. The stand-alone
selling price is determined based on the list prices
at which the Group sells the services in separate
transactions.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see note 2(n)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of foreign operations whose functional
currency is the currency of a non-hyperinflationary
economy are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

The results of foreign operations whose functional
currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy
applies hyperinflation accounting in accordance with HKAS
29 as described in note 2(c). When the economy ceases
to be hyperinflationary, the Group will discontinue the
application of hyperinflation accounting and the amounts
presented in the measuring unit current at the end of the
previous reporting period will become the basis for the
carrying amounts in its subsequent financial statements.

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

FrE 2 BB LB TLIIR)

2 ERETHEEm#E)

(x)

SHEEBRE

FRIERZGHBXHERZE
KRB PIINEREZEREE
REEOEBESHRZEXRR
HoEARmEREENERRE

7o

IELKATENINEIFTEE
ERABEEXZANEXRRE -
RHEARAEBNFERZFTFE
EREEERENAY - Uk
EBEIGNINEEEIFEEEE
HEE  AZAEAREBEER
ERBZE -

BINEBZEE(ENELEE
RIFBUHBRLBENEE)RR
RpAEIEERBE ZEXRB
BRABT - MR KRR AZ
BEMRZIIEEXBERE
T MEEAZERZEREME
T 45 &5 B R A SN fr A IR S B
DB RE -

BINEBZEE(EREER
AERMEBRKENEE) WM E
20 Pt iR B E A ST ERFH29
HERAREBREMREE o
RERBESERERE  A&H
BEBCHEERARERERKS
AR R AR RS HIFE R EE Al
AERBEUMENZEERRAHE
BER MR EZEE -

Annual Report 2018 o — & — )\ FE E i

153



154

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By % ¥R 2R MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x)

(y)

(2)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
H 35 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(2)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 4 & B8 )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 3 & &5 BB N + FiE & BB TLIIR)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Note 31 contains information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to financial instruments. Other key sources
of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

()

Oil and gas properties and reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s oil and gas resources
and reserves are inherently imprecise and represent
only approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such information. There
are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering
criteria that have to be met before estimated oil and
gas reserves can be designated as “proved”. Proved and
probable reserves estimates are updated at least annually
and take into account recent production and technical
information about each field. In addition, as prices and cost
levels change from year to year, the estimate of proved and
probable reserves also changes. This change is considered
a change in estimate for accounting purposes and is
reflected on a prospective basis in related depreciation
rates.

Future dismantlement costs for oil and gas properties
are estimated with reference to engineering estimates
after taking into consideration the anticipated method
of dismantlement required in accordance with industry
practices in similar geographic area, including estimation
of economic life of oil and gas properties, technology
and price level. The present values of these estimated
future dismantlement costs are capitalised as oil and
gas properties with equivalent amounts recognised as
provisions for dismantlement costs.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
depreciation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Depreciation rates are determined
based on estimated proved and probable reserve quantities
(the denominator) and capitalised costs of producing
properties (the numerator). Producing properties’
capitalised costs are amortised based on the units of oil
and gas produced.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 3k MY =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment losses of non-current assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be required
for certain of the Group’s assets which include exploration
and evaluation assets, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill and investments in joint
ventures, recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. It is
difficult to precisely estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to
items such as level of sale volume, selling price and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as sales volume, selling price and
amount of operating costs.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
other than oil production assets, oil exploration rights and
rights on oil sharing, are depreciated and amortised on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives
and the residual values of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The
determination of the useful lives and the residual values
are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation and amortisation expense for
future periods are adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 % &t B3 4 -

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(iv)

Income tax

The Group is subject to various taxes in Hong Kong,
PRC, Argentina and the United States of America (“US")
where the Group entities operate. Judgment is required
in determining the provision for current and deferred
tax. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises tax liabilities based on the historical experience
and with reference to the tax rules and regulations enacted
at the reporting period end date. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that are initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The principal activities of the Group are (i) exploration,
development, production and sale of natural resources; (ii)
commodities trading. Further details regarding the Group's
principal activities are disclosed in note 4(b).

(a)
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Disaggregation of revenue (@) W=D
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers RERFPEANKENEEZER
by major products or service lines is as follows: KRB AERMO T :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Revenue from contracts with BB R EER E155
customers within the scope of HEHBEARBEFS
HKFRS 15 ESR: ol
Disaggregated by major products or NEEEmARBEAD
service lines
Sale of oil products under oil exploration &G mEENEEZA
and production JH ZE i 32,959 43,467
Sale of non-ferrous metals under HEMmEBEIZBEEEB
commodities trading 265,030 244,090
297,989 287,557
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
markets is disclosed in notes 4(b)(i) and 4(b)(iii)
respectively.

The Group has two (2017: four) customers and the
amounts of individual customer are disclosed as follows:

4

P < B|BUETITR)

i

(a)

Customer 1 ®5E—
Customer 2 2EZ
Customer 3 EFE=
Customer 4 =P

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 31(a).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by a mixture of both business lines and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

Details of the Group’s reportable segments as follows:

o Upstream: This segment is engaged in the
exploration, development, production and sale of
crude oil. Currently the Group’s activities in this
regard are carried out in Argentina.

o Commaodities trading: This segment includes trading
of non-ferrous metals and other products.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's chief operating decision maker monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests in
joint ventures, other investment in equity securities,
available-for-sale investments, deferred tax assets
and unallocated corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include all the liabilities with the exception of
deferred tax liabilities and unallocated corporate
liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. Segment profit/loss
includes the Group’s share of profit/loss arising from
the activities of the Group’s joint operation.

Segment profit/loss represents the profit/loss
resulted by each segment without allocation of
provision/reversal of impairment loss of assets, share
of losses of joint ventures, net investment loss,
unallocated interest income and expense and other
net expense in corporate head office. This is the
measure reported to the Group’s chief executive
decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 2(aa).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S ¥R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

4 WakorBHRER

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZWHEE)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) ZHEX#E ZEEREE

(Continued) (&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with FRN - BETAEEFES
customers, as well as information regarding the BEAREREERSER
Group's reportable segments as provided to the DWBERRATHZ2REER
Group’s chief operating decision maker for the AR 2 BORAEE
purposes of resource allocation and performance ERHSHERMT :

assessment for the year is set out below:

Total

Upstream

=y

Commodities trading

BmE S

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
SERN\F il —F—/\F iRt — T —/\F et
HK$000 BRGICHON HKS'000 ERGTEHON  HK$S000 BRI
TER TAT TR TAT TER TAT

Reportable segment
revenue (note)

A2 # UL

(B &%) 265,030 244,090 297,989 287,557

Reportable segment
loss

(47,290) (67,419) (179) (108) (67,527)

Depreciation and mEREH

amortisation 7,570 7,570
Exploration expenses &) R & 35,544 35,544
Interest income BB A - -
Interest expense F BB X 36 36
Reversal of impairment [B] # & & 5l B /5

loss of exploration 18 - B iT

and evaluation HEE

assets (248,040) (248,040)
Additions to non- FRNFEREDHIE

current segment EE M

assets during the

year 40,821 43,690 40,821 43,690
Reportable segment AE2mDIEE

assets pR-LLWILE 2,469,723 2,455,299 2,469,723

Reportable segment
liabilities

(53,559) (47,601) (54,160) (47,802)

Note:

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during
both the current and prior years. All of the Group’s revenue is
recognised at a point in time.

£ XXRT 3R 2 o3 BB MR # 4R R B A Sh
MEPHEZWE » RAFE R
EFE UESBHHEER - A%
B & PR e 7 — (B B B R

27
. ©
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(Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 % &t B3 4 -

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

Br 7% 3% B &

a2 BAETIIR)

WamkoEBHRE 2

(b) 7 ®W®/E (&)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) TEHFZEHWz=RIEm
revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities BEEREEZHKZE
2018 2017
S —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue W &=
Reportable segment revenue A2 5 50 = 297,989 287,557
(Loss)/profit (E518) 5 R
Reportable segment loss AEHRSHERE (47,469) (67,527)
Unallocated interest income Ko F B WA 16,603 15,362
Unallocated interest expense ROBAEFRX (15,687) (19,257)
(Provision)/reversal of impairment (Gt1R) /B & B ERE
loss of assets &1 (72,771) 228,611
Other net expenses in corporate NE AR ED E b 5 EE
head office (22,350) (23,591)
Share of losses of joint ventures EiEEEEZER (4,452) (4,150)
Gain on partial disposal of interest HER —MABLEZ
in a joint venture oS 2 W = 3,304
Net investment loss REEEZRE (100,321) (37,492)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before BREBLATAR S (B18), & A
taxation (246,447) 95,260
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥ K B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHERDSHBHRSE#)

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) D EMFHEE)

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e Bk 8254 R A 7

(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) TEHFZEHWz=RIEm
revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities BEERAEEZHEZR(E)
(Continued)

2018 2017
—E-N\F TE— 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FA T
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets —Ifiﬁ/\ EE E 2,455,299 2,469,723
Interest in joint ventures REeEEhE2ER 12,827 18,104
Other investment in equity HihEmEHRE
securities 18,694 -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - 36,617
Deferred tax assets IR IE & = - 11,149
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE
— Cash and cash equivalents -BeMREEEY 904,935 833,451
— Other financial assets -Hth e R EE 80,468 329,610
— Promissory note receivable - RN E R = 42,687
— Other receivables — H {th fE W IR 7,472 41,810
- Others - Hh 394 498
Consolidated total assets RAEEERE 3,480,089 3,783,649
2018 2017
—E-—N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FH T
Liabilities =0
Reportable segment liabilities 71# DI EE (54,160) (47,802)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIE B E (31,436) -
Unallocated corporate liabilities KB EAEE
— Other borrowings - HMEE (210,792) (213,780)
— Deposit received -BlEe (48,880) (48,880)
- Others - HEfth (4,845) (5,871)
Consolidated total liabilities meaEesE (350,113) (316,333)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 % &t B3 4 -

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iii) Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s non-
current assets other than other investment in
equity securities, available-for-sale investments
and deferred tax assets (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of the Group’s
revenue is based on the locations of customers. The
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on (i) the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment
and exploration and evaluation assets; and (ii)
the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets, goodwill,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. In the
case of interest in joint ventures, it is based on the
location of the operation of such joint ventures.

B 7% R B &

a2 BAETIIR)

4 WHERDSHBHRSE#)

(b) DEHmEE)

(i) it B2 & #
TREFT() A S B 2Rk 8 M
BEPzKE Ri)VAEERZ
ERBEE  TBEEHAM
BEFEHFRE THEE
KEREBEERIEEE(R
EERDEEDMIEBAE
ZER  NEE WK=K H
BAEDEREFATE -
BEFRRDEEZAEH
TEROREZE - BERE
HERHMRERIHEEEMNS
BEANSNLE 2102 (i)
REREE BE BN
I B K H A ERK
HmNE BEEIER2E
EmE pReErEL
EEmE ARZAEED

FEBMEMBRLE -

Revenues from external Specified
customers non-current assets
REANBEF 2K & BEFRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
it IS T F i — T —
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET FHE T FHET

Singapore b0 265,030
Hong Kong BB
PRC =8
Argentina F] 48 72 32,959

297,989 287,557

1.173 1,541
11,733 16,733
43,467 2,385,691 2,409,427

2,398,597 2,427,701
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥ K B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 HftW A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Bank interest income AT B A 12,689 6,804
Interest income on promissory note JE W AR 2 F B A

receivable 3,919 6,900
Other interest income H4th F B U A = 1,658

Total interest income on financial assets FEE BB E AR o EE 5 EH

not at fair value through profit or loss eHEENS WA ERE 16,608 15,362
Net foreign exchange loss P& W B 18 5 58 (46,399) (4,840)
Net loss on disposal of non-current Bz & Palmar Largo 45 s i@ 2

assets of Palmar Largo concession ERBEERNEEFRAE

(note 18) (Ft7E18) (7.186) -
Drilling service income # H AR 75 U A 14,588 -
Hyperinflation monetary adjustments EMBERRE®ERE

(note 2(c)) (M3 2(0)) 4,009 =
Others Hity 7,633 5,728

(10,747) 16,250
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & B 5N » BT & FH A LI R)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

(@) Finance costs

BRBLAT (&5 18), % R

BrBiAT (B518), s M T kR (GEA)
THEE:

BE & A

H g & E

Interest on other borrowings

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)

Salaries, wages and other benefits e
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

© R B K H Al A5 F
E B SR IRET &R

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
15,687 19,293
BEIRF(BEESEH®)
2018 2017
sl —F tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
16,034 23,536
4,604 4,053
20,638 27,589

(c) Provision/(reversal) of impairment loss of assets

FR(EEEEREES

Exploration and evaluation assets BHERFEHEE

Available-for-sale investments AHEERE

Promissory note receivable (note 19) & Uk 7& ¥ Z 4 (Ff 5£19)

Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 BR 5k I E Aib
JE W2 3K 18

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET T T

- (248,040)

- 19,429

38,846 -
33,925 -
72,771 (228,611)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(d).

ME: AEBMER-_FT-N\F-—A—H
ML EBEBIEREF 55 R
EERNBREFEIR - REEE
BEIE  HEARTEERT
R E2(d) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥ K B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continvesy 6 BB AI(ER) HF )

(d) Net investment loss d) BREBSEFH
2018 2017
—E-—N\EF —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TH&ExT FH& T
Listed equity securities at KNAREBEIEZ 23(i)
fair value TR E 5 100,492 39,532
Unlisted investment funds at A REEINEZ 23(ii)
fair value FLITMREES 1,955 (1,524)
Unlisted equity-linked securities  3E =T B&% 78 £ §5 & % 23(iii) (2,126) (516)
100,321 37,492
(e) Other items (e HfEER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EH 1,156 2,905
Depreciation of property, plant and #1% - MEM XRBE 2T E
equipment 4,585 4,881
Operating leases charges: KEHESER:
minimum lease payments & 1K & 5K
— leasehold land and buildings -HELHREF 2,764 2,759
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B &
— audit services - BEZR% 2,550 2,520
— other services —- H b Bk % 687 889
Cost of inventories (note) FE A (M sE) 286,863 280,651
Note: B 2
Cost of sales includes approximately HK$1,584,000 (2017: HK$3,981,000) 5 B AN B E 491,584,000 T (=T —+
relating to depreciation and amortisation expenses, which amount is also 4 :3,981,00058 7T) - Ty B 4T & K # i
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above for XEHE ZeBRNAARSELFEAR
each of these types of expenses. NSRBI BEBENSERLSEN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & B 5N » BT & FH A LI R)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax Elfi%iE - B R B H

Provision for the year FANEE
Current tax — overseas BN EA B 1B - | 4h
Provision for the year F R B

Over-provision in respect of prior years i & i@ 5 B &

Deferred tax I % Bl 1|/
Origination and reversal of temporary BERERE EERED
differences

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in Bermuda and the BVI are not
subject to any income tax in Bermuda and the BVI for both
the current and prior years.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group’s operations in Hong Kong had no assessable
profits for the year. The provision for Hong Kong profits
tax for 2018 is calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the years.

REBRBERAZHAER

RERBRANZBIERE:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FiET

- 23
(55) -
(55) 23

10,832 (6,460)

10,777 (6,437)

REAREREBREZES (R
BREZESDZHRNEER K
REREWMBARRNER RBE
FEHBRBEMAEREREBR
LEBEMMER -

FA- - ARAEEREEZER
WEERBEN » MY B RE
BHNEHEE R_F—N\F -
ERMNERBHEIREBEFAZMA
FHERTUEMIR16.5% (T —+
F:16.5%) ZHEFH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥ K B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a)

(b)

or loss represents: (Continued)

Subsidiaries of the Group in Argentina are subject to
Argentina corporate income tax (“CIT") at 30% (2017:
35%) and minimum presumed income tax (“MPIT"). MPIT
is supplementary to CIT and is chargeable at the applicable
tax rate of 1% on the tax basis of certain assets. The tax
liabilities of subsidiaries of the Group in Argentina are the

higher of CIT and MPIT.

Taxation for other overseas subsidiaries of the Group is
charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling

in the relevant countries and regions.

Reconciliation between tax charge/(credit) and (b)
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

(Loss)/profit before taxation

BRAEAT (B 1E), i

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to loss

in the jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of hyperinflation impact

Tax effect of tax losses and temporary

differences not recognised

Over-provision in respect of prior years
Effect on deferred tax balance resulting

from a change in tax rate

BRAKRBA(BE),/
A BEBIEA R
AR A BRI RDA
REREBBRZVERAR

FERBIMAZH B E

TAMBAL 2B
TE

THEBRRERRNTEL
BB RE

AERRBGEERE &
ERIBBRE

FLIEFIRE B E

BERBBF|EZEL
MRS T B

Actual tax expense/(credit)

EREBBHREX(ER)

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e 7K B8R A R A A

ReEBERERAZIEHR @

REeBRBERAZBERE (&)

REBMRMBIEZH B AR AR
30% B E(ZF — £ F :35%) &
MR ECEMEHR (EEME
it 1) B 4 OB £ 1K P 45 A ([ 46 ORI &%
EEBH] - HAZKEKAMBHRA
CEMEBRZER IHETE
EZHRER1%ERFE R - K
SERMBEZHEEERDF
FIEf RENSEMEHR &S
% o

AREE B AT 2 BE
FARMERRIE 2 T
E IR -

BHEx (ER)EEH(F
B) BANRBERAREZY
BR :

2018 2017
sl —F tEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
(246,447) 95,260
(38,035) 109
(2,118) (42,426)
25,910 24,500
20,654 -
4,421 9,860
(55) -

1,520

10,777 (6,437)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R AR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & B 5N » BT & FH A LI R)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are

as follows:

Directors’
{1

Exhe
HK$'000
TER

Chairman
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart

Executive directors
Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan
Mr. Zhang Kun
(resigned on 9 February 2018)

Non-executive director
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit
(resigned on 13 Apnil 2018)

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

Mr. Chiu Wai On

Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter
(deceased on 11 March 2019)

Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie

E:
HpELE

HITEZ
RELER-F-/F
ZANAEE)

FHTEFE
HRBEER-F/1F
ART=AFE)

BUNAITEF

RERLE
THEEER=F-AF

ZA1+-HEH)
HiRBEE

8 EEFM

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

& EHEK
ENEF
HK$'000
TR

BEEHFMIBETE R AMEH 5383(1)
BRERARI(BEEESN=ER)HAE
2ERTEHWEMT ¢

Retirement

Discretionary scheme
bonuses contributions Total

RRGtE
BERA HE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR THER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B % & & B b »

8

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

A BHAAETIIR)

8 EEHM=

2017
—T—tF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
o 2R RIREE
EZHe EWEFl WEEL it 5% @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL THL TEL THL
Chairman TE
Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart HBLAE - 1,920 306 18 2,244
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Zhang Kun KB4 = 600 = 20 620
Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan BRBEE(R-FE—+F
(appointed on 30 June 2017) NAZFHEZE)
(note) (Hi) = 942 - 6 948
Non-executive director FHTEZE
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit BRBEE(R-F—+F
(redesignated on 30 June 2017 ~A=+HEZERR
and resigned on 13 April 2018)  —FE—/1FHA+=H
B1E) 100 306 = 9 415
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE
directors
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BEEEE 200 = = = 200
Mr. Chiu Wai On REZEHE 200 = = = 200
Mr. Wong Man Kong, Peter FHBEER=F—NEF
(deceased on 11 March 2019) ZHA+—HEH) 200 = = = 200
Mr. Yung Chun Fai, Dickie HRETE 200 = = = 200
900 3,768 306 53 5,027
Note: Mr. Tang, John Wing Yan was appointed as an executive director of the fizk: BAKBAELEEBEZEERARANTESRR

Company and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from
30 June 2017. The emoluments from 1 January 2017 up to the date of

appointment as an executive director were HK$1,251,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & B 5N » BT & FH A LI R)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 BEHMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017: AfusEmHFMATEFR  MU(ZE—
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. tF MU)ABEE B2 X WS
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate of BE -BE_Z-/\F+-A=+—H
the emoluments in respect of the other three individuals (2017: EFE BB =u(ZZT—+F : =fI)
three) were as follows: ATZEaHEBMES0T:
2018 2017
A —F—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He  EBNEYER 2,336 2,283
Discretionary bonuses B 15 TE 4L 221 553
Retirement scheme contributions IR ARG B 5 128 27
2,685 2,863
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the emoluments of BHE_ZT-NF+A=+T—HILHF
the three (2017: three) individuals with the highest emoluments B =u(CE—tF =) =5 N
were within the following bands: ATz &EENT :
2018 2017
AN —T—+tF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$500,001-HK$1,000,000 500,001/ 7£-1,000,0007% 7T 2
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t —-1,500,0007% 7T 1
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HEfZzmEK =
Other comprehensive income does not have any tax effect for BHE-_ZT-—N\F+=ZRA=+—8H JJ:$
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$Nil). f E’r&iﬁqﬁlfmiﬂﬁt_ﬂ s &

—tF: 5 /%71:)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ¥R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

"M ER(ER)BF
@) SREAXER) B

(i)  (Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the (i) ZELAHEEAEL(EE)

Company (basic)

(B 1E) & 7

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of ZARA G # A A B

the Company (& 18) & F (257,218) 101,710
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i) ZBEREX)NEFGE
(basic)

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January

Effect of purchase of own shares
(note 30(c)(iii))

Effect of shares issued under open
offer (note 30(c)(ii))

Effect of bonus element on shares
issued under open offer

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+4F

‘000 ‘000

TER FA T

R—A—BE&TLARK 8,865,483 5,910,322
BEABNROZTE

(B 7E30(c)(ii)) (22,723) -

RIFARBEEMRETRND

Weighted average number of ordinary R+ —-_A=+—HZZ @

shares (basic) at 31 December

5228 (Mt 5£30(c)(ii)) 2,145,528

1B IE A3 S M7
MEREB D 2 & 43,098
% (7)) 0 4 S35 £ 8,842,760 8,098,948

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

(b) BRBH(ER) B

For the year ended 31 December 2018, basic and diluted
loss per share was the same as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the year. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, basic and diluted earnings
per share was the same as the effect of the potential
ordinary shares outstanding was anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br 7% 3% B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & B 5N » BT & FH A LI R)

12 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 12 HIZERIFIEHEE

Exploration Exploratory Geological
rights drilling studies Others Total
BHRE BREF BHEHR Hit Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TEL TET THEL TEL

Cost B AR
At 1 January 2017 Rn_ZE—+F—HF—H 3,229,499 105,589 106,404 34,495 3,475,987
Additions NE 894 33,739 - - 34,633
Write off (note () 88 (P 3 (0) - (35,544) - - (35,544)
Exchange adjustments [E 3 3 2 (1,222) (10,920) (10,210) (504) (22,856)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=-—A=+—H 3,229,171 92,864 96,194 33,991 3,452,220

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N&F—HF—H 3,229,171 92,864 96,194 33,991 3,452,220
Additions NE 893 37,512 = = 38,405
Write off (note (c)) 88 (Ft (o) = (371) = = (371)
Hyperinflation adjustments =HAEEWKRAER

(note 2(c)) (Bt & 2(c)) (351) (3,667) 87,712

At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\&F
+-RA=+—H” 3,229,713 126,338 187,924 3,577,966

Accumulated impairment it iE E

At 1 January 2017 R-—ZT—+F—HF—H 1,261,385 6,802 106,404 34,495 1,409,086
Reversal of impairment loss [B] g {& /& 18 (Fif 5 (b))

of assets (note (b)) (248,040) = = = (248,040)
Exchange adjustments fE 5 3% 200 (1,793) (10,210) (504) (12,307)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+t4F

+=-—A=+—H 1,013,545 5,009 96,194 33,991 1,148,739

At 1 January 2018 RZF—N\&—A—H 1,013,545 96,194 33,991 1,148,739
Hyperinflation adjustments = @A S W KRAR

(note 2(c)) (B 3 2(c)) 91,730 91,730

At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\EF

+=-—A=+—H 1,013,545 187,924 33,991 1,240,469
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2018 RNZTE—N\F

+-A=+—H” 2,216,168 121,329 - 2,337,497
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F

+=H=+—8 2,215,626 87,855 - - 2,303,481
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

12 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group holds 69.25% interest in the Tartagal
concession and Morillo concession (collectively the “T&M concessions”)
which are the concessions in the province of Salta in northern Argentina,
through an Union of Temporary Enterprise (“T&M UTE"). Exploration
permits were granted for oil and developments of hydrocarbons in
the T&M concessions for an initial period of four years starting from
29 December 2006 and additional extensions up to an aggregate of nine
years may be obtained. The Group submitted applications to the Secretary
of Energy of Province of Salta, Argentina (“Salta SOE”) for extensions
of the exploration permits and obtained the approvals in July 2010, July
2011, December 2013, March 2016 and March 2018 respectively. Pursuant
to the approval document issued in March 2018, the exploration permits
were extended to 13 September 2019. The Group will file an application
to the Salta SOE for a further extension of the exploration permits before
expiration. If successful hydrocarbon discoveries are made, the exploration
permits can be converted to exploitation permits for a term of 25 years
with a possible extension of 10 years.

As at 31 December 2017, on the basis that the extension of the
exploration permits in the T&M concessions were to be obtained in
a reasonable period of time, the Group reversed impairment loss of
HK$248,040,000 for exploration and evaluation assets in respect of
T&M UTE. The reversal of impairment loss was provided based on the
calculations with reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
appraisal firm, Roma Appraisals Limited. These calculations used cash flow
projections based on financial forecasts prepared by management with
reference to technical reports issued by Netherland, Sewell & Associates,
Inc., an independent qualified technical consultant.

The cash flow projections covered the remaining life of the oil fields for
a 22-year period for Tartagal concession and a 23-year period for Morillo
concession. Pre-tax discount rates of 25.23% and 25.00% for Tartagal
concession and Morillo concession respectively were applied in the cash
flow projections. The reversal of impairment loss was mainly attributable
to a decrease in pre-tax discount rate driven by the lower country risk
premium of Argentina and lower systematic risk of oil and gas companies.

As at 31 December 2018, on the basis that the extension of the
exploration permits in the T&M Concessions could be obtained, no
impairment loss was recognised or reversed for the exploration and
evaluation assets with reference to a valuation report issued by an
independent appraisal firm, Roma Appraisals Limited.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, exploration and evaluation
assets of HK$371,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2017
HK$35,544,000) in respect of an exploration well in T&M UTE which was
determined to be non-commercial and has been recognised as exploration
expense for dry hole.
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A BHAAETIIR)

12 BERFREED

R=F—N\F+=ZA=+—8 F&£EE
iBUnion of Temporary Enterprise ([T&M
UTEJ) %% A Tartagal 57 57 # [& & Morillo &1
R (i [TRMAFRTRER | iz 1Y P AR 3
L EBERIE AN ER)69.25% K
@ o TRMHRT R A2 A MRk E(E
VMREERSIRTR BT EREF T+
AZthBESKVNRANE - LA EIMNE
H HZAENF -AEEERMNRE
ERBEERBR(ERELLRIR]
BRERFFAESNEE - YRR =F—
THELR ZT——Fth ZT—=F
+TZARZE—RE=ZARZZT—NE=
RESHE BER-ZT—\F=AEZ
WiEX M - BRFAIEZ_ZE-NAFN
A+=H - AEEEREI ST mERE &
BER BB RIE R E — R B ER AT AT IE HA ER
B MK BERMI‘EY - BRTA
BE MR S R B2 F M RMERAT AT - WAl AE
EHI104F -

R-ZZE—+tF+-—A=1+—8 EREH
TRMEHF BRI EREERER
/g - AEEBRTAM UTER B3R K 5E(E B
E 7 [5] 74 {8 /&5 $8248,040,00078 7T ° BB
EBREBERNNDBRE2EBLIGEARES
BEERFEARARFHOGERS EL
MetEitiR - Z5TERAERNEREE
482 E i@ ¥ A A H T B8 S Netherland,
Sewell &Associates, Inc.Z H Z H 17 & M
EHEEAREMRSRETEA -

IR 4 7 2 T8 R & Tartagal 5 7 # [ ) FH £
T PR 4E #1224 R Morillo i 55 # [ #4 T(#
FA 4 Hi234F ° Tartagal 45 #F # & & Morillo
HRTREENR SR ST H R EA25.23%
$225.00% &9 BR 35 AT BE 38 & o £ Bl (B &
BEXZHAXZMBEREBE KRR R E
FHRARREEZFERRES B
ARG IR R T PRFT 3K -

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H8  HT&M%F
AAERMRA RGBS 2ZB/IF
HARESERFEERATNELMNMGEE
HE o RABEABE R HEEER K
BERERRE

BHE-_Z-—N\E+_A=t—BLEE &
BETATEMEMENTAM UTER R FH
EE R EEE371,0008 T (BE-_T—
tE+=-—B=+—HIFE :35544,000
B) ERMEHERBGFERAIER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br 7% 3% B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & B 5N » BT & FH A LI R)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 M% BERRKRHE
Furniture,
fixtures 0il
Leasehold and office Motor production Construction
Improvements  Machinery  equipment vehicles assets in progress Total
HENE B RER AREE
% BE BAERE RE B HBRIE @zt

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

Cost A
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—tF

—HA—H 639 355 2,654 916 6,162 42,516 53,242
Additions NE - - 214 - - 8,862 9,076
Disposals ik - - (44) - - - (44)
Transfer 2§ = 51,356 = = = (51,356) =
Exchange adjustments [E i 55 % - (551) (299) (122) (890) (22) (1,884)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+ 4

+-A=1+—H° 639 51,160 2,525 794 5,272 - 60,390

At 1 January 2018 RZT-N\F

—HA—H 51,160
Additions wNE 2,381
Disposals 3 =
Hyperinflation RHEREHRAR
adjustments GEY)

(note 2(c)) (12,808)

At 31 December 2018 R=-Z—\F
F=H=E=E

5,272 60,390
- 2,441
(2,642) (2,670)

(2,630) (14,244)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S ¥R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 VE- -BERRE®
(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures Oil
Leasehold and office Motor production Construction

Improvements  Machinery  equipment vehicles assets in progress Total
B RER

HEWEEE KE BLAERE AE FREEEE 2 HEEIR @zt

HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK§'000 ~ HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRT TAT TRT TAT TRT TAT TRT

Accumulated 2 ERAE

depreciation and

impairment
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F

—H—H 419 142 1,857 474 4,872 - 7,764

Charge for the year ~ FRHEY 160 2,784 718 287 932 = 4,881
Written back on HESEED

disposals - - (44) - - - (44)
Exchange adjustments & % 7 % = (329) (265) (95) (823) = (1,512)

At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F
+=-A=+-8 579 2,597 2,266 666 4,981 - 11,089

At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F

—H—H 666 4,981 11,089
Charge for the year ~ FRHX 49 437 4,585
Written back on HEEHEER
disposals (15) (2,642) (2,670)
Hyperinflation THBRERRAR
adjustments (B 2(c))
(note 2(c)) (2,776)

At 31 December 2018 R=Z—/\&F
+-A=+-H 13,106

Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2018 R=Z—/\F
+=-A=+-8 32,514 32,81

At 31 December 2017 W=ZE—+F
+-F=1+—8 60 48,563 259 128 291 = 49,301
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & B 5N » BT & FH A LI R)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BREE
Rights on oil
sharing
Vel A
HK$'000
FA T
(note)
(B 3E)
Cost 29
At 1 January 2017 R—ZF—+tF—H—H 32,019
Exchange adjustments PE 5 38 (4,263)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ZH=+—H 27,756
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—H 27,756
Disposals (note 18) Hi 58 (BT 5£18) (44,271)
Hyperinflation adjustments (note 2(c)) TR E R A (M E200) 16,515
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-—N\F+_A=+—H
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt BERBE
At 1 January 2017 R—_ZE—+F—H—H 10,243
Charge for the year FARX 2,905
Exchange adjustments PE W 3 & (1,688)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+_HA=+—H 11,460
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—HA—H 11,460
Charge for the year FARXE 1,156
Written back on disposals (note 18) R EEIEEE (M E18) (37,345)
Hyperinflation adjustments (note 2(c)) EEERIRAE M FE20) 24,729
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\FE+=ZA=+—H
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2017 R_TE—tF+-_HA=+—H 16,296
Note: It represented the rights on oil sharing relating to the Palmar Largo Bff 7 © E A KB REPalmar Largo i #F # & BY A
concession areas. Amortisation was calculated using the unit of production DRHE o IR RS RIRBA ORI
method based upon the estimated proved and probable oil reserves. HRAEEBMETHE -
The net book value of intangible assets of HK$6,926,000 in respect of M=Z —/)\&F+ — A Palmar Largo ¢
Palmar Largo concession has been disposed of in November 2018. TEBZEFVAECREEREEAR

6,926,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

15 GOODWILL 15 HE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH& T FA& T

Cost: AN
At 1 January Kn—H—H 270

EHBRERIKRAR

Hyperinflation adjustments (note 2(c)) (Bt 5 2(c)) =
Disposals (note 18) i E (M 5E18) (36)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—¢H 234

Note: Bt 5% -

The remaining carrying amount of goodwill of HK$260,000 in respect of
Palmar Largo concession has been disposed of in November 2018.

W= —N\&F+—F ' Palmar Largo%F&F
HE 2 84T 49 BR T (8 4260,0005% 7T 2 75 2
EREE -

16 RMBARIZKRE

R-ZZE—NE+=-_A=+—8 ' ARQF
MEARFFBMT :

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018
are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

i R i bt B

Place of
establishment/
incorporation

Group's

Particulars of issued and effective Held by the Held by the

Name of company and business paid up capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities
B/ MR K rEEZ VNN i B 2

AR ER EE 3 ERTRAZREFE EREE A% FMEEE TEXE

Total Belief Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% 100% = Investment holding

BEARAR KBERZHES REREEIZTZEER REER

Jade Honest Limited BVI 2,700 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% 100% - Dormant
KERZBES 2,700 EREEIE T EER REEBEY

Absolute Champ Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share at HK$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding

BRERATF BB REREEIBTZEER REER

Ace Diamond Trading Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares at US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
KERZES 100 BREBIETZEAR REER

Big Trade Investments Limited BVI 1 ordinary share at US$1 each 100% = 100% Investment holding
KBERZHES REREEIZTZEER REER

Bright Rise Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share at US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding

HHEEEERAA HBEXES REREBIZTZEBR RERR

Cheer Profit Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share at US$1 each 100% = 100% Investment holding

REEBEERAA KBERZHES REREEIZTZEER REER

Discovery Operating LLC us Nil paid 100% = 100% Dormant
X8 3 REEBEY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

Place of
establishment/
incorporation

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of issued and

Proportion of ownership interest

i R i bt

FrE 2 BB LB TLIIR)

16 RMBARZKRE#®)

Group's

effective Held by the Held by the

*

Name of company and business paid up capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities
B3/ SR SR rEEZ NN WA R
AR AW RS ERTRARRAFE ERER FEEE FEEE XEER
ET-LA, LLC us Registered capital of US$500 100% - 100% Investment holding
e i & A&500% 7T REER
First Continent Holdings Limited ~ BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
RERAER 100k EREEIZET L ERR RERR
First Apex Global Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
KERZHES 100 BREBIETZERR REER
Giant Perfect Holdings Limited ~ BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% = 100% Investment holding
RERZHES 100REREEIET2ERR REER
Grand Rich Trading Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding/
Commodities
trading
BEEHHERDT RERAES REREBEIZTZEBR RERRKR /BARES
Happy Light Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
BAKEERAR HERZBER REREEIZETZEBR REEKR
High Luck Holding (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited
BEEREB)ERAR B 1REGREE 1S T2 E @R REZRK
High Luck Group Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
RESEERARA HBRUEE 100k EREEIZET 2 ERR RERRK
Jumbo Hope Group Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
i EEERAR & REREEIBLTZERR RERR
Novastar Capital Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
KERZHES 100 BREBIETZERR REER
Power Jet Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% = 100% Dormant
RERZHES TREREEIZETZEER AEEBEE
Techno Wealth Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
BEEERAR RBRARES REREEIZTZEER REER
United Oil & Resources Trading  Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100% - 100% Dormant
Limited
HARBERESERRA BA 100 EREEET SRR AEEBEDY
RINTRHESBERRA* PRC Registered capital of US$1,000,000 100% = 100% Investment holding
i 7t} & 751,000,000% 7T RERR
High Luck Group Limited Argentina Not applicable 69.25% = 69.25% Exploration of oil and
Tartagal Oriental and Morillo gas
- UTE
B4 32 TR R
United Resources Trading Limited BVI/Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each 51% - 51% Trading of oil
products
HAERESERDA KEEZHES/ 10RERAEIETILEER EERMEm
Bk

Wholly foreign owned enterprise established under the PRC law

* REBEFEAZEMAIEABELE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 B &2 BB SN » AT B € B A B L HIR)

17 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 17 REELEZRS

2018 2017

—E-N\F S

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHETT

Share of net assets DIHEEFE 12,827 18,104
Details of the Group's interest in joint ventures, which are ERASEREGE P ERR(RER
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated ERBEMBHREAR)ZFHFBROT

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership

interest
FEEERLLH
Place of Group's
Form of business  incorporation and Particulars of issued and effective Held by a
Name of joint ventures structure business paid up capital interest subsidiary Principal activities
rEEZ —XHE
RELEER ES Y §2 EMRIREXLE ERTREZRAFE ERER RAfE TEXK
Smart Win International Incorporated BVI 200 ordinary shares of US$1 each 50% 50% Investment Holding
Limited
JEEBRERAA g7 KBEXES 200 BREBIETZEBK BREER
Full Charming Limited Incorporated BVI 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each 29.9% 29.9% Investment Holding
Bl ava EBRAHES IREREEIETZEER REEKR
Hong Kong Oil Development  Incorporated Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each 29.9% 29.9% Investment Holding
Ltd.
EERAERERAR Eaigp A BB IREREEIBTZLER REEKR
BEFTEALELFRAA Incorporated PRC Registered capital of RMB6,000,000 28.4% 28.4% Provision of oil
services
Ealig7 A FE &R A R #6,000,0007T RAER RS
@ Limited liability company established under the PRC law * BEFBRERFMABRET AR
The Group’s joint ventures are unlisted corporate entities whose AEECZEERER/RRETRAAELE -
quoted market prices are not available. I TS5 AE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & B 5N » BT & FH A LI R)

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17

Full Charming Limited and its subsidiaries (“Full Charming
Group”) is determined to be a material joint venture. Summarised
financial information of Full Charming Group, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

REEERZETE @

Full Charming Limited } £ ff B 2 &)
([FullCharming & B ) # R E — B & K
EEME o TXHFEFull Charming& &
ZHBERBE (BRETBERNEM
EEETHB)VUREGEMBHREE
EEZHED:

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

Gross amounts of Full Charming Group's Full Charming & B =~

MEH

Current assets MENE E 15,563
Non-current assets FERBE E 47,131
Current liabilities mEAE (2,207)
Equity & 60,487
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FFALMEERBE:
Cash and cash equivalents RELRREFEDY 219 99
Revenue I &5 890 =
Loss for the year FANEE (14,686) (14,586)
Other comprehensive income H 2w = (2,904) 5,198
Total comprehensive income 2 E W = EEE (17,590) (9,388)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in Full EZZREZE @M Full Charming

Charming Group SENER YR
Gross amounts of equity attributable to Full Charming% B # B A

the owners of Full Charming Group EihEm 2 RE 5 40,443 57,155
The Group's effective interest NEBERERE = 29.9% 29.9%
The Group's share of equity attributable to Full Charming%s & # & A

the owners of Full Charming Group JEME A& B 12,101 17,101
Elimination of unrealised profits on 1 8H E X5 AR E I % A

upstream transactions (368) (368)
Carrying amount in the consolidated RAEVBHRERERE

financial statements 11,733 16,733
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S ¥R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

P < B|BUETITR)

17 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (cContinued) 17 REELEZRZ®
In January 2017, Total Belief Limited, a direct wholly-owned RZE—+F—F  —REARFAEESE
subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”), entered into a BB AREEERAR(EH]) E—
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party BBIFE=F(EADIILEE R
(the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to Bt EAREBEHEME HREEWKE
dispose of, and the Purchaser agreed to acquire, the 12.18% Full Charming Limited 2 12.18% % # &
equity interest in Full Charming Limited and the receivable Full Charming L|m|tedﬂgﬂﬁl E 77 ") R IE
(the “Shareholder’s Loan”) due from Full Charming Limited ([RREF ) IHBoHEEFHE]) 8K
to the Vendor (the “Partial Disposal”) at a total consideration 8 #921,362,0008 7T - o 1 & FE
of approximately HK$21,362,000. Completion of the Partial RZE—tF—AZK - RERERE
Disposal took place in January 2017. The Shareholder’s Loan was ETER UERBOHEZTEERELD
assigned to the Purchaser, and a gain on the Partial Disposal of 3,304,000 TR 4R & B m R AR °
approximately HK$3,304,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
Aggregate information of joint venture that is not individually FEFEANEEDEEMLER:
material:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually mEMBHmEPEANFES
immaterial joint venture in the consolidated AEECERMATHE
financial statements 1,371
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of the AEMBEEZAE L %
joint venture's: B
Loss for the year FAEE 4)
Total comprehensive income FEK LT “)
18 INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION 18 REgEXRB 2R
Significant joint operation Country of operation Principal activity 2017
REXK EEfEER TEEH —tF
Palmar Largo UTE Interest  Argentina Exploration, development and 38.15%
exploitation of hydrocarbons
Palmar Largo UTE#E % PR £ RE/EMENE  AERFAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 % &t B3 4] -

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION (continued)

On 26 February 2014, the Group acquired 38.15% participating
interest in Palmar Largo Union of Temporary Enterprise (the
“Palmar Largo UTE Interest”). The Palmar Largo UTE Interest
consists of (i) rights and obligations arising from the joint
venture contract that aims at the exploration, development and
exploitation of hydrocarbons in the Palmar Largo concession
area and (ii) interest in the production equipment and facilities
required to perform and execute the exploitation work.
The hydrocarbons exploitation rights on the Palmar Largo
concession area have a term of 25 years from 23 December
1992 to 23 December 2017, extendible for another 10 years
up to 23 December 2027 upon the unanimous decision of the
Palmar Largo UTE parties and the approval of the relevant local
government.

Pursuant to Palmar Largo UTE agreement, all the participants in
the joint operation approve the operating and capital budgets
and therefore the Group has joint control over the relevant
activities of Palmar Largo UTE. According to Palmar Largo UTE
agreement, the participants in Palmar Largo UTE have joint
control over the rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities relating to Palmar Largo UTE. Accordingly, Palmar
Largo UTE Interest is accounted for as a joint operation with the
accounting policy in note 2(f).

On 23 December 2017, the exploitation rights were expired and
the Group initiated the application process with the Secretary
of Energy of Province of Formosa, Argentina (“Formosa SOE")
for further extension of the exploitation rights. In November
2018, the operations in Palmar Largo concession were terminated
because the extension of the exploitation rights will not be
granted according to the final notice from Formosa SOE.

Therefore, the non-current assets in respect of Palmar Largo
concession have been disposed of, and a net loss on disposal
amounting to approximately HK$7,186,000 has been charged to
profit or loss (note 5).

18

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

FrE 2 BB LB TLIIR)

REBEBZER®)

RZFE—WME-_A=+H A~5H
U4 % Palmar Largo Union of Temporary
Enterprise #738.15% £ B # 25 ([Palmar
Largo UTE#E %5 |) ° Palmar Largo UTE#
HBEREONEELEANEERNR - &
& & 7% Palmar Largo’s #F #E & M fix &
fb& Wz RN R EERRGHRE R
HITHREIEEMBZEERERERE
PTG 25 © Palmar Largosr iR 2
e mMmABEEN SR -+ HF
BE—NWNZ=ZF+=ZA=+=AZ=%—
+&+=ZA=+=H ' ®Parlmar Largo
UTEZ B 5 — BUR E R AE B & M BT
HEERAIEHTFE_T_LF+=
AZ+=RH-

B iEPalmar Largo UTEW3E - A2 %%
E2mEGHELBRENEE - BItA
% E A Palmar Largo UTEABBEBI A A
HEZEHIHE o R ¥ Palmar Largo UTE
#% ° Palmar Largo UTEZ £ 5 5t Palmar
LargoUTENERIEE R BB ZEEEA
RS B BRERF2HNE
IR - Palmar Largo UTE#E 25 A BR 7]
EHEE R o

RZZT—t&+=—A=+=0 " HiFEE
BEHE - MASED MMIBZREERE
AERBR(EEEAERIRDRE
REFRF  NE—PTEBRR BT
e RZZTE—N\F+—A BRIBIKRE
BEEARERBRAOKEBEN BT8R
FEVEEREH] - Palmar Largo 4 7F 4
RHEBERIE

Bt - Palmar Largo % 7 1 [& B9 JE 7T &)
BECDEEE BEHESEBBRFAEY
7,186,000 7T E 7 18 &5 & #0 Bk (Ff &
5)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 & &t B 5

19 PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE

P < B|BUETITR)

19 EWAREE

Promissory note receivable
Less:

J& WAL R iR
B R 1E B 1R

impairment loss

Note:

The promissory note was issued by Foothills Exploration Operating, Inc.
(“Foothills”) and guaranteed by Foothills Exploration, the indirect holding
company of Foothills, as part of the consideration of the disposal of its
subsidiaries in the US, and is bearing no interest and repayable on 30 June
2018. The promissory note carries effective interest rate of 19.18% per
annum.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018, under the
transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated. The
Group has recognised additional ECLs amounting to HK$7,760,000 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. See note
2(d).

The Group did not receive any repayment in respect of the outstanding
promissory note and the said event constituted a default in repayment
by Foothills. The Group is currently in negotiation with Foothills for the
repayment of the past due promissory note. Foothills’ principal activities
are the acquisition and development of oil and gas properties in the US.
In view of the adverse financial and operating circumstances of Foothills
Exploration and its subsidiaries and the recent default, the Group provided
additional impairment loss of approximately HK$38,846,000 on the past
due balance of promissory note receivable at 31 December 2018.

NEW TIMES ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED e 7K B8R A R A A

2018 2017
—g-n5 LI
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRE THT
46,606 42,687
(46,606) -
42,687

© A Z B A Foothills Exploration Operating,

Inc. ([Foothills]) 2 17 I F Foothills
Exploration #& & (— Z Foothills &) & £ 1% ik
AR AREBELEMRBAR 2SR
BREAFEYER=ZE—N\FEAA=1A
BE AEZBRSFERMNE19.18%
iTE

AEFBER=-Z—N\F—A—BEAKER
BEMBRELAER  RIBEMERZ
BERE  HBEERTTEY - A5EE
TEREEINEHI (= B E5187,760,000%8 T A
H_ZT-NF-A—BAZE=HNERZ
FAE - BKisE2d) -

AEBLEREAEERALZ BRI E
AR+ Lt B IEM R FoothillsHE R B 3K -
AEEBERNEREEBRALZRZH
K182 S B HFoothills #1TEER © Foothills
ZEEEBFAREZBERBERAZEHARE
E ° & M Foothills Exploration K £ fff B 2
A 2R B S I B R LA K A HA R
EHCRZZE-NF+ZA=+—H8 ' &
SEREREALZR B BRTIRE
SNR 1B 5 18 #938,846,0007% T °
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B 7% R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & B 5N » BT & FH A LI R)

20 OTHER INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES 20 H#itEHEHH R E

31/12/2018 01/01/2018 31/12/2017
—T-N\E e
—A—B +ZA=+—-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
Equity securities designated at FVOCI ~ HEBZRALBEFALM
(non-recycling) 2HNGEZEREFRE
(RErmE k)
- NordAq - NordAq 17,879 31,244 -
- Foothills Exploration - Foothills Exploration 815 5,373 -
Total st 18,694 36,617 -
Available-for-sale investments AtHEveRMEE
- NordAq - NordAq = 31,244
— Foothills Exploration - Foothills Exploration = 5,373
Total st - 36,617
Notes: B 5
(i) The equity interest in NordAq is carried at fair value. The fair value is (i) NordAq 2z IREE R A BEIIK - ZA R
determined by the directors with reference to a valuation report issued by BEHESF2RBUTEHEARNESERE
an independent appraisal firm, Roma Appraisal Limited using the market TEARARBLEZEERS - FRAMS
approach with reference to the private placing of shares and warrants A2 RBAFE ANordAqHL B B E R 5 &
by NordAq during the year and the average share price fluctuations of RREFUARATERARNRLERER
comparable companies between the dates of private placing of shares and PRARBEEAPHERBEHRZFHR
warrants and the reporting period end date. BERBmMETE -
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the decrease of fair value in REZE-Z—N\F+_A=+—HBIFEEH
respect of investment in NordAq's equity securities of HK$13,365,000 A - R E A 2 E AT R NordAg 2 1 &
(2017: HK$2,383,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive BHRENRAEEZ D R13,365,000
income. BT (=T —+%:2383,0008 ) °
(ii) The equity interest in Foothills Exploration is carried at fair value. The fair (ii) FiT #5 & 1 Foothills Exploration & % 4 LA

value was determined by the directors with reference to the market price
of shares of Foothills Exploration.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the decrease of fair value in
respect of investment in Foothills's equity securities of HK$4,558,000
(2017: HK$19,429,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive
income.

AREBEIE 2ABEHREERR
Foothills Exploration % 7 &) 77 35 (B #& T &
HIK

RBE-ZT—-N\F+-_A=+—HILF
EHE - R E b2 mE W A #E R Foothills
MEZELFRENANBEZRI A
4,558,000/ 7t (= — 4+ 4 : 19,429,000
P TT) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥ K B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

21 INVENTORIES 21 8
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of () RGEEMBERARZEESR
financial position comprise: &
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#& T F& T
Qil products 1,125 1,127
Consumables 19,907 16,017
21,032 17,144

(b) ERARAXEITABRSRE
ZEEEHEzZIMMT:

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in profit
or loss is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHEFECREE
(note 6(e)) (B 3E6(e)) 286,863 280,651
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 % &t B3 4 -

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22

IR

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance

BRESES  BEERE

Other debtors HitEBA
Amount due from a joint venture EREENRNEE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost ~ REHM At ERLREE
VAT recoverable ] e Bl 5 (B A
Other tax recoverable H i m] g B % 18
Other prepayment and deposits HtENRERES
Reconciliation to the consolidated REEHBERRAR 2 HE:
statement of financial position:
Non-current e
Current mE
Notes: Bt
(i) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment of approximately (i)
HK$16,000 as at 1 January 2018 was made to recognise additional ECLs
on trade and other receivables (see note 2(d)(i)).
(ii) All of the current trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered (ii)

or recognised as expense within one year.

31

/12/2018

3,184
15,471
314

18,969

15,462
6,165
7,622

48,218

RMNBEBVBREFIRE  RZT—N

a2 BAETIIR)

FEWRE 5 R ARk HAth B UL

01/01/2018  31/12/2017
“E-N\E  —FiF
—A—-B +t=A=1+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT
7,461 7,461
8,528 8,528

314 330

16,303 16,319
48,396 48,396
8,484 8,484
41,746 41,746
114,929 114,945
40,286 40,286
74,643 74,659
114,929 114,945

F—RA—H ERELEZEIEELME
W R IR 4 BN TR B 5 BB 1R 1 4R 1 58
#16,0007T (Bt £ 2(d)(i) °

Fff 75 BN 20 B U B 5 BR AR I H A R U R OR

BEHR —FABLRERRAX -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥ K B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5 & &£ BB SN - Fi & 5B A LI R)

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continves) 22 FBEWE ZERF K HitE U

MIE (&)
Notes: (Continued) Bt 5k - (&)
(i) The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, presented based (i) EHEIERREZAHRREEREF
on the invoice date and net of loss allowance is as follows: B2 ZHREDTAT:
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHET
0-30 days 0Z230H 7,461
31-60 days 31%60H -
7,461
Trade receivables are due within 30 days (2017: 30 days) from the date BREZEZEXREMEERB L3008 (=
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note T—+F:30A) AR - BEALAEEE
31(@a). BEHRRZE—SHBHRKE3@) °
23 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 23 HttEmEE
2018 2017
=L P — T+
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ExT FAT
Listed equity securities at fair value (note (i) AR REBELIE 2 EHK
A7 7 (P 31 ) 198,972
Unlisted investment funds at fair value (note (i) AR RBEIKZIF LT
’EE S (M) 100,778
Unlisted equity-linked securities (note (i) FE | T AR A #6535
(B 72 Gii)) 29,860
329,610
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 7% ¥R 2R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 B &t BB SN + Fi B & 5 H B LI R)

23 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The listed equity securities at fair value represent listed shares of Beijing
Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (“Blue Sky”). During the year ended
31 December 2018, the net investment loss of listed equity securities
amounting to HK$100,492,000 (2017: loss of HK$39,532,000) has been
charged to profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2017, the unlisted investment funds at fair value
represented investments in a wide range of equity or debt investment
products, which were disposed of during the year ended 31 December
2018, and the net investment loss of HK$1,955,000 (2017: gain of
HK$1,524,000) has been charged to profit or loss.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018,
the Group acquired equity-linked securities which contained embedded
derivative, the return of which were determined with reference to the
closing price of certain equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange.
The unlisted equity-linked securities were designated as at FVPL at initial
recognition. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the unlisted
equity-linked securities have been redeemed, and the net investment gain
of HK$2,126,000 (2017: gain of HK$516,000) has been recognised in profit
or loss.

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

23 Hthe&EmEE®

o o

(@)

(if)

(iii)

NARBEINEZ EMBRAZFHFAILR
MRERERERARA(TERXR]) FHITH
rHR®p  HEZZE—NFF+_A=1+—
BIEFEE  EFTRAZIHFOREEFBF
6 73100,492,0008 T (ZFT — L F : 18
39,532,000 L) E R m KK °

R-ZZE—+FE+_A=+—8 KRAA
BEINEZHFELTREESEREZN
BEXEEREERNIRE HERE
E_T—\E+-_A=+—HLEFEHH
€ - Mk & E518)%(81,955,0008 T (=%
— 4 : R 51,524,000/ TT) ERIBER
R o

BE-_ZE—+&+-_A=+—HBER=_Z—
NE+ZA=+—HBLEE A5EKE
BERARNTETE 2 RARHBES - H
BIRI2EETRER ETZBRAF
FZWMEERE - EETRABBIFHFR
MEPERKEEBUEAAEBENAE
@=HE - BE=ZZT—N\E+=-A=+—H
IFEE - FEETRABBELHDEER -
Mm% B W FE 2,126,000 T (=T —+
F :516,0008 L) ERIBSRER ©

24 HEeRBHEEEY

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents in the

iR A B S AR O R e i B

consolidated statement of financial Fehangxrbz
position and consolidated statement of R & NI & EEY

cash flows

RekBeSEYERE:
2018 2017
A —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT
928,476 843,948
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %55 R 2R MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 B &2 BB SN » AT B € B A B L HIR)

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

24 BERBEEEBYW )

(b)

REMEFTHNREZHE

TRALANEERARE LD
BE2EE  BREEASMERS
2 REAMELTINABIEER
RenERXERKRALRE
KEESBEAEEEARESNR
EXERBELTDABREME
MEBIE -

Other
borrowings
Ht g &
HK$'000
THET
At 1 January 2017 R=ZF—+tF—H—H 331,759
Changes from financing cash flows: REMERSRENEE :
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMES (111,843)
Other changes: H il % 5:
Decrease in interest payable JE 11 1) B B9 Rk (6,555)
Others Hits 419
Total other changes H i Z B85t (6,136)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R=-ZE—t&+-A=+—HE
—E2-N\f¥—-A—H 213,780
Changes from financing cash flows: REMEESRENS T :
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMEE (3,000)
Other changes: Hih &5 :
Increase in interest payable i IRSN= bzl 12
Total other changes 